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Chairman’s statement

| am very pleased to write my first statement since being apponted Charrman
of Imagination iIn March 2015 The business has significant potential and | look
forward to working with the Board and the managemant team to realze thig
potential over the coming years

The last year has seen further significant pregress in all of the man siicon 1P
familes, PowerVR multimedia, MiPS processors and Ensigma commurications
This has resulted in growth in both licensing and royalty revenues durng the year

The PowerVR multimedia family saw the launch of Senes? graphics which takes
our class-leading mobile graphics to further levels of performance and efficiency Be rt N or d b er g

The momentum in the MIPS business has continued to develop and we were
pleased to report an increase N royalty units in the year We arg confident that the
licensing and design wins achieved over the last two years will dnive further royalty
unit growth in the years to come

Chairman

The custemer base for Ensigma continues to grow, reflecting the increasing
relevance of this technology to the market A number ot new customers have now
reached production and we expect this 1o signal the beginning of a ramp in royalty
unit shipments

The role of Pure in supporting the Group s strategy continues to evalve with a
focus on fewer geographic markets and a tighter product range, and we will
continue to refine this

The past few years have seen significant investment in the Group’s three key
sihcon [P familes, and now that this heavy investment phase Is largely complete,
we have entered a new phase where we expect to see expansion of the operating
margins earned by the business We belleve a long term target of 30-40% 1s an
achievable target for our operating margin

None of this would be possible without the creatrity, energy and commitment of
our 1 700 employees around the globe and 1 would like to take this opportunity to
thank them for therr continued support

Thank you for your keen interest in and support for the Group

LA,
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Imagination

imagination is one
of the world’s top
three silicon IP
companies
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Ideas behind ideas

At Imagination we create and license market-leading precessor solutions
for graphics, video and wision processing, general purpose and embedded
processing (CPU & MCL) and muli-standard communications

Qur broad range of siicon IP (intellectual property) includes the key processing
blecks needed by our customers to create the Systems on Chips (SoC) that
power electronic devices

We call these processing engines our ‘three key pifars’ and we have built strong
brands around them PowerVR multimedia, MIPS processors, and Ensigma
communications

Imagnation 1s one of the werld s top three silicon IP companies {scurce Gartner
2015) and has been for the past five yeais (2010)

We've achieved that position because we have a passion for nnovation and the
dnve to develop technologies that deliver leadershup for cur customers' products,
and ennch users’ wves Cur technelegies have not only already been nstrumental
in key markets such as mobile phone computing, home electronics, handheld
mulimedia automotive and networking they are alsc enabling new kinds of
devices across the Internet of Things (loT) wearables and other markets Because
of this we believe that the Imagination story s just beginning

With over eight billon units shipped containing our technology there 1s an
Imagination enabled product for everyone on earth — but we regard this as merely
the start Our goal 1s to help create a smarter, more connected world that enniches
Iives In many ways every day

Difference

Cur technolegy has unique advantages that make it highly desirable both

to market leading technology companies who might otherwise develop
such technologies themselves and start-up companies who seek to disrupt
estabhshed markets Our reputation 1s bult on INnnovation

Qur focus on low power consumption, the smallest sihicon area, and the highest
efficiency are three key reasons our technology 1s In demand from leading chip
companies These design imperatives permeate everything we do We are also
now introducing new areas of profeund differentiation such as security

We package our |P in ever more ¢reative ways, from IP cores through subsystem
IP platiorms, to full reference IP platforms We are also introducing new
technologies that enable better SoCs to be made using our IF, such as muli-
domain secunty, advanced design flows, and much more Customers can license
just one IP core or take a whole range They can integrate our |P indmdually, or as
pre-verified combined subsystems with therr own technclogy, and if needed rely
an us to help in ¢reating their SoC




Combining our

This makes us unigque in the IP busingss We are the only IP company with a true IP cores enables |
focus on the solutions our custemers require as a spangboard to differentiation,

best timeé to market and compeling ROI {return on investment) our CUStomerS to I

create their own I

|

Strategy differentiated
platforms
Ensigma PowerVR ) .
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Imagination’s long-term strategy 1s to builld, with cur customers, solutions of real

scale across a wide range of markeis, based on some or all of our three i
fundamental silicon IP families — PowerVR mulimedia MIPS processors, and .
Ensigma communications — and the platfcrms they enable

These three complementary and essential [P families used in various

configurations across every market we address, are central to the Group’s overall \ i
strategy They \\
* Ingdradually offer a comprehensive and highly scalable rangs of IP products that \
are technolagy leaders in ther respective areas . .
A - -
-~ e

* Collectively enable the creation of IP platforms addressing a growing range - . i
of subsystem and solution needs that form the basis of our customers’
differentiated solutions

secure heterogeneous platforms that combine our IP with our customers' and
pariners’ differentiating IP to create unigue solutions — and we are unique In this
area by going much further than anyene else to realize scalable IP platforms to
accelerate the path from concept to volume production We believe that each
of our IP pillars 1s batter than other point solutions but alse that togstherin a
heterogeneous SoC they enable our customers to have opportunities to create
solutions faster at tower cost and lower nsk

Imagmation s a different kind of IP company We see that the future 1s about }
|
[

- \ - - -

The Way Proven, % Customizable ', Application w“::’;g:‘;"
Ferward Scalable IP /r P platforms  / know-how //l differgntiation
— / e e

P provider Customer
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The SoCs that power sverything in the consumer and embedded electronics
space can be constructed from combinations of cur unigue portfolio of IP cores
Combining our IP cores enables our customers to create therr own differentiated
platforms We also license a number of configurable P subsystems that show
how such IP platforms can be made

Innovation

We have spent the best part of two decades creating a company with the
breadth of fundamental technologies and skills required to create advanced

Everything heterogeneous platform SoCs Our wision 1$ to constantly ba at the leading edge,
Imagination desig ns drving Innovation and improving the guality of Iife of everyone whoe touches our
technolcgies

rt

Sta S from the Qver time, we have enabted mobile graphics to revolutionize user interfaces and
prInCIPIQ that it must gaming, delvered ong of the first rue RISC processor architectures, created

be ultra |OW power technologies enabling on-chip communications for the loT era, and driven mobile

. . video qualty and efficiency
and efficient

Innovation and efficiency are In our DNA Everything Imagination designs starts
from the punciple that it must be ultra low power and efficient and integrated onto
a single heterogeneous SoC This 1s why our technologies are the best for all the
markets we serve

Imagmnation has delivered on a strategy of innovation and diversification that has
created a globally recognized technology company Thanks to the long and deep
relationships we have with our licensees, strategic partners and our shareholders,
wa believe the Iives of bilhlons of consumers around the world are being enrched
by Imagmation

(Key Licensees
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The drive to innovate through smart R&D is behind everything we do That OUI" ]icensees
inncvation has delvered a portfolo of technelogies that 1s Innovative in .

every important field for our target markets mulbimedia processor and |nCIUde many Of
communicatons Imagnation 18 now focused on ensuring that our Nnovations the world’s |eading
reach the widest audience we can

semiconductor
Trust manufacturers,

Our busmess model 1s simple We receve a payment whan we license our ‘pillar’ network operators
technologies to leading electronics companies and when those companies create an d OEM s
products using our technologies we alsc receve a royalty for each unit shipped

Our licensses include many of the world’s leading semiconductor manufacturers,
network operators and OEMs/QDMSs {Ongnal Equipment/Device Manufacturers)
They are attracted to us because we buld win-win parinerships that enable our
customers to differentiate therr products using cur IP, and tegether deliver unique
oroducts and businesses

We enable world-class companies to deliver truly Iife enhancing products,
developers to create engaging user experiences, and students and ‘'makers' to
create excring new applications for education and entertamment

Through cur market leading and innovative customers we are in some of the most
icenic and culturally important products of the 21st century

We are intensely refationship focused, working closely with our partners to help
them get successfully to market, ultimately shipping high volumes cf advanced ®
semiconductors contaning our technologies As a royalty-based business, our

partners’ suCcess IS our SUCCess

.........>

.._.__.___._/

‘--t-..ll.lu.-----n.--nn.-c-.-c-llllcl
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We wokk with
thousands of
developers
who support
Imagination-based
platforms with the
most innovative and
exciting content
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Qur key strategic partnerships include numercus AP, operating system,
standards and tools organizations as well as many tier-cne technology
companigs, game engine providers and foundnes

QOur ecosystem communities formalze the ways we work with some partners,
provicing them with benefits and resources such as education, tools, suppart,
introductions to key pariners and access to our best technoiogies and each other

These communities comprise companies large and small that create software or
other products using chips centaining our IP Our customers want ecosystems
surrounding our IP and that 1s exactly what we deliver

We work with thousands of develepers who suppoert Imagination-based platforms
with the most innovative and exciting content as well as with comprehansive
tocls, middleware and support

Increasingly Imagination s partners are working together in communities that
target distinct areas in which we exce! including graphics Linux and Android,
siicon and embedded software design tocls and secunty as well as key markeats
such as mobile, computing home electronics, automotive networking, enterprise
wearables and loT

We continue te expand our ecosystem programmes, to help Imagination’s
licensees and key partners meet and engage with a broad community of
developers, middieware providers, foundres, EDA and tool venders and third
party support teams and provide extensive co-marketing opportunites for product
manufacturers, content developers and semiconductor companies

Openness

With the emergence of new categories of devices and new use cases for existing
devices, there comes a need to support a growing range of operating systems
and new software alcngside new and developing standards This means that
open platforms are critical

imagination has long been an industry leader in delivering supenior
implementations of open standards in fields such as graphics, vidso and
communications This approach ensures that our partners can benefit from
the value of open source communities and open standards bodies, whilst also
leveraging the unigue advantages and extended features of our P solutions

OmniShield, our multi-domain secunity technology 15 the latest example of how
we bring together the unique benefits o our IP with open standards Our MIPS

and PowerVR GPUs are already OmniShield ready, with much more to come as
we roll out OmniShield-ready cores across all our products ines In parallel with
this we are working with the prpl Foundation to define the open APls and open

source communities nseded to access and promote this technology

Trends we have observed this year have further strengthened our opinion
that open APls and ecosystems are the best course for dnving a competitive




electronics industry, enabling the maximum innovation and competitiveness

As an example of cur commiiment to this, Imagination s a founder of the

prpl Foundation, an open-source, community-driven, callaborative, non-profit
foundation targeting and supporting the MIPS architecture - and open to others —
with a focus on enabling next-generabion 'datacentre to device portable software
and virtualized architectures

prpl ts enabling developers to draw on constderabte resources to deliver
applications and devices that share open source iInnovations created by some of
the best minds from member companies to many key MIPS markets

To address open security, the prpl Foundation has created a Secunty PEG

{prpl Engineenng Group) The prpl Security PEG 1s focused on defining a
security roadmap to enabie evolution from today's single secure domain binary’
security solutions to mulii-domamn secunty enforced by full hardware supported
virtualization across all processors (CPUs, GPUs, RPUs, VPUs, NPUs) used

In heterogeneous SoCs and systems built on these technologies including
connected devices, routers and hubs

prpl's next focus will be on open standards for 10T With the emergence of a
dwerse set of devices and fragmented markets for loT, Imagination beleves in

the need for open protocois and APls from server to gateway and from gateway
ta device This is a trend thai was central to many of Imagination’s discussions
with partners this year and 1s an area where Imagination expects to see significant
collaborations developing The prpl Foundation, a leading proponent of an

copen and secure aT, will be championing interoperability and secunty for future
generations of devices, and 1s a key tool for kmagination and its partners to
demonstrate leadership In these 1ssues

% SELTECH

imperas

[ - . - xS Lo vn o a7 M El Aa !

Imagination is a
founder of the prpl
Foundation, an open-
source, community-
driven, collaborative,
non-profit foundation
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We are known

for our smart
solutions to difficult
challenges
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Pillars

Each of our core IP technologies s built on innovatien, whether it 1S innovative
architecture, atgonthms, programmability or simply great design

We are known for our ‘smart’ solutions to difficult challenges, such as the
efficiency and multi-threading of our MIPS processors, the tile-based deferred
rendenng (TBDR) of PowerVR graphics, the disruptive approach of our PowerVR
ray tracing IP the efficient combination of fixed and reconfigurable elements in
PowerVR video, and the highly programmable data-parallel heart of our Ensigma
communications core

With Imagmnation every customer can be unique All of our {P core families
are designad to maximize opportunities for cur customers to differentiate
ther products For example by using some of our extensions to standard
APls, selecting from our wide range of IP cores optimized for different power,
performance and cost metrics, combining different MCU and CPU cores in a
scalable, power-smart SoC, combining customers hardware and/or software
IP with Imagination s, ar integrating our [P into our customers' unique SoC
architectures

Cur business 1s fundamentally driven by cur ability to create a wision of future
technclogies that accurately anticipates the requirements of tomarrow’s consumers

At the heart of our approach we have a simple design philosophy deliver the
maximum performance and efficiency per mW of power consumed, while taking
up the minimum silicon area possible and ensunng the security of ali elements

Connecied Connected Internet of

Home Thirgs Enterprise Infrastructure

Custemer technologies

Domain Solutions £ know-how

Customizable IP platforms FIQWC.I?XQ

Ensigma

oy P i

} Scalable IP |

PowerVR multimedia

The leader in visual IP

Consisting of a comprehensive range of multimedsa |P, from GPUs for graphics
and GPU compute, to vides, imaging and vision PowerVR 15 the technology that




goes from sensor or CPU to screen, delivening stunning images for entertanment,
user interfaces and much more

These cores combine perfectly to create uniquely optimizable IP platforms that can
incorporate customer |P to create highly differentiated, state of the ant solutions for
all forms of wisual challenges from the latest games to smart toT cameras

PowerVR graphics (GPU)

The world’s leading GPU for the connected era

The PowerVR graphics processor (GPU) family leads the market in architectural
and fsature leadership, roadmap breadth and ecosystem, setting the benchmark
for mobile and embedded GPUs PowerVR graphics IP consists of a broad
porticho of the industry’s leading graphics processors, supporting a broad range
of applications

PowerVR enables a powerful, power-efficient and flexible solution for all forms of
graphics processing including 3D and 20 graphics as well as high-performance
GPU compute, alf in the same unified engine

Imagination’s PowerVR graphics technologies are licensed by world-leading
companies to power 1conic products delivering the best in smartphone, tablet
TV and console apps Including the most advanced user interfaces and highest
performance gaming

PowerVR 1s the leading graphics technology because it uses a sophisticated and
unigue architecture PowerVR's efficiency through tile-based deferred rendenng
(TBDR) ensuras the lowest possible bandwidth usage and the lowest amount of
processing cycles per task, and all of this leads to tugh performance efficiency
and the lowest power consumption per frame, outperforming other soluticns

PowerVR enables
a powerful,
power-efficient
and flexible
solution for all
forms of graphics
processing

Strategic report
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Imagination’s
PowerVR ray
tracing technology
represents the next
step in graphics
technology
evolution
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PowerVR ray tracing

Transformfng the state-of-the-art in mobile graphics

Imagmnation s forthceming PowerVR "Wizard' ray tracing products represent the
next significant revolution N graphics technology

PowerVR Wzard ray tracing graphics IP cores raise the bar for ray traced
graphics to a dramatic new level, delivenng astocrmishing realism and performance
at mobile power budgets for the first time

PowerVR ray tracing will enable more immersive games and apps with real-life
dynamic ighting models that enable advanced ighting effects, dynamic soft
shadows, and lifelike reflections and fransparencies, previousty unachievable in a
mohbile form factor PowerVR ray tracing 1P 15 highly scalable, making it disruptive
te many other markets beyond mchile

[ N

PowerVR video
Making better pixels

PowerVR wvideo IP addresses video cedec needs for customers 1n a diverse
range of applications Our differentiated, multi-standard approach has made
PowerVR videc the most widely deployed video codec IP technclogy shipping
today Our flexible video architecture addresses a wide range of applications
including loT, wearables, ADAS (Advanced Driver Assistance Systems) mobile
devices and cameras




|
By using PowerVR video decoders, our customers are able 1o bulld the efficient
decoding required for up to 4K broadcasts into therr silicon today They can also
deliver better mage qualty using the Industry’s first complete IP cores with 10-bit
colour depth support throughout Multi-standard and multi-stream capabilities are N
standard acrcss the range
With PowerVR video encoders, our partners can add a wide range of features ’
and solutions, such as deliver the highest possible gualty for prosumer wdeo and
entry-level broadcast recording, or the highest performance low cost consumer-
grade camera, save costs with the ability to record and store more video content
in less memory space, reduce upload bandwidth and power reguired to access Our innovative
cloud video hosting services, minimize the required transmission bandwidth for
video conferencing/streaming on a mobile device, enable high-qualty, low-latency PowerVR Raptor
mirroring for video games on a TV from a mobile device or tablet in real me or cores take camera-
ensure the low latency needed for safety critical applications like ADAS b ase d lm a g e

PowerVR vision processing to the
next ievel

The evolution of camera vision

Our innovatwe PowerVR Raptor cores are low-power, highly-configurable camera
image signal processar {(ISP) cores designed for SoC integration that take camera-
based image processing to the next level

Vision-aware technologies are Increasingly mcorporated in smartphones loT
devices, automotive, robotics, and other products Thus year also confirmed

the re-emergence of virtual reality (VR) and a growing interest In augmented
reality {AR) To create a new breed of SoCs that support smart computer vision,
computatonal photography and new user and social expenences, our customers
need processing solutions that go beyond CPU/DSP ¢ores to deliver sustained
video-rate processing of HD content

PowerVR vision platforms are unique in that they work with Imagination's other
PowerVR graphics and video cores, as well as still image encoders and decoders,
to form a complete integrated vision platform that saves power and bandw:dth
for today's camera applicattons, and can provide the basis for next-generation
context-aware applications such as facial and gesiure recognition

Strategic report
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MIPS architecture
is the industry’s
most efficient
RISC architecture,
delivering the
best performance
and lowest power
consumption
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32-bit embedded
microcontrollers

MIPS processors (CPU)

The leading alternative mainstream CPU |IP

The MIPS family of CPU IP 1s a comprehensive portfolio of low-power, high-
performance 32/64-bit processor architectures and cores, ranging from the
ultimate high-performance cores for high-end applications procassors down to
extremely small cores for deeply embedded microcontrollers

With a strong position in home entertainment, embedded, and networking
preducts and a growing position in mobile, wearable and loT devicas MIPS CPUs
power bilions of products worldwide and are supported by a broad ecosystem of
commercial and cpen source software, operating systems and tools

Based on a hentage built over mare than three decades of constant innovation
Imagination’s MIPS architecture is the industry’s most efficient RISC architecturs,
dalvering the best performance and lowest power consumption in a given siicen
area

SoC designers can use this efficiency advantage for significant cost and power
savings, or to iImplement additional cores to deliver a performance advantage in
the same power, thermal and area budget

MIPS cores deliver scalable performance through muiti-threading multi-core
and multi-cluster coherent processing The newest MIPS Warnor family of
CPUs includes 32-bit and 64-bit vanants with a focus on supenor performance
efficiency across the range Bulding on the true 32-bit and 64-bit nstruction set
compatibiity of MIPS Warrior cores prowide binary compatbility from the entry-
level tc the high-end

64-bit servers and ...and everything
infrastructure processors in-between




The cores come in three classes of performance and features

Warrior M-class - entry-level ultra low power and ultra small cores for
embedded and microcontroller applications

Warrior 1-class — highly scalable mid-range, feature-rich cores for mainstream
Linux and Android devices

Warrior P-class - high-performance cores for demanding applications

With around five billon MIPS-based products already shipped, and many
universities and schools around the world teaching CPU architecture using MIPS
as tharr preferred platform, MIPS 1s truly the ideal CPU for tomorrow's SoCs, from
the highest-performance mohile applications processars to the lowest power
connected Sensor processors

Ensigma communications

Delivering on-chip efficiency in a connected world
Ensigma connectivity, communications and networking IP can, singly or in
combination solve the fundamental problems that plague connected devicas

* How do | bnng communications on-chip ?

* How do | geliver the range of connectmty standards required by almost all
dewvices today - and tomorrow?

Teday's consumers expect to be connected wherever they go, with whatever
device they choose Ensigma blends programmable and fixed function blocks to
deliver a family of highly scalable multi-standard connectivity platforms that offer
exgeptional performance as well as ocutstanaing silicon efficiency

S d@eTITNLLA L T h e

Today’s connected
devices are moving
away from using
separate wireless
combo chips
toward integrating
connectivity

Strateqic report
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Ensigma radio processor (RPU)

Uniguely flexible communications processor

Our award winning Ensigma programmable radio processing units (RPUs) address
the ever-growing chalienge of preliferating broadcast and connectivity standards
by supporting them all on a single engine, and enabiing them to be ntegrated
onto SoCs for the lowest possible system cost

Trachitionally, racdie, TV, Wi-Fi and Bluetooth used to have therr own chipsets but,
as the number of standards tc be supported continues 1o ncrease, this approach
becomaes less cost-effective and more power hungry Today's connected

devices are moving away from using separate wireless combo chips towards
ntegrating connectivity ontc the main application processor as companies look
to reduce power, footprint and bill-of-matenals With therr focus on delivening high
performance within an ultra-low power envelope, Imagination's Ensigma BPUs
can enable companies seeking to make this disruptive leap

Ensigma Whisper 15 a flexible ulira-low power sensor and cloud connectivity

IP farmily, designed speaifically to enable the integration of low power
communications in SoCs targeting wearables, 10T and other connected devices
that require exceptional battery ife and low cost points

The Ensigma Explorer RPU family 1 focused on enabling high-performance on-
chip communications with Wi-Fi and Blusteoth connectivity, as well as global DTV,
digital radio, and FM receiver capabilities

Wi,
Ensigma Explorer Blustooth

RPY Classic,
TV, Radio

Bluetoath LE
GPS. Zighon

FlowCloud

Enhancing devices with ¢cloud based services

FlowCioud 15 a wids range of cloud-based connected device services It provides
a comprehensive, secure and appiication-independent platform tc enable rapid
construction, management and deployment of digital services

This portfoho of cloeud connectivity technologies enables consumer, industnal
and embedded products to be fully cloud-connected With FlowCloud, users




can construct highly optimized device-to-cloud solutions for a wide range of OUI' IP SOlUtiOﬂS are
applications, including secunty, health monitonng energy management, content

delvery and much mere complemented by
FlowCloud works brilliantly with cur Ensigma RPU and MIPS CPU cores to deliver a wide pOﬂ'fOllO of
conrnected platforms for loT software driverS,
FlowCloud technofogy minimizes the resources required tc make a product fully developer tOOlS and
connected, bringing together people, devices and services In a platform for easily .

bulding connsacted applcations and businesses extensive market
FlowCloud technology features include device and user managesment, and tQChnc}Iogy'
asynchronous messaging services, event logging, data storage facilities, secure focused ecosystems

{ransactions and electronic payment senaces, and much more Qur OmniShield
secunty technoiogy and FlowCloud will combine te provide a completely secure
solution for connected platforms, from device to cloud

Platforms

Qur siicon and software intellectual property sclutions for systems-on-chip
are complemented by a wide portfoiio of software drnivers, developer tools and
extensive market and technology-focused ecosystems

Unlke some IP companes, we think from the chip to the system Our close
interaction with leading consumer electronics companies, and our own consumer
brands such as Pure, Flow, Creater and Caskeaid, give us an insight into
consumer thinking and market demand that helps us identify and create the night
technologies for the future

Differentiated
products

Pre-verifisud kos

PowerVR visien

MIPS progessors

£
£
~
4
H
£
El

Ensij
communigations

e R N PRV I I

And 1t 1s the success and respect for those technologies that has won us loyal
support from a wide community of ‘movers and shakers’ in the technology world

For examgle, Imagination understands that a smart healthcare technology
company needs to understand how their medical sensors work and what

Strategic report




While we innovate
in new processor
architectures and
their delivery, our
customers are free
to create new user
experiences
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algonthms are needed to extract that data and usefuily apply it as well as the
logistic and legal complexities of deploying a complete wireless system in existing
hospitals But there s no point in that company spending time worrying about the
processor or connectivity technologies used when they could be focused on the
areas where their specialist domain knowledge I1s most valuabte

Imagmation 1s there to supply the processor connectmvity and cloud technologies
on which that company can build its innovative healthcare application

For companies seeking to produce SoCs for extremely broad and demanding
markets, such as mobile or computing, the range of domain knowledge and
applications required will be larger but the fundamental principle 1s the same
Such companies deliver value best by focusing on the platform they deliver rather
than on the SoC bullding blocks on which that platiorm rests

While we innovate in new processor architectures and their delivery, our
customers are free to create new user experiences, develop new markets and
buld strong content and ecosystem propositions

The SoCs that power everything in the consumer and embedded electronics
space can be constructed from combinaticns of our urique portfolio of 1P cores
Qur IP platforms help customers achieve the highest performance at lowest
power consumption and sihcon area by making full use of our Intimate knowledge
of each block and how they work together efficiently No one else in our industry
has this unigue capability acress such a broad range of applications

Examples of our IP platforms include

Vision IP platform — Our vision platform 1s a complete, integrated vision platform
combining GPU, video and vision cores, that saves power and bandwidth for
today's camera applications, and can provide the basis for next-generation
context-aware applications such as facial and gesiure recognition augmented
reality and more

Connected processor IP platform - Imagination’s connected processor
platform combings MIPS processaor, Engsigma connectity and FlowCloud platform
to deliver a new class of embedded Connected Processor solutions that will
power an nternet-everywhere generation of consumer electronics

Caskeid audio IP platform — Our umgque audio IP platform contains key
technologies needed to build and differentiate high qualty audio systems From
audio engine to Wi-Fi connectivity patented software and the codecs in-between,
this platform delivers cutstanding wireless stereo, multiroom and multi-channel
playback that sounds as good as a wired system Our Caskeid solution combines
multipie icensabie technologies, bulding on MIPS CPU and Ensigma RPLU core IP,
to deliver a total IP solution powenng the uttimate audio expenence




Security

Secunty s fast becoming one of the most significant differentiators for the future
of the electrenics industry

While PPA (Power Performance and Area) remans a key metric for siicon IP, today
secunty — across every part of the SoC, including the fabric — is an important area
where there 1s a rapialy growing demand from OEMs and operators for security
solubens addressing the new era of multi-application piatforms

Connected products must increasingly be designed to support numerous

separate applications, varicus content sources, and n-the-field software updates |maginati0n’5 new
from service providers and operatars, alt while ensunng privacy and data OmmShle!d Security
protection Applications must be effectively and relably 1solated from each other .

as well as protected from non-secure applcations while stili meeting required techno!ogy IS

levels of functionality performance cost and power consumption Today's designed to provide

secunty solutions simply don t address this .
P EmeY e the industry’s most

Imagnation’s new OmniShield secunty technology 1s designed to provide the

Indlustry’s most scalable and secure solutions for protection of next-gengration Scalable and secure
ScCs Imagination 1s ensunng that custermers SoCs and OEMs' products are solutions

designed for security, reliability and dynamic software management as use

models and services evolve across a wide range of connected dewvices such as

internet of Things (loT), gateway routers, IPTV, mobile and automotive

a a

Rich operating syetem
oparating
@ 'gﬁ & wel 09 systemn

Trusted Hypervisor

Hardware Virtulization

MIPS PowerVR PowerVR PowerVR PowerVR
CPU GPU RPU Vision Vision

Strategic report | 23




24

We take the initiative
to getinside

how consumers
think about and
experience new
technology
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Today s leading SoCs are heterogeneous, meaning they are enabled by
specahzed precassors for functions such as CPU, GPU, video, and connectmty
In heterogeneous architectures, applcaticn data and resources will be shared
between the CPU and other processors in the system This means that those
processors will now ace the same level of exposure as the CPU, and must be
given the same level of protection - and currently there 1s no solution 1n the market
today that addresses this secunty challenge In its entirety OmmShield addresses
this by protacting alt of the processors in an SoC — including the CPU, GPU and
other processors and hardware engines — using hardware-enforced securnty
based on a well-known processor technology called Virualization

OmniShield creates multiple secure domains, where each secure/non-secure
applcation/operating system can operate independently In 1ts own separate
environment For example secure processes such as DRM and payment systems
can ceexist with non-secure processes such as gaming and web browsing This
muki-domain separation architecture not only ensures secunty and reliability, but
also eases development and deployment of applicaticns and services

Markets

mabile phanes

consumer multimadia automotive

enterprise internat of things waarables

Imagination understands market trends and helps our pariners navigate the
Increasing convergence between traditonally separate markets

We focus on key market segments where technology 1s a driver This translates
nto a wide array of markets ncluding mobile phonegs mobile computing, home
electronics, handheld multimeda automotive networking, wearables and Internet
of Things, {including key loT areas such as healih, smart energy and videc and
audio-based analytics)

And because magination is focused on platforms and solutions, we takes
the nitiative 10 get inside how consumers think about and experience new




[ —————

technology Increasingly, consumers expect tc be able to access the broad range
of media and features they use every day no matter what device they are using
This ‘convergence’ means that markets increasingly share common requirements
- requirerments fulfilled by our IP pillars

Comprehensive support

We provide support for all stages of SaC and product development We have
an extensive range of complementary technology offerings that support our
customers’ ScC designs and help them succeed

A keay part of this 1s IMGworks which helps our customers SoC and software
design teams, providing siicon design services, software Integration services and
support expertise to provide a fast and low-nisk path to production

This year we introduced IMGsystems which enables our partners and ecosystem
both with Creator boards featunng our technologies and our FlowCloud services
IMGsystermns will enable Imagination partners ta achieve fast tme to market in new
areas of connected technology and access the most advanced Imagmation IP
without requinng extensive internal engineennyg resources

More than B2B

Unlike other IP companies we think atbout the solutions consumer markeats
require, and find ways to help our customers leverage cur technologies to
differentiate consumer products

By developing consumer product brands, ke Pure and Creator and technology
B2C brands, Ike Casheid and ClearCall, we promote the benefits of our
technology to consumers and help our CEM partners clearly articulate the unique
value of ther Imagination 1P enabled products

Pure

Where innovation and consumers meet

Pure 1s Imaginaticn's consumer electronics (CE) division, creating products built
on the technologies developed by our technology dvision Pure help keep us
solutions-focused with fust-hand expenence of getting complex products to
volume production

Pure raises Imagination’s engagement and profile with censumers, helping us to
understand deeply every aspect of how to get technotogy to consumers, including
the retall supply chain dynamics, the latest consumer product trends, and how

to communicate effectively with consumers and retatlers This experience 1S a
significant part of what sets Imagination apart from other IP supplers

Fure uses chips and technologies from Imagination's partners pathfinding in
new markets, promoting the capahilities of our P and allowing us to expenence

We provide
support for all
stages of SoC
and product
development

\
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Creator Ci20, is an
affordable micro-
computer that runs
Linux and Android
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market and technology conditions as OEMs and consumers do Through Pure
we understand fully the OEM expenence, which helps us make better icensabie
technologies

Pure helps to drive our technology business acting as a showcase for our IP It
has been key to rasing the profile and interest in our Wi-Fi, processor and cloud
connectivity technelogies as well as the Casked audio platform

Pure DARB digital radios showcase cur Ensigma recever technology, while its
Jongo wireless speakers showcase both Ensigma and FlowCloud technology as
well as the Caskerd mulbrcom streaming audic expearence

Pure 15 also a vehicle to spearhead our strategic partnerships in the worlds of
entertainment and content with companies such as Onkyo, Madia-Saturn, 7digital
and Universal Music Group

Pure has significantly broadened its market reach to now include broadcast
radio, In-car radio and audio and multroom and internet connected audio

Thanks to Pure Imagination s a leading suppler of DAB radio technologies and
a key player in the ongoing transformation of music istening with our wireless
multirocm systems and Caskeid technology

Creator

Performance platforms for developers, makers and students

The Creator range 1s designed to fulfil the growing interest within a broad
spectrum of acaderic, professicnal and hobbyist developer communitigs for
affordable, fully featured development platforms

Imagination’s Creator development board family enables open source developers
the maker community system integrators and cthers to create a wide range of
applications and projects, ranging from home automation and gaming to wireless
multmedia streaming

The first board i the farmily, Creator C120, 1s an affordable micro-computer that
runs Linux and Android and help developers create applications for fast-growing
rarkets such as 10T, wearables mebile and gaming Creator Ci20 includes two
essential ultra-low power technologies from Imagination a dual-core MIPS32 CPU
{central processing unit) and a PowerVR SGX540 GPLU (graphics processor)

Creator C120 has been designed for people who want high performance and
advanced features for therr development projects and to create access at the
software and harcware level to allow creatiity to come to the fore




Caskeid

The ultimate platform for wireless multiroom and multi-channel audio
Caskeid 1s a breakthrough in technology for wireless audio systems
From audio engine to Wi-Fi connectivity, patented software and the codecs in-

between, Caskeid forms the platform that delivers outstanding wireless sterec
multiroom and multi-channel playback that sounds as good as a wired system

Caskeid 1$ the consumer expressicen of our audio platform and contans all the key
technologies needed to buld and differentiate high quality audio systems

Caskeid 1s content agnostic It works with, and enhances all the maor high
gualty wireless audic connectivity protocols including Apple Airplay, Google Cast
for Audio and Spotify Connect as well as multichannel technologies from Dolby
and others

(@
-~

Caskeid

ClearCall and FlowTalk

High quality voice and video VolP

Imagination’s ClearCall range of licensable technologies includes everything
needed to mplement high-quality, power-eficient enhanced WebRTC,

Voice over IP and LTE (MolP. VoLTE), Voice and Video over IP (VolP} and Rich
Communications Suite (RCS 5 0) for muti-mode wireless and wireline devices

Our ClearMediaRTC media engine 15 designed to deliver a new level of quality

to companies bulding natwe or browser-based voice and video conferencing
services based on WebRTC With our advanced algorithms encapsulated in an
off-the-shelf product we are enabling our customers to dramatically improve the
WebRTC user expenence

ClearCall IP 15 complemented by the FlowTalk service, which enables customizable,
robust high-quality Android/iOS VolP clients

ClearCall IP products and technologes are already deployed in milllons of devices

Caskeid is a
breakthrough in
technology for
wireless audio
systems
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Through MIPSfpga,
Imagination is
transforming

CPU architecture
education in
universities around
the globe
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Communities
Education

Imagination believes there are thrae fundamental reasons why we must engage
with academia

Influence — to help guide future generations
Research - to discover new ideas
Growth — to recruit the bnghtest talent

We give practical help to academics around the world so they can use our
technologies in courses and student projects Cur new Imagination University
Programme ((UP) was launched this year to further develop the excellent
relationships with academia we have built over many years Around the world,
from China to the US and all across Europe, the IUP focuses on pramoting MIPS
PowerVR, Ensigma and FlowCloud intc universities IUP fully integrates with our
IDP {imagination Developer Programme) enabling us to engage with members
night through their careers

A new IUP website has been launched, gving students a coherent summary of
boards software, teaching matenals, bocks and support available

Graduates

Imaginaticn’s recruitment team runs a graduate recruitment programme, which
targets a vansty of universities and colleges throughout the UK Having developed
strong relationships with a number of universities including Scuthampton, Impenal
College London, Surrey, Bristol and Manchester the programme 15 already
achieving great depth

We are an active sponsor of the UK Electronic Skills Foundation (UKESF) where
we recruit and sponsor scholars every year VWe sponsor a student each year
under UKESF, as well as sponsonng PhD, Master and undergraduate projects

A vanety of events are alsc done on site at Imagination including developer days,
open days democ rcom tours and more As a direct result of all 100+ activities we do
In conunction with universihes and students every year we secure around 40 interns
gach year along with a high number of divect graduate applications and offers

MIPSfpga

This year Imagination has revelutionizes CPU architecture education with the
MIPSfpga programme which provides free and open access to a modern
MIPS CPU

Through MIPSipga, Imagination 1s transforming CPU architecture education in
universives around the globs by offenng them fres and open access to a fully-
validated, current generation MIPS CPU complemented by a complete teaching
package written by leading academics




The MIPS architecture was onginally developed at Stanford University in the earty
1980s It has been the teaching architecture of choice for decades because of its
elegant true RISC design

MIPSfpga 1s already running in several academic institutions iIncluding Harvey
Mudd College, Impenal College Londen, University College London {UCL), and the
University of Nevada, Las Vegas (UNLV)

Schools

We have also been increasing science, technology engineerng and maths (STEM)
actvities at school leve!l over the last few years prowviding talks and attending
career fairs Many schools visit Imagnation to get an nsight nte the weork we do
We also have involvemant with other STEM schemes including Go4SET and The
Brilkant Club, where we have sponsored a maths and physics char

Government

Imagination believes that it 1s essential that the UK does everything possible to
strengthen Its strategic posttion on the world stage, achieve scale and participate
In every stage of the value chan Through our interactions with government in
the UK we are creating opportuniies for the UK efectronic systems community,
government, and acaderma to work together to make a substantive and
sustainable difference to the UK's global competitiveness

As well as continuing to play a key role in ESCO {Electronic Systerms Community)
Imagination has a wide range of touch-points with government prowiding advice
on policy, influencing change, supporting governmental organizations, such as UK
Trade & Investment {UKTI), the National Microelectronics Institute (NMI), TechUK,
and the International Electrotechnical Commission (EC), as well as working
closely with the Department for Business Innovation & Skills (BIS)

Culture

At Imagination we want to succeed and make a real difference We are exiremely
proud of what we do Our success ensures that we can do the things we want to
do and care about

The success of a company like curs relies in major part on 1ts employees and we
work to create a culture that promotes nnovation and staff retention

We have over 40 pationalties working for Imagination and we strive to create a
welcoming cross-cuktural workplace

Within our offices, sports and social activities expand work into a broader social
expenience We support charity and our local communities, and we reward
employees who do the same Benefits for staff are seen as some of the best in
the industry

The success of a
company like ours
relies in major part
on its employees
and we work to
create a culture that
promotes innovation
and staff retention
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Imagination

has over 1,700
employees across
more than a dozen
countries
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As a result of our nurturing of an Imagination culture we have staff that are
customer focused, committed, responsible, agile, smart and, most importantly,
fixatad on the company’s succass

Giobal

Established in the UK in 1985, Imaginaticn has a long history as an IP prowider,
with partners amongst the world s top-20 semiconductor and OEM companies
We are a Briish company with a world cutiook

Imagination has over 1,700 employees (May 2015), and growing, across more
than a dozen countnes

Cur headquarters and pnmary R&D base 1s n Kings Langley {near London) with
major R&D centres across the UK as welk as in Eurcpe, USA, China and India

We keep close to our technology customers and pariners with sales and support
offices worlgwide

Qur growing support and sales teams are locatad in all our key regional markets
1o ensure that customers always have access to experts who speak ther
language in their time zone Our R&D centras are N strong technology regions,
which offer highly developed skills and academic excellence

Each year we run a wide range of our cwn events as well as attending major
trade shows such as CES and MWC, reaching thousands of people around the
world Our Imagination Executive Events bring together key influencers in our core
terntories while cur Imagination Summit events senes now reaches six cities In
the USA Japan, China and Tawan and delivers an in-depth confersnce covering
Imagination and our partners




iy ﬁ=lhﬁfgﬂh€§§{ i ﬁ ;$!1?§

tak gn
R T

HHZ?E ’3;;3}?;?: ;é;';ﬁi o, 5;§3i| iigi ii i !!ESi,‘d

:isih, ;H,xi !;,

e

i J’f‘s'i:iiiil’i; ::E&;i
”ii'!.ul iiiillii ;iﬁ;.q iiii :ig
’ Ei‘ié’ £ ““!xi EEI;’!:,t ;lii!

51!!! ;}E i ii ih!i!
ﬁ;ikislii l!i!; lhliilijil!;‘;

! uﬂ wgg “l it
“m ‘W¥MW%1 Lﬁ ah ﬁw%
%h h{i i ,E !:;? i ﬁii‘i

b ”i g,
i Eis!ng’i!;i, 1 M
¢ §F!I!i!l]f i;!l li i, g; l
ui, HiH l; I
i ; Hsli} g:;:;.= i
5 ugsﬁ%T hﬁﬂﬁw
i H
i i }i!,i i)
!'f !éhlgis :,,§§§’£
Ei‘i* Ry
by ii el !
hhﬁh;«“m
it o TRV
15625y :,!
.m% ,¢
:55:
! %ﬁwsgﬁh?
: wmﬁ;ﬁuy,
isff’{!ﬁ:ﬁ B EE’E!??,E?; b
5!;5!:?;;;;1: g i
,s 3 :E,‘Eih ]
Lt
;%ﬁé!i:;:;;égL;;P
231
13
%ﬁ
By
H E
L .
2= Headquarters
a ge Kings Langley
0O _poooo
no @ogog
Qo ocoaog
0 goBpoo

C oooopeouoong

C o0pooooooaan

v EREEREED ],

oona@REpEaaaQ
jeleYcisirleluiaiafaie]
oOQRARRODD
coEonan
pRooooooaa
O Onoooooog
0O gognoooo
0 0o00o0000n
QOO @§g0pOeoo

nodao ood poogg
pongao pooog
go gsz O O8000G00

na o aoanag
atefu) Fclslsfe)
aopognan
[ ocroongooon
ooooooongaaoa
goooooogoont oo
oaBnAZGO00aNGooOn
0oo0DonoanooGon
oconnonadcOoaaacoo
nEo@EganuoE ann
0 @namogoodooun
osponoaconn
DEOGESER0a0000
wletslalelels oisfsl=loTs!
ooo oo o
coao
o

ww?W!s it
Hi. dy f’%i iﬁ‘ﬁ fﬁi 5%;;
%%%%?ﬁ

3
i

£
iigij
g

ﬁ%ﬁ@h@?

uﬁﬁ;q@
3
i =s,;=!;= i

siiigsfgéé i o

%Fﬂi #

R&D
Australia
China

Inchia

New Zealand
Poland
Sweden

UK

us

Gy 211

-{E ’h S';E:i z!ﬂ‘: 3 ix;!: fags,
'E
il

I Efnizgix

!5ii5l"g5!5=i: :ﬁ.s sz;’i, f ’i
méé*ﬁﬁiﬁw- @
5 :si b ﬂi:}‘ li‘:x
13|§§§ E; ‘iih iy ‘i i

#m;

q! ;ﬂisiészizi x;fi 'E; ’:3:: -

i‘ig;i X 5’?5 x 55‘ if’i;tsési e s
S fi;u:'z;-s,,l,ls;:iﬁs;! ls;=s:=!§!i:=§;€s§5!.5siisi:gzl* i
wpsmfﬁﬁww el
if’l;in iiil;iiggasih i;‘:iii! l{‘

gsi i i ’*l,=!345;x;éiii i iia?f !ﬁ‘
ety

)

=='h§i"s Sl o =s§ g |
is 14} |

'Eid

i)

:;J- r’

’;’Uk'lﬂ‘:%’k!h’: 1=y
[ !is ¥ nznhg;iii'
43 it ey el
ot B Sty E?“”h’i ol
- =i, =!’Eiii-=

ir
k3 #*
&

Sales
China
France
Gemany
Israel
lialy
Japan
South Karea
Tawan
UK

us

[EXRRERNNEY )

Strategic report | 31

T



Chief Executive’s review

Sir Hossein Yassaie
Chief Executive
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Overview

Imagination has continued to explot and Innovate in its three fundamental
siicon IP families PowerVR multimadia, MIPS processors, and Ensigma
communications The three IP familes are central to the Group’s overall strategy
and they

s offer a strong and comprehensive range of IP-level products that address each
key and specific area very well and

» gnable sclunon-centnc IP platforms that can efficiently address all key existing
and new markets

FY15 saw a year of robust lcensing activity acress all three IP families, in diverse
markets from Internet of Things {lcT) and wearables, through mobile, Digital TV,
and automotive to networking and enterpnse segmenits, with 121 licenses signed
In the year (2014 115)

Significantly, for both PowerVR and MIPS technclogies, new and strategic
multi-year deals with high volume/tier-cne mobile players were concluded These
new agreaments rererate the continued strength of PowerVR graphics and
demonstrate the accelerating design-win traction for MIPS 0 this hugh volume
market These design-wins will further drive the unit shipment growth of these IP
farnilies in the medium term as the relevant partners complete their SoC designs
and begn shipment The momentum of Ensigma communications adoption
continued during the year driven by demana to integrate such functions in SoCs

Another key trend during the year was the substantial growth compared to

the previaus year, of multi-IP and IP platform engagements with partners The
emerging demand for a sclution-centnic 1P modsl s a clear industry trend,

which 1s drniven by the overall supply-chain evolution Our strategy to both take
advantage of the unique strength and leadership of each of our technologies and
also address the overall changing needs of the market towards solution-centric
offerings 18 both effective and relevant

Curing the vear we launched PowerVR Series? which has seen strong hcensing
Far the first tme we launched cares across the full performance range from the
outset and we have seen significant licensing of both the high performance XT
and the area and power optimized XE cores Together these products cover all
marksts from entry level smartphone through performance mobile, HD and UHD
TVs and STBs to very high-end solutions requinng in excess of 1TeraFlop (TFLOP)
processing capabilities

The progress with MIPS continues with strong ficensing as well as a record year of
unit stupments  The positive customer response to the MIPS coffenng 1s evidenced
by more than 100 licenses being signed since the acquisition This recognizes
beth the need for choice of processor |P in the market, but also the unique
features provided by the MIPS product range  Further icensing of the Warmor
family of products together with the first customers now shipping products based




on the Warrior family Jllustrate the progress made in the last two years The record
shipments show the confidence of the customer base and the growth potential In
the markets that MIPS targets

The customer base for the Ensigma communications technology continues to
develop steadily with many more customers evaluating this disruptive technology
New customers have started shipping products using Ensigma IP with more to
follow

Following the refocus of the Pure business towards the end of FY14 which
ncluded narrowing both product Ines and geographical presence, we have
started to see mprovements in the underlying perfermance of the business in

its key marhets Additicnal action has been taken to further refine this focus, In
particular the way in which the music service 15 delivered, and this will dnive further
mprovement i the profitability of this division

Tha rate of nvestment in group-wide B&D has been reduced as the important
scaling actvities have now been completed We continue to invest in R&D to drive
the future growth of the busingss but this INvestment s growing at a lower rate

than expeanenced over the last few years, as we look to drive expansion of the srraisestriceannaes sene
operating margin The Groupn's capital nvestrment programme continued with the Ry trsrerassassaras
final phase of the three-phase Kings Langley redevelopment now in progress and setesrassesnicsaendt
due for completion dunng FY16 The value of assets created by this programme ...,- ............. .
aver the last four years 1s now In excess of £60m @ versunavanes

Financial Review

Revenue

Group revenue for the perod ending 30 Apni 2015 increased by 4% t0 €177 Om
(2014 £170 8m)

Licensing revenue increased 2% to £33 Om (2014 £38 3m) The high levels of
licensing activity atso helped to increase the licensing backlog during the year

Rovyalty revenue increased by 9% to £118 9m (2014 £109 Om) Partners’ chip
shipments (excluding MIPS) were stable at 530m (2014 530m) units MiPS
partner shipments mereased by 9% to 797m units (2014 729m) The average
royalty rate, excluding MIPS, increased due t0 a better mix

Following the refocus of the Pure division last year, it has been trading n a
reduced number of termicries and acress a tighter product set As a result revenue
was down on previous years at £18 4m (2014 £23 2m)

While there were significant movements in the sterling/doltar rate during the year,
overall the average dollar rate was not matenally chfferent in FY15 compared
with FY14
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Profit and operating expenses

Group gross profit was up 6% to £159 3m (2014 €150 4m) with overall gross
margin increasing to 890% (2014 88%)

Underlying Group operating expenses were tightly controlled growing at a lower
rate than previous years and were £138 2m (2014 £126 4m)

Underlying expenses are those expenses incurred before calculating adjusted
operating profit and exclude

* non-cash share-based incentives charge of £12 0m (2014 £13 2m)
¢ amortization of intangibles from acquisitions of £9 1m (2014 £8 Bm),
« mpairment of iInvestments of £5 1m (2014 £2 6m),

* gain on investments of £nil (2014 £0 3m),

» acquisiticn related costs of £1 4m (2014 €1 3m},

& onerous suppher contract provision of £2 5m (2014 £nil),

* Group restructuning costs of £0 7m {2012 £0 4m),

= acredi relating to the release of a customer contract obligation of £0 8m
(2014 £nil), and

* acredit relating to releases of contingent acquisition consideration of £0 4m
{2014 £1 6m)

Detalls of how the adjusting cperating items listed above are apportioned betweean
Research and Development expenses (£18 1m 2014 £18 5m} anc Sales and
Adminstrative expenses (£17 5m 2014 £5 6m) are caontaned in note 2

Adjusted operating profit” for the Technology business was £27 1m (2014
£31 4m) The adjusted net operating margin for the technology business was
17% (2014 21%)

For Pure the revised focus resutted In a lower adjusted operating loss of £6 Om
{2014 loss £7 4my This reflects the benefit from the cost reduction activities
undertaken in FY 14 offsetiing the reduction In gross margin resulting from the
lower revenue

Earnings and taxation
The Group’s adjusted operating profit® was £21 1m (2014 £24 Om) The reported
operatng loss was £8 5m (2014 €0 1m)

Net tax was a charge of £1 1m (2014 cradit £1 1m} The deferred tax asset
on the Group balance sheet to be utiized aganst future UK profits 1s €4 9m
{2014 £4 9m)

The Group's adjusted earnings per share was 6 3p (2014 8 1p) The Groups
reported loss per shara 1s 4 Sp (2014 earmngs of 0 3p)




Balance sheet
Goodwill at 30 April 2015 was £59 8m (2014 £59 8m)

The investrment balance reduced to £19 9m (2014 £21 1m), reflecting the
movement N share prices of the publicly traded investments and a provision
against the carryng value of Orca, offsetting the new investment in Atomos

Property, plant and equipment was £68 0m (2014 £63 6m) reflecting the capital
expenditure o1 £12 2m (2014 £22 3m) less depreciation of £6 7m (2014 £4 4m)
The primary element of the capital expenditure 1s the redevelopment of the
Group's preperty facilities in Kings Langley

Trade and other recevables were £81 8m (2014 £53 8m) The maorty of the
increase 15 due to the timing of royalty recerpts from customers

Trade and other payables were £40 6m (2014 £37 5m)
Corporation tax payable was £0 5m (2014 £0 2m)

Interest bearing loans and borrowings were £29 9m (2014 €24 3m} The Increase
relates to the short term utihization of the Revolving Credit Facility at the end of
the year

The deferred tax hability was £15 Om {2014 £17 1m)

Cash generated from operations before movernents in working capital was
£24 7m (2014 £27 9my)

The cash balance decreased to £2 7m dunng the year (2014 £19 2m) pnmanly
due to royalty receipts for the March 2015 quarter being receved just after 30
April, whareas in 2014 there were significant amounts recevad just before 30
April At the year end Group net debt was £27 2m (2014 £50m)

* Adjusted profit 15 used by management to measure the performance of the
business year on year by exciuding non-recurnng items (items which typically da
not occur every year), items relating to acquisittons and investments, non-cash
based share incentive charges, and amortization of ntangible assets acquired
from acquisitions The recanciliation from reported results to adjusted results 1s set
out in note 2

Technology Business

Licensing

» Acceleration of icensing n the second half of the year resulting in recard
licensing revenueas

& 121 licenses including 52 for PowerVR multimedia, 47 for MIPS CPU, 15 for
Ensigma comms and 7 System-tevel/support IP {including FlowCloud VolPF,
and Caskeid)
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+ Significant agreements with over 40 partners during the year including Al
Atomos, Avage, Broadcom, Celeno Elvees, Fujitsu, HiSiicon, Ineda, InfoTM,
Intel JCI, Lantg Loongson, MediaTek Pioneger, Renesas Sigma, Spreadtrum,
Texas Instruments Toshiba, Toumaz and Yokogawa

* Licenses signed for new IP across all key IP families (including Sernes? GPU,
Warmmor MIPS cores and Ensigma RPU/NPU)

* New, significant and strategically important lcensing deals with high volume/
tier-one mobile players for both PowerVR graphics and MIPS processors

* |ncreasing number of licenses signed involving IP from multiple families There 1s
a growing and general irend towards demand for IP sub-systems or solutions
combining mult:ple IP cores, an aspect that our strategy i1s designed to fully
suppart

Partner chip shipments and SoC design-wins
* Pariner chip unit shipments grew to 1,327m units (2014 1,259m)

* Non-MIPS shipments were stable at 530m (2014 530m) We have seen an
increasing proportion of shipments using Senest graphics technology and
given the design wins achieved dunng the year we expect this ta continue
to grow

= MIPS shipments increased strongly to ther highest annual level of 797m units
(2014 729m)

¢ The licensing activity In the year has resulted in a significant increase in
new committed SoCs with over BC new SoC design-wins added which wiil
contnbute to future royathes

Technology products update

PowerVR Multimedia

The key technologies under this categery are graphics, ray tracing video
and vision

Graphics - The PowerVR graphics processor (GPU) family continues to tead the
market In technological capability roadmap strength and ecosystem and remains
by far the most adopted and shipped technology of its kind During the year
there werg 27 PowerVR GPU hcenses across all markets and segments These
included a number of licenses to customers using PowerVR graphics in high
volume markets, with one licensing PowerVR graphics for the first ime

Following its tTaunch in November 2014, PowerVR Senes? has seen strong
licensing activity with multiple tier-one customers licensing this class-leading
technology With PowerVR Senes?, for the first ime we launched cores across
the full performance range from the outset and we have seen significant licensing




of both the high performance XT and the area and power optimized XE cores
Together these products cover all markets from entry level smartphcne through
perfcrmance mobile, HD and UHD TVs and STBs to very high-end solutions
requinng In excess of 1Teraflop {TFLOP} processing capabilities

At this year's Mohile World Congress (MWC) Imagination unveilled the PowerVR
Seriest GBO20 GPU that has been specially designed for graphics efficiency

In ultra-compact silcon area and lowest power consumption, whilst delivenng
optimai device performance and full compatibility with the latest APls With the
PowerVR GX5300 and G6020 GPUs Imagination now covers graphics and Uls
from entry-level smartwatches to high-end wearables

At the other end of the performance range the PowerVR Series? GT7900
contnues to lead the market, with 512 ALU cores, and 1s a super GPU for tugh-
end graphics and compute delivering over 1 5 Teraflops The PowerVR Series?
launched during the period includes many advanced features and significantly
fully supports Imagination s recently announced securnty technology, OmniShield,
through built-n wirtualization This approach delwvers ultimate multi-zone secunty
an area of growing market demand given the importance of data secunty and the
programmability of modern GPUs

Ray tracing - in support of the PowerVR Wizard family of ray tracing IP cores,
we have very recently taped out a ray tracing reference chip to enable our
partrers ta fully explore and evaluate the benefitz that this disruptive technolagy
can brng The reference system will alsc be used to support and further develop
the mpertant and growing ecosystem

Video - Cur PowerVR video decode and encode processor famies, which
support the latest and emerging formats, continue to see strong volume growth,
reaching ther highest level of shipments dunng the year During the year thers
were 22 video core licenses

Camera Vision Processing - Vision processing 1s needed to get the best
image from a camera sensor and IS a key growth area with smart cameras
being increasingly used in areas such as automotive, retall, secunty and traffic
management We securad three licenses for this emerging technolegy durning
the year

MIPS Processors

MIPS continues to perform ahead of aur expectations, with the highast ever
annual volume shipments during the year Strong shipments have been recorded
across our broad customer base and reflect the confidence that our customers
now have in the MIPS product range

Interest n and icensing of the Warrnor range of cores, which have been
developed since the acquisition, as well as the previous gensration Aptiv range,
continuies o be strong Partners have been attracted by the inherent efficiency
and performance benefits of the cores, together with the addtional features of
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multi-threading and next generation secunty capabilittes As a result customers’
engagements and licensing activities have been sirong and encouraging with 47
hcenses concluded glebatly for MIPS cores acrass existing and new customers
dunng the year Among these there were a number of sirategically important
agreements including a key license with a tier-one mobile player for a significant
embedded subsystem in mainstream mobile application processors

The Warnor family of MIPS cores continues to expand and s attracting
considerable interest and icensing Wa have also recently seen the first Warnor
based chips enterning production with more due to start shipping socn

The use of hardware virtualizahen across the Warrior core range  from
microconiroller to high-end, to enable the newly announced OmniSheld mult-
zong secunty capability, provides partners with a very strong soluticn to the
increasingly demanding challenges of next generauon SoC secunty Our unigue
strategy in delvering CPU and GPU cores supporting OmniShield 1s attracting
industry attention and 1s the foundation for total SoC secunty The fact that the
prpl Foundation has formed an Open Secunty working group with members from
industry leading companies reinforces the impertance of our approach The prpl
Foundation has also been further strengthened with new board members recently
appeinted from leading semicenductor players

The strong MIPS roadmap executed so far and being dnven gong forward, the
investment In internal and third party supperting tocls, and the growing momentum
in the ecosystem through initiatives such as the prpl Foundation and the Creator
family of boards, are recognized and supported by many in the industry

Overall we beleve we are now at a stage that new and existing tier-one partners
are also beginning to consider MIPS offenings as both technically strong and
strategically mportant to ther plans

Ensigma Communications

Imagination s Ensigma radio connectivity processors (RPUs) and network
processors (NPUs) are vital to servicing the growing demand for communications
{connectivity and broadcast) IP cores in key markets including loT, wearable
mobile, wireless and digital home, automotive and enterprise solutions Our
focus has been and continues to be offering an end-te-end solution for this
market as mare and more partners encountsr the need for Integration of these
functionalities

At MWC Imagination demonstrated a new HDMI streaming device, which 1s

now shipping from a major brand N Asia, from one of its partners using Ensigma
high-performance Explorer 802 11 2x2 ac connectivity, and also highlighted its
Ensigma low-power Whisper IP that 1s designed to drive the next generation of
wearables, the emerging loT and other connected devices where ultra-low energy




consumption and low-cost design points are essental Whisper RPUS, ke ther
Ensigma Explorer counterparts, are aimed at providing multi-standard support in
a single architecture, designed to enable customers to bnng Wi-Fi, Bluetooth and
in the future NFC, GNSS and other low-power connectivity technologies onto
ther SoCs

We secured 15 further icenses for Ensigma technology dunng the year, which
1s another significant mcrease over the previous year New customers have alse
recently entered preducton which will drive further volume growth

Complementary supportive technologies

FlowCloud technologies - As part of our market engagement and enablement
cf the emerging 0T opportunities we have developed the FlowCloud software
technologies which can help to enable and accelerate easy and quick deployment
of our processor and communications 1P in these markets FlowCloud in
conunction with the Creator family of microcomputer and development systems,
as well as third party boards and modules 15 enabling a diverse range of
applicattons in the loT space Early projects in the areas of agnculture, health and
energy ara underway wath partners We are also working on industry initiatives on
the key areas of secunty anc interoperability that are ganng traction

VolP — our family of video and voice over IP (VolP) products inciuding platiorm
agnostic SDKs, constitute an important element in our IP offering with relevance
to both general Internet-based communicaticn including some of the key
emerging loT devices needing voice communication and the arrwval of 4G/Long
Term Evolution (LTE} networks which require VoIP over LTE (VeLTE) We are
seeng senous and significant opportunities with Mobile Virtual Network Operators
(MVNQs) who wish to use Voice over IP An example of a partner who has
licensed our technology to enable further innovation 1s Japan Communication Inc
(JCl) The nsing importance and relevance of voice n connecied IeT devices 1s
creating new opportunities for this technolegy in conjunchion with our processor
and connectivity platforms

Caskeid - With the growth of smartphones and tablets and the migration to
streaming content, the demand for wireless streaming of audio 1s set to grow
Caskeid 1s Imagination’s targeted solution combining cur patented low delay and
tow latency audio distnbution technology with our processar and connectivity IP
cores The Caskeid audio ptatiorm 1s designed to address the growing demand
for wireless audio including home music distnbution as well as multi-channe!
apphcations such as heme cnema Through the effort imtiated by Pure we are
engaged with licensing partners including significant players and expect {o see
strong deployment of this technology over the next 12 months
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Pure business

Pure s activities have continued to be strongly focused on core areas that are of
direct strategic significance or financial relevance for the Group These include
key markets or ecosystems that are highly relevant to one or more of our three
fundamental IP areas The current focus areas are

s The DAB product ine-up where Purg 1s a marke! leader and supporting/dnving
the adoption of digital radic internationally and in automotive

= Strategic engagement in support of key players interested In our wiretess and
multirocm speaker technologies These systems use much of Imagination’s
undertying IP ncluding MIFPS processors Ensigma communications processors
and FlowCloud technology and are paving the way for the connected home
revolution This 1s an on-gaing activity with significant potential for the Group

* Healping to bulld development boards and systems in support of our IP
offerings and Platform sofuticns The launch of the well-receved Creator Ci20
development system earher in the year and our ongoing work In developing the
loT ecosystem are examples of where we see a growing contribution from Pure

Several key products were launched in ine with the Group’s strategic objectives
The Pure business continues to develop its range of wireless speakers with the
Jlaunch of the new Jongo X Senes based con our Caskeid muitiroom technology,
and the Voca rechargeable Blugtooth speaker Pure was the first digital radio
manuiacturer to receve the digital radio tick mark for Its complete current range
of radios iIncluding new launches such as the Evoke D2 and D4 Mig, stereo Evoke
6, and the new Pop family which recantly won the prestigious Red Dot design
award A designer vanant of this range has also just been announced, Pop by
Mirm Moderns

As part of Pure’s tighter focus, and to further improve financiat perforrmance
whilst maximizing reach we are explonng opportunities with a number of third
parties to use a icensing mode! for the Pure brand, as well as products in
certan categongs We have successfully tnalled such an approach in two limited
scenarios and believe the approach mernits further follow-up

Current trading and outlook

We expect to see growth n icensing revenue in FY 18 consistent wath the 10%
long term growth rate Thus will be driven by the increase in the backlog at the
close of FY15 together with the strength of the sales pipeline The pipeline
strength 1s In part drven by the introducticn of new products such as Sernes?
graphics and 64-bit processor cores complemented by our new secunty oifering
OmniShield




Royalty unit shipments are expected to increase with growth in both MIPS and
non-MIPS categones

The momentum we have seen in the core markets for the refocused Pure
business will drve an increase in revenue for Pure n FY16 This s expected to
result in a further reduction in the operating less for the Pure division

We continue to tightly manage the investment acress the Group and as a result
we expect the increase n adjusted cperating costs to be lower than previous
years and between 5%-10%

Fundamentally cur multimedia (graphics and video} business (s very strong with
ray tracing and camera vision elements offering new and significant opportunities
for the future MIPS 15 meeting our expectations with next generaticn technology
well-underway with growing customer endorsement and commitment Cur
Ensigma connectvity activities are now moving from investment to mass market
explotation

The Group s ability ic provide the comprehensive and complernentary range of IP
cores across these key areas 18 increasingly enabling us to offer soluticn-centnic
IP platforms i1 support of the new industry trends and requirements The market
opportunities that are addressable by our comprehensive IP both indwicually and
N combinatien, have huge potential

The progress made ic date in the product lines and their exploitation combmned
with the effective operating cost management gives us confidence that the Group
wiil be able to also make significant financial progress over the next few years
with an expected nse in profitability n FY18 We continue to believe a 30%-40%
operatng margin range 15 a realstic target for the longer-term

As a result the Board remains confident that the Group s on track to deliver
continued progress

8ir Hossein Yassaie
Chief Executive

29 June 2015
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Key performance indicators

The key performance indicators used n the busingss are summarnized below The performance of the business in terms of these

inchcators 15 considered in the Chief Executive’s review on pages 32 to 41

Year to

30 Aprd 2015
Technology business
Licensing revenue
Partner chips shipped £39 Om

MIPS (units)

79Tm

Non-MIPS {units) £30m
Royalty revenue £118 9m
Adjusted operating profit €27 im
Pure business
Revenue £18 4m
Adiusted operaling loss {£6 0m)
Income statement
Revenue £177 Om
Gross profit £159 3m
Adjusted operating profit” £211m
Loss befora taxation {£12 0m)
Balance sheet
Net debt {£27 2m)
Net book value of tangble fixed assets £69 0m

‘The recencihation from reported profit to adjusted profit 1s set out In note 2
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Year to

30 Apnl 2014

£38 3m

729m
530m
£109 0m

£31 4m

£23 2m
(€7 4m)

£1708m
£150 4m
£24 Om
(€0 3m)

{£5 0my)
£63 6m

Y%

2%

9%

9%
(14%)

(21%)

19%

4%
8%
(129)



Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group places great importance on the identification and effective management of sk Our approach to risk management
helps us to deliver our objectives and maxinmize the returns of the Group

The following table describes the nisks that the Board considers to have a potential matenal impact on the Group They are
specific to the nature of our business notwithstanding that there are other risks that may occur and may impact the achievement
of the Group's cbjectives

The Board discussions on nsk have focused on these nsks and the actions being taken to manage them

Risk or uncertainty and potential impact How we manage it

Competitive Environment

The business operates 1n a highly competitive market and needs to be  Dnve and deliver new product developments and enhancements
able 1o respond rapidly to competitive threats which differentiate us competitively

Moniter and understand our competitors

Focus on being respansive to customers and improving the qualty
and delivery ef cur products

Seek out new market oppeortunities and pioneer unexploited sectors

Intellectual Property

Patent-related threats from third parties seeking to use patents as an Build a portfoiio of strategically important patents across our
alternative way of generating revenus IP portfolios

Build strong relationships with external counsel tc enable us ta act
quickly and defend our position

Work clesely with customers to raspond quickly to potential threats

Customer Goncentration
The business currently has a large portion of ravenue related to Build a portfolio of technology that appeals 10 a broad range of
specifiv customers and lechnologies Consolidation within the Industry  customers and market segments

could driva this further and increase the Group ¢ dependence on a
imited numbear of customers Market concentration 1s a concern with
significant exposure to the smartphone market

Develop sales strategies and relationships with a wider number of
customers spread across different sectors and junsdictions

Morstor trands and changes in the semiconductor industry
Develop business maodels that reflect the changing industery landscape

Change in Customer Dynamics

A change in the busingss environment or business models employed Establish trusted relationships with customers 1o ensure we fully
by our customers could have a detrimental impact on our financial understand therr strategic direction

performance Adapt a flexible approach to different business models

Develop {urther engagerment with Chinese companies and explore
epportunities in Latin Amernca
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Risk or uncertainty and potential impact How we manage it

Supporting Business Growth

With the sigimhicant growth expected in the business there 1s a need to  Continue 1o develop proceduras and processes (o support the
effectively scale the infrastructure people and processes to capitalize  growing business

cn the apportunities

Add resources in key areas

Long term planning undertaken across the business ta identify
requirements

Cyber Risk

Cyber nsk causes disruption to the business or loss of IP following
a cyber attack This could cause nterruption of internal or external
facing systems, including interruption to the business caused by
a loss of data and reputational damage from a loss of personal or
confidential data The cost or offort to reconstiiute data that has
been stolen or corrupted and commercial loss from the theft of
commercially sensitive data, including IP

Establish a defence by deploying the latest generation of firewall
protection

Ongoing improvement in the ngour of authentication processes
including wider use of single s\gn on

Improve protecton of confidential cfata on portable computers
Develop process of system patching to close security ioophcles

Products Meeting Customer Requirements

Unabe to deliver new products on time or achieve performance that
does not meel market requirements in tenns of specilicalion, quahty

or imeliness could result In loss of market shara with a corresponding

impact on finanual performance

Put in place Business Units to manage and monitor customer
requirements

Close project management, including using project management
systerms

Chacks throughout the project Lo ensure the expected outcomes
including specification and iming will be achieved

Thorough roadmap planning process including discussion with key
customears for each Business Unit

Additonal B&D resources allocated to key projacts

Macre-Economic Developments

Changes in glchal economic conditicns can have a significant impact
on our partners and custorners arnd therefore may atfect the financial
performance of the business

Broad customer, engireenng and producis base to balance nsk
Flexible in responding to changing demands

Effective forecasting of business performance

Foreign exchange hedging strategy implemenied

Effective Management of People

In 2 complex, geographically diverse and fast moving business it

1s critical that we employ effective management capabilities This

IS necessary to delver on customer requirements maintain an
entrepreneunal and dynarmic culture and attract develop and retan
key personnel

Ensure competitive remuneration packags (s designed o attract,
retain and reward emptoyees with ability and experience to execute
group strategy

Invest In management development traning

Ensure adequate succession planning 1s performed and documented
for all key personnel

Identify behawours to support the developmant of company culture
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Corporate and social responsibility report

Corporate and social responsibility

The Group recognizes that it has responsibilities o all stakeholders, including the interests of employees and their families, the
need to foster the Group's business relatonships with partners  customers, suppliers and others and the impact of the Group’s
operations on the local communities and surrounding environment where it operates Our employees are highly regarded and
valued, and therr employment and nghts are respected All employees are reguired to act honestly farly and with integnty

The Group 1s comimitted to the mportant principle of equal opportunity which s reflected in the Group’s recruitmant, graduate
recrutment, disciplinary and grnevance policies The Group 1s dedicated to supplying products of the highest guality to mest

Its customers' requirements in a manner that s consistent with high environmental and ethical standards The Groug makes a
contribution 1o local charities and communities 1IN areas where # cperates its business

Environmental impact and energy use

As a Group we feel our environmentat iImpact on the whole 1s fow, with our main business beng the development of intellectual
property which helps custormers develop the most power efficient products cossible Our emissions come mainly from the use
of electricity In our offices and business travel In the UK we currently have aeight offices, four at the Group headquarters in Kings
Langley, cne datacentre and three offices at other locations in the UK We also have a number of overseas sites

The Group continues to review the supplies of its electricity and tariffs and the number of sites with a green renewable energy
tanff continues to Increase with four moving in the financial year Further buldings will move cver te this tariff as current contracts
expire The intention 1s that all electncity used 1s from renewable tariffs by the end of 2015

Redevelopment of site and environmental impact

The Group began redeveloping its headguarers site in Kings Langley in 2011 Two of the three buidings are now complete
Construction of the third building will be complete at the end of 2015 Alt of the buldings are designed along the principles
of sustanable design and will exceed the building regulations requirements for buildings of this nature, the first building has
achieved a BREEAM rating of ‘Excellent’ and the intention 15 that the remaining new bulldings will too

In addition to reducing each bulding's energy consumption, a sustainable approach has been adopted when handling other
1ssues which will contrnibute towards a truly sustainable building Such issues include the selection of matenals, construction
technelogies and the operation management and maintenance of the completed bulding The main mathods by which a fully
sustainable building with the aspired BREEAM rating of ‘Exceltent’ will be achieved are

¢ introducing the sustainable aspects of the construction process at an early stage of the design and cellaborating as a team to
achieve the sustainability goals,

* Considered and intelligent dasign of fenestration The main emphasis i the design and specification of the glazing and solar
shading devices will be to reduce opsrational energy usage in terms of heat loss and solar gan whilst maximizing levels of
daylight within the office space, thus reducing rellance on artificial hghting,

» The provision of faciiies such as secure bicycle storage and changing facilities to encourage staff to use sustanable modes
of transport,

* Water saving technologies (such as flow restnctors, low flow rate water fithngs, ste ) will be applied to the bulding to minimize
portable water demand and 1o achieve further COZ2 emissions reductions while saving a precious natural resource

= Selection of construction matenals and technolegies that mimmize site wastage using locally scurced materials where
possible,
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* Responsibly sourcing matenals used in structural and non-structural elements Third-party certification will be required to show
that the timber has come from a sustainabilty managed source for example, Forest Stewardship Council (FSC), |

* Using the Green Guide to Specification 1o ensure that where possible matenals have 'A’ rating,
» Recyclng construction waste using off-site sorting including a dedicated space for recyclable matenals on site, i
« The provision of dedicated recyclable waste storage facilitigs, and

¢ |ncorporating SUDS (Sustainable Urban Drainage) such as permeable paving on the surface car parks and water attenuation
to control surface water run-off and minimize watercourse pollution

As part of the redevelopment of the headquarters the Company focused on the core functions required of a high quality office
development whilst being conscious of its environmental responsibities 0 this ven we are promoting the ecology of the area
by introducing a native boundary structure and new hatutats within the canal race area Where applicable native tree shrub and
herbaceous planis have been miroduced to encourage indigenous species in the more decarative areas of the scheme

New datacentre

To meet the Group s considerabie IT requirements, a dedicated datacentre was constructed and became operational In 2014
It contamns two hightly efficient data halls, the first of which 15 in current use and the second hall will come online in the future to
meet business naeds as the Group grows

The data halls are supported by a highly efficient electrical distribution systern that utihzes state of the art static UPS systems
that have multiple modes of operation to maximize energy effictency A low energy cooling solution has also been adopted that
provides both a water and air cooled solution that makes use of free cooling when ambient conditions allow

Pure division

Our Pure dmsion has spent considerable time looking into ways t¢ reduce its environmental mpact and it remans cormimitted
to ethical and environmentally sustainable design and manufacture Pure recognizes that its man environmental impact comes
through the products themselves in manufacture, transport and predominantty in use by consumers, and So it continues to
reduce the power consumption of its products, with a programme In place to exceed the reguirements of the tightened Energy-
Using Products (EuP) Directive which came into force in January 2013

The Pure dwision also ensures through its own due dilgance programme that all third-party factones comply with the following
health, environmental and ethical requirements

s EC Regulation on chemicals and ther safe use (EC 1907/2006) known as Registration, Evaluation Autharization and
Restriction of Chemicat substances (REACH),

* Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Elecirical Equipment Regulations 2005 (RaHS),
+ Battertes & Accumulators directives and

+ SEDEX or SA8000 ~ Pure 1s commutted {0 the ethical treatment of its staff and contractors, and to that end all third-party
factones are audiied via the SEDEX or SA8000 programmes to ensure complhance with jocal and nattonat taws particularty on
working hours and conditions health and safety, rates of pay, terms of employment and mimmum age of employment

The Pure division through their own functions ensures compliance with the following

» The EC Oirective on Waste Elecincal and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) through the producer comphance scheme REPIC - this
1s amed at minimizing the iImpact of electnical and electronic goads on the environment, and
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* The EC Directive on Packaging and Packing Waste {94/62 EC) obligahons through theirr membership of the compliance
schame Biffpack

The Pure divsion use a compliance solutions company to meet their obligations under the Packaging Waste Regulation
oblgations

Recycling

We encourage our employees to recycle therr day to day waste We do this by ensunng there are recychng bins for cardboard
and non-confidentiat matarals and separate confidential bags in every office, all of which are recycled There are also recycling
bins in gach kitchen area Erergy saving measures are also in place for recychng compoenents such as printed circuit boards,

toner cartridges, surplus packaging and paper

Imagination House the headquarters at Kings Langley has an on-site restaurant and we work to ensure that as much waste as
possible s recycled Al cardboard, wooden boxes, dnnk cans and plastic bottles are currently recycled

Greenhouse gas emissions

Imagination 1s required to report the quantity of greenhouse gas (GHG) emisstons from activities from which the Group 1s
responsible, in accordance with the GHG emissions reporting requirements of The Companies Act 2008 (Strategic and Directors'
Reports) Regulations 2013 for GHG emissions

We have adopted a financial control appreach to defining our organizational boundary and therefore the data used reflects our
matenal global operations The methedology used to compile this data 1s 10 accordance with the requirements of the following
standards DEFRAs Environmental Reporting Guidelines Including mandatory greenhouse gas emissions reporting guidance
{June 2013} Qur reporting period for GHG emissicns 1s 1N ine with our financial reporting year to 30 Apnl 2015 This marks our
baselne year and wili be used for comparative purposes in the future

Our gross carbon emissions have decreased by 786 /CO2e from 2014, due to a more sfficient use of energy

Our matenial GHG emissians from our business activities n FY15 amounts to 6 033 tonnes of CO,g, consisting of

2014 2015
Garbon emissions Tonnes of COe Tonnes of CO.e
Scope 1
CO,e from the Combustion of fuel and the operation
of any faciities 304 305
Scope 2
CQ,e from the purchase of elactnetty, heat, steam or
cocing by the Company for its own use 6,515 5728
Total 6,819 6,033
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2014 2015
Qur Group chosen intensity measurement 13 square foot Emisstons intensity Emissions intensity
Scope 1
Tonnes of CO,e per Sq ft Q00 Q00
Scope 2
Tonnes of CO,e per Sg #t 002 001

Where data was incomplete GHG emissions were extrapolated from the available information

The Group’s employees

Qur people are cur most valuable asset and the Group recognizes that its reputation and success depends upon therr efforts,
integnty and commitment Across the Group there 1s considerable value placed on the involvement of employees in the decision
making process To this end regular departmental meetings are held to discuss strategy and future develcpments and any
significant outputs are then communicated to senior management This helps the flow of deas threugh the Group and allows
employees to see thar contributions are valued

Employee engagement with the whole Group 1s highly pnontized and there are a number of communication channels in place to
help employees develop their knowledge of the business These channels include regular presentations by the CEO and CFO to
staff covering the Group's performance, strategy, vision and operational developments

There 15 a quarterly Group magazine ‘imagineer’ which s used to report events and activities to all employees worldwide covering
the opening of new offices around the globe, different departments explaning therr specific functions, introducing new starters to
the Group, recreation activity of employees, the arnval of children of employees and retirement tnbutes to employess

Furthermore employee ownership 1s encouraged across the Group to align the interests of our employeas and our shareholders
and to enable our employees to share In the success of the Company The Group runs an employee share plan under which

all employees globally receive share awards on a bi-annual basis There s no qualiying penod and no performance coenditions
on share awards below the Executive Management Board (EMB) and Board The Company continues to develep its employee
share schemes and launched a Share Incentive Plan (SIP} in 2014 offening Free shares, Partnership and Matching to our UK
employees

Graduate recruitment and internship programme

We remain focused on bringing young people into engineenng, the Group runs a graduate recruitment and internship programme
with universities and colleges throughout the UK We have developed strong relationships with a number of universities including
the Uriversity of Southampton impenal College of London, the University of Bristol and the University of Manchester As a direct
result of our programme we have welcomed arcund 40 undergraduates on internship each year most of whom convert into
permanent graduate hires

Academic outreach and sponsorship

We have linked up with universities which reflact our techrical skill set and are supporting and developing these into centres
of excellence for students in ine with our inteflectual property activities around the Group We currently sponsor five PhDs
at key universities in areas of technical refevance to the Group's activities In 2013 we began sponsonng labs and providing
development kits to uriversities for teaching purposes and we and pleased to continue this programme through 2015
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The Greup offers a wide range of other incentives to young people varying from the sponsorship of electronic courses at local
schools, giving scholarship awards to students at University to promote epportunities at the Group and financial awards o
exceptional successiul interns with the intention that the students come to work for the Group In the future The Group invites
young people from the local community annually for structured work experence to learn more about and expenence scme of the
careers avalable In our sector We regularly attend and sponsor events focused on promoting Science and Enginaenng with our
university partners

The Group has commutted to denating £25,000 per year for the next 2 years to sponscr a mathematics/physics Charr as a part
of the Government’s “Your Life Campaign’ to improve the quality of teaching of numerate subjects in schools in the UK

Diversity

The Group acknowledges the importance and contribution ¢f its employees and as a global business, valuas people from all
cultures nationaliues, religion and ethnicities irrespective of characieristics such as age, gender, disability or sexual onentation
The Group s committed to bullding a diverse crganization to maximize the skills avallable to us in the junsdictions In which we
operate We ensure that we follow best practice and have adopted employment policies across the junsdictions based on equal
opportunities for all employees these are Implemented from the point of recruitment and continue throughout the employeses’
career with Imagination The Group has a strong demand for highly qualfied staff and disability 1s not seen to be an inhibitor to
employment or career development The Group considers diversity as an impertant 1ssue acress the Group, not just at Board
level

We have marginally increased the percentage cf senior females in the Group and recognize that we must continue to work to
increase the proportion of female staff within the Group

Board of directors  Semior g Employ
Male 7 94 1,316
Female 1 12 214
8 106 1,530

Healthy living

The Group promotes healthy iming o its employees For the second year running year we held a Healthy Living week at the
headquarters in Kings Langley to raise awareness on nutriton, exercise, mental health and changing habits The Group also
provides a range of healthy ving benefits to its employees in therr respective locations ane! the Healthy Living week and the
programme wilt be extended more globally across the Group In the coming years, with a focus on empowernng employees to
access programmes and information avaitable to them to lead a healthy hfestyle

In the UK the Group actively encourages recreation to assist employees to stay fit and healthy by providing 50% of the annual fee
for fitness centres and 38% of the UK staff are members of fitness clubs sponsared by the Company The Group also supports
the Government's Ride2Work scheme which was launched in 2010 where the Company works n partnership with a national
cycle retaller to promote sustainable transport and health of employees The scheme allows the Company to offer bicycle and
related safety equipment to employees to be used to commute to work which provide considerable tax savings for the employee
as well as health benefits Currently 20% of UK employees participate in the Ride2Work scheme
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Healthier staff restaurants

Qur headquarters provides superior ¢atenng faciliies and employees have been overwhelmingly positive with people
enthusiastic about the qualty freshness and vanety of produce The catenng firm opérating the restaurant also ensures they
use only sustanable fish and farm assured meats as standard which 1s 10 ine with the Group's principles In the past year we
have improved the cuisine and reguiarly have featured days celebrating food from vanous countries around the world and
commemorating special dates during the year

Local community and environmental sustainability

As part of its commitment to the community and environment the Group 1s engaging with a charity in the local community to help
the Group develop multipie areas of owned green amenity space into well maintaned landscaped areas

Charitable work in the community

The Group gives chantable donations both locally and nationally Every year employees are consulted to ensure that the
donations given by the Group represent all the interests and locations where employees are based Employees get the
opportunity to vote on which charities receve the money raised |f employees raise money for a chanty on the Group selected
chanty list the Group will double the amount of meney raised by the employee This year the Group has given donations to the
nominated charties, and also recycled old PCs in return for donations towards these charities

Sports and Social club

Qur Sports and Sccial club was set up In 2000 with the aim of bringing together employess to participate In a vanety of actvties
For a nominal contribution employees can gain membership which provides discounts on all events supported by the club We
cantinue to see considerable uptake with 80% of UK employees members In the financial year there has been a wide range of
events, such as visits to the theatre, an event at the Olympic Velodome, ¢pera and many mowvie nights hosted in the employee
restaurant There are also many sporting activities organized by employees and subsidized by the Sperts and Social club
including badminton, basketball cncket, fitness and martial arts, football, meditation and yoga
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Going concern basis

As set out In note 1 Accounting policies, the Directors congider it appropriate to continue (o adopt the going concern basis in
prepanng the financial statements

Approval

This Strategic report has been prepared sclely to provide additional Information to shareholders to assess the Group’s strategies
and the potential for those strategies to succeed

The Strategic report contains certain forward-locking statements These statements are made by the Directors n good faith
based on the information avalable to them up to the time of their approval of this report and such statements should be treated
with caution dug to the inharent uncertainties, Including both econcmic and business nsk factors, underlying any such forward-
looking nformation

The Drrectors, In prepanng this Strategic report, have complied with section 414¢ of the Companies Act 2006

This Strategic repert has been prepared for the Group as a whole and therefore gives greater emphasis to those matters which
are signfficant to Imagination Technologies Group ple and its subsidianes undertakings when viewed as a whole

This repont was approved by the Board of directars on 29 June 2015 and signed on 1ts behaif by

=~

Sir Hossein Yassaie

29 June 2015
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Board of Directors

Bert Nordberg

Chairman

Appointment Date March 2015 to present
Nationality Swedish

Skills and Experience

Bert joined the board following an executive career spanning 30 years in the technology sector
He has s wealth of relevant experience, and was President and CEQ of Sony Erncsson from
2009 to 2012 and Executive Vice President at Encsson from 1986 to 2009 Since 2012 Bert has
been Chairman of the Board, the Compensation Committee and the Nomination Committee at
Vestas Wind Systems A/S

Board Committees Other current appomtments
Nomination Committee (Chairman} Vestas Wind Systems A/S — Charman
Remuneration Committes AB Electrolux {3E) - Non-executve director

Sigma Connectivity AB (SE) — Non-executive director
Svenska Cellulosa Aktiebolaget SCA (SE) -
Non-executive director

Geoff Shingles

Chairman (retired)

Appointment Date 1996 tc March 2015
Nationalty British

Skills and Expenience

Geoff has over 30 years expenence within Europe and US in the cigital technology industry and
extensive knowladge of the semiconductor industry Geoff was Chief Executive and Chainman of
Digital Equipment Co Lirnited Geoff retired from the Board in March 2015

Board Committees Other current appointments

Nommaton Committes 1S Soluticns — Non-executive director
{retired March 20135}

Sir Hossein Yassaie
Chief Executive Officer

Appaintment Date 1995 to present
Nationalty British

Skills and Expenence

Hossen has a BSe in Efectronic and Electrical Engineering and & PhD Hossen obtaned
relevant industry expenence at STMicroslectronics/Inmos, where he spent eight years,
ultmately becoming responsible for the system divisions 1ncluding research and development
manufactunng and marketing After joining Imagination Technologies in 1892 as Technical
Crector Hossen refocusad the business on advanced technology development and created
Imagination s successiul shicon IP business model He was appointed as CEQ in 1695

Board Committees Other current appointments

Naormination Committee Tdhigital Group ple - Non-executive director
Tournaz Holdings Limited — Non-executive director
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Richard Smith
Chief Financial Officer

Appontment Data July 2011 to present
Nationality British

Skills and Experence

Richard holds an MBA from Henley Business Schogl has an MA in Economics from Cambridge
University, and s a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Weles His
early career Included positions with Porsche Cars and PricewaterhouseCoopers Richard has
warked in a number of privately held technology businesses as CFO, and pnor to that held
senicr financial oles at Vodafone He joined Imagination Technologies in May 2011 and was
appointad to the Board as Chief Finangial Officer in July 2011

Riehard has no ether current appoirtments and 1s not a member of any board committees

David Anderson
Non-executive director and Senior Independent Director

Appontment Date Novembier 2010 to present
Nationalty British

Skills and Experience

David has over 30 years investment banking experence including 17 years at Lazard including
two years heading up the Lazard business in Asia and six years at JP Morgan Cazenove He
spent two years at Vodafone as group corporate finance drecton from 2000 to 2002 Since
2008 he has run his own comporate finance business, EPL Advisory LILP and also bailt up a
portfoho o board roles He has specific skills in mergers and acquisitions (both domestically and
cross-border), restructunng and capital raising He also charrs audit committees at Bibby Line
Group Limited and Hibu (previcusly Yel) He chairs the trustees of the Lazard pension schemas

Board Committees Other current appointments
Audit Committee (Chairman) Bibby Line Group Limied
Nomination Cemmittee Hibu Group 2013 Limited

Remuneration Committee

Gilles Delfassy
Non-executive director

Appontment Date June 2012 to present
Nationality French

Skills and Expenence

Gilles has worked in the semiconductor and mobile and wireless industry for more than 35
years He has significant industry expenence and 1s a respected mternational figure During his
30 years at Texas Instruments (nc he was a key pioneer and driving force behind mobile and
wireless intiatives, which helped shape the industry Ha has also held the position of Chief
Executwve Officer of $1-Encsson SA

Board Commuttees Other current appointments
Audit Committee Kalray — Chairman
Nominatcn Committee Sequans Communications — Diractor
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Andrew Heath
Non-executive director

Appomntment Date August 2012 to present
Nationality British

Skills and Experience

Andraw has a BSc in enginesnng and an MBA Andrew brings & wealth of internationai business
expenence gamned through his executive roles over the past 30 years He is currently Chief
Executive Officer of Alent plc {FTSE 250) and previcusly served as a member of the Executive
Leadership team and President of Rolls Royce ple Energy He was praviously a Non-axecutive
Director of LG Fuel Systems Inc and Oxford BioSignals

Board Committees Other current appointments

Remuneration Committee (Charman) Alent ple — Chief Executive Officer and Director
Audit Committee
Momination Comimittee

ian Pearson
Non-executive director

Appointment Date 1998 to present
Natonalty Bntish

Skills and Expenence

lan has over 30 yvears expanence with companes specalzng in semiconductor design,
manufacturing and management, with industry Director level responsibiiies These companies
include Inmos and SGS Thompson

lan 1s not a member of any board committees and has no other current appointments

Kate Rock
Non-executive director

Appainiment Date August 2014 1o present
Mationalty Briish

Shills and Expenence

Kate holds a BA in Publishing and Histary Kate has spent her career in corporate
communications and has many years of expenence providing strategic counsel and business
communication strategies to both public and private companies, including several technology
businesses She s currently the Conservative Party's Vice Charman with special responsibility
for busingss relations

Board Committees Other current appointments

Nomination Commitiee Newsbridge Ltd — Non-execulive direcior
Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ report

The Chirectors present therr report and audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 Apnit 2015 The following
additional disclosures are made in complance with the Companies Act 2008, the Disclasures and Transparency Rules and the
2012 UK Corporate Governance Code

The Board has prepared a Strategic report, Including the Charman's statement {page 7} and the CEQO's review {page 32}, which
provides an overview of the development and performance of the Company’s business to 30 Apnl 2015 Certain information
required to be included in the Directors report can be found in other sections of the Annual Report as descnbed below All
information presented In these sections s incorporated by reference nto this Directors’ report and 1s deemed to form part of this
report

* Review of the performance and future development of the Group Strategic report, pages 32 o 41
s Principle msks and uncertamnties, Strategic report, pages 43 to 44

* Disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions, Strategic report, pages 47 to 48

» Employment matters, Strategic report, pages 48 to 50

The Corporate governance report set out on pages 62 to €8, Audit Committee report, pages 69 to 72, Nomination Committee
report pages 73 to 74 and the Drrectors’ Remunerafton Committee report, pages 75 to 97 form part of this report

There have been no significant avents since the balance sheet date to disclose

Research and development

The continuing cost of research and development expenditure and advanced technology projects charged directly to the income
statement was £123 859,000 (2014 £114,835,000) An incication of ikely future developments in the business of the Group and
detals of research and development actvities are included in the Strategic report

Political donations

No political donations were made during the year Imagmiation has an established policy of not making donations to any political
party, representative or candidate in any part of the wortd

Financial instruments

Details of the Group s financial nsk management chjectives and policies are set out within note 19 to the financial statements
along with details of the Group's exposure to market nisk credit and liguichty nsk

Share capital

Detals of the authonzed and 1ssuad share capital, together with details of the movements in the Group's 1ssued share capital
durnng the year are shown in note 16, which 1s incorporated and deemed to be part of this report The Group has a single class
of erdinary shares which carry no nght 16 fixed income Each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the Group
As at 30 Apnl 2015, there were 271,623 108 ordinary shares in tssue listed on the London Stock Exchange of which 2,122,071
(2014 1 996,246) were held in trust No person has any special nghts of cantrol over the Group s share capital and all issued
shares are {ully paid

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provision of the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation  The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders
of the Group's shares that may result In restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting nghts
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With regard to the appointment and replacement of drectors the Group 1s governed by its Articles of Association, the UK
Corporate Governance Code, the Cempanies Act and related fegislation The Articles themselves may be amendead by special
resolution of the shareholders

Authority to allot

At the Annual General Meeting In September 2014, shareholders approved a resolution 10 give directors the authorty to allot
ordinary shares up to an aggregate nominat amcunt of £8,833,.891 In additon shareholders provided approval to directors
to allot up to an aggregate nominal amount of £17,867,782 in connection with an offer by way of a nghts 1ssug In accordance
with the Investment Association guidelines The directors have no present intention to make use of the authonty sought under
this resolution except ta satisfy share awards under employee share schemes The authority will expire on the earlier of the 31
Cctober 2015 or at the conclusion of the AGM in 2015 and will be proposed for renewal again at this year's AGM

Purchase of own shares

At the Annual General Meeting in September 2014, authonity was granted to the Company to purchase its own shares in the
market up to a maximum aggregate number of 26,801,674 shares, being approximately 10% of the issued share capital The
drrectors authenzed the purchase of 182,000 shares to put in trust to satisfy future share awards under the Long-Term Incentive
Plan The current authornty will expire the earlier of the 31 October 2018 or at the conclusion of the AGM 1n 2015 The Group
would ke to retain the flexitity oftered by this resolution and it will therefore be proposed agam at this year's AGM

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend

Directors

The membership of the Board and biographic details of the Directors are provided on pages 53 to 55 and are incorperated into
this report by reference Geoff Shingles retired as Charrman of the Board in March 2015 and Bert Nordberg was appointed as the
new Chairman of the Group on Geoff s retirement Bert has also assumead the role as Chairman of the Nominations Committes
from March 2015 and has joned the Remungration Committee Bert will seek election as Chairman of the Board for the first

time at the 2015 AGM tc be held on 18 September 2015 Kate Rock was appainted to the Board in August 2014 and her
appontment was approved by the Shareholders at the 2014 Annual General Meeting She joined the Remuneration Committes
in January 2015 Dawid Hurst-Brown left the Company at the AGM held in September 2014

The rules for the appointment and replacement of directors are set cut In the Company s Articles of Association Each new
appcintee to the Beard 1s required to stand for electicn and the next Annual General Meaeting following therr appointment In
addition, the Company's Arucles of Associauon require each director (o stand for re-election at least once every three years
However, in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all directors wishing to serve again will submit themselves for
re-election at the next Annual General Meeting and are recommended for re-slection

The Company maintans directors’ and officers’ labilty insurance and all directors of the Company benefit from gualfying third
party provisions which were in place during the financial year Article 130 of the Group's Articles of Association provides for the
indemnification of directors of the Group against hability incurred by them in certain situations, and 1s a ‘qualfying ndemnity
provision’ within the meaning of section 236 of the Companies Act 2006 The qualifying indemnity was in force during the
financial year and up to the cate of signing the Annual Report
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Directors’ interests

Interasts of the directors in Group shares and share options are set out In the Directors’ Remuneration Committee report on
pages 75 to 97, together with detaits of directors remuneration and service contracts

Change of control

The Group's share based incentive plans contain provisions relating to a change of control The Long-Term Incentive Plans, share
awards and performance share awards for the CEQ and CFO would normally vest and becoms exercisable on a change of
control of the Group subject to the satisfaction of the performance condiions

There are no significant agreements to which the Group 1s a party that iake effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control

Substantial shareholdings

As at 30 April 20135, the Group has bsen notified under Rule & of the FCAs Disclosure and Transparency Rules, of the following
voting nghts as a shareholder of the Company

Orchinary Shares of 10p Percentage of 1ssued
ordinary share capnal (%)

Baille Gifferd & Co Lid 37,382,752 13 76%
M&G Investment Management Lid 29 967,315 11 03%
Apple Inc, 23047 770 8 248%
Newton Investment Management Ltd 22 274,326 820%
Majedie Assel Managermant Ltd 13,794 888 508%

Save for the above, the Group has not been notified, as at 10 June 2015, of any interest exceeding 5% of the 1Issued share
capitat of the Company

Essential contracts

There are a large number of agresments In place with the Group's customers and partners There arg no parties with whom the
Group has contractual or other arrangements which are essential to the business of the Group

Annual General Meeting

The 2015 AGM of the Group will be held at 'magination House, Home Park Estate, Kings Langley. Hertfordshire WC4 8LZ
commeancing at 11am on 18 September 2015 The Notice of Annual General Meeting with {ull description of the business to be
conducted 15 set out at www imgtec com
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Information presented in other sections

for the purposes of compliance with LR 9 8 4C R, the infformation reguired to be disclosed by LR 9 8 4 B can be found in the
following locations

Section

12
13
14

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Requirement

Interest capitalized

Publication of unaudited financal information

Details of long-term incentve schemes

Wawver of emoluments by a director

Wanwer of future emotuments by a director

Non pra-emptive 1ssues of eguity for cash

Non pre-emptive 1ssues by a mgor subsidiary undertakings
Parant participation in a placing by a histed subsidiary
Contracts of sigrficance

Provision of services by a conirolling shareholder
Shareholder warvers of dividends

Shargholdar wawvers of future dmdends

Agreemants with controlling shareholders

Location

Not applicable

Not apphcabte
Remuneration report, 95 to 96
Remuneration repart, 93
Not applicable

Not applicable

Not appicable

Not applicable
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Neot applcable

Not apphcable

Not applicable

Net applicable

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group financial statemants in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable
law and have efected 1o prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
far view of the state of affars of the Group and parent company and of therr profit or loss for that period In preparing each of the

Group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to

+ select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

« far the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the parent company finanaial statements, and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 15 inappropriate to presume that the Group and the
parent company will continue in business
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The directors are respensible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufticient to show and explain the parent
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and
enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Cormparnies Act 2006 They have general responsipility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them io safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregulanties

Under applicable law and regulations the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic repert, Directors’ report,
Drrectors Remuneration Committee report and Corporate Govarnance Statement that complies with that (aw and those
regulations

The dwrectors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financiat statements may difer from
legislation in other unsdictions

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the annual financial report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge
+ the financial statements, preparsd in accordance with the applcable set of accounting standards, give a true and far view of

the assets, abilnes, financial posiicen and profit or less of the Company and the undertakings included In the consoldation
taken as a whole and

* the strategic report Includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the 1ssuer
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal nsks and
uncertainties that they face

We consider the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, 1s farr, balanced and understandable and prowides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance, business medel and strategy

Going concern

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue n operational

existence for the foreseeable future and therefore continue to adapt the going concern Dasis In preparing the financial statements

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each director confirms that, at the date this Annual Report and Accounts was approved, so far as the director 1s aware, there s
no retevant audit nformation of which the Group's auditor 1s unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she
ought to have taken as a director In order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to astablish that the
Group's auditor 1s aware of that informatton

Independent auditor

The Group’s independent auditor, KPMG LLP (KPMG) have expressed their willingness ie continue in office and resolutions for
their reappointment and to authorize the directors to determine its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

KPMG has been the Group's external auditor since 1994 Whilst the Group has not formally tendered the audt since then, the
Audit Committes undertakes an annual review of the independence, objectmity and effectiveness of the audit firm in consicering
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whether to recommend the reappointment of the external auditors at the AGM The current partner at KPMG was appointed
as Group Audit Partner n 2010 and under the requirement to rotate this position every 5 years 1s due to rotate ofi the Group's
audit after completing the 30 Apri 2015 financial year audit engagement Further information on the Group's approach to audit
tenderning can be found in the Audit Committee report on page 72

For and on behalf of the Board

At

Anthony Liewellyn
Company Secretary

29 June 2015
Company number 2920061
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Corporate governance report

Chairman’s introduction

It 15 with pleasure that | present my first Corporate governance report

| was delighted to take over the role as Non-executive Charrman on 20 March 2015 having joined the Board as Chairmarn
designate on 9 February 2015

During the year the Board considered the overall framework of governance wihich included the composition and work of the
Board and its committees We have discussed, managed and identified significant risks to the business with considerable
Input from the Executive Management Board (EMB) We have also reviewed how the Board and its committees engage with
shareholders how we respand promptly to any matters raised by shareholders and explain how we are going to delver our
strategy to shareholders

The Board and the Group as a whole belleve in strong govarnance, a high standard of ethics and our corporate respensibility
Its my role to ensure we regularly review and continue to develop our corporate governance arrangements in ine with the best
practice guidelines provided by the Financial Reporting Council The Board actively focuses on pursuing the success of the
Group, developing 1ts strategy and monitoring 1ts iImplementation whilst at the same time maintarming a strong relationship with all
stakeholders, including shareholders, customers, partners and our employees

At our Board meetmngs we have ocpen and frank discussions on the structure of our meetings to ascertan how we utilize the time
of the Board to improve the business cperationally and to deliver the strategy of the Group In 2014 we used Independent Audit
Limtted to perform a Board effectiveness evaluation and there were some positive actions from this process to engage the Board
to run more smoothly gaing forward As | joined the Board in March 2015 | am keen to develcp a robust board effectiveness
evaluation over the next 12 months

This report explains how the Board and its Committees function to provide appropriate guidance and support to the business
while behaving within the letter and spint of good corporate governance principles

The membership of the Committees have continued to change In the past year and we have embraced the new provisions and
guidelnes from the Companes Act 2006 the Disclosure and Transparency Rules and the UK Gorporate Governance Code 2012

The Beard has worked closely with the EMB to identify the prninciple nsks to the business and how we can mitigate these nsks
going forward 10 best align with the Group's strategy This 1s outiined i more detaill in our Strategic Repart on pages 43 to 44
The Board has further improved tts approach to nsk and dunng the year some nsks have been expanded, some new nsks added
and we have defeted one nsk We have concentrated largely on the nsks that could impact our business by greater than £10
million or may cause significant reputational damage

On page 64 of this Report we give detall of compliance with the Code, the structure and composttion of the Board and
Committees the responsibilties of the Board as a group and for mdividual roles, the Board meeting structure and the date of
our AGM

Changes to the Board and succession planning

As part of the continuing evolution of the Board there have been a number of changes to the Board

In February 2015 the long standing Chairman Geoff Shingles stepped down and | was appointed as non-executive Chairman
With recommendation from the Nomination Committee, the Board appointed a third party to assist in my recruitrment and they
conducted an extensive search led by the Senior Independent Director In August 2014 we appointed Kate Rock as non-
executive director and at the AGM in September 2014 David Hurst-Brown retired from the Board On behalf of the Board | would
like to exprass our deep appreciation to both Geoff Shingles and David Hurst-Brown for therr contributions during ther tenure
We offer our sricere thanks and wish them welt for the future The Board continues to reflect a balance betwsen technology
sector, commercial, puble relations, financial and general business skills, and s supported by a highly expenenced ntermational
team leading the business in both exacutive and non-executive rolas
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Reports from the various Board Committees and detalls of their compoesition are covered in more detail n ther respective section
of this report More details of the appointments to the Board are given in the Noeminaticn Commitiee report on pages 73 to 74

During 2014/15, the Board played an impoertant role iIn managing the Group through a ime of consalidation after a number of
years of acquinng companes N parhicular MIPS and monitanng the performance of the Group in the challenging and competitive
economic environment

The Board also provided clear stratagic direction and ensured that the Group s standards of conduct met its expectations The
skills and specific expertise of the current members of the Board are set cut In the Biographies section on pages 53 to 55

Diversity

The Board recognizes there 1s a gender imbalance among the Group's employees, as there are with many organizations in

the science, engineenng and technology sectors The Board believes in the benefits of greater gender diversity at board level
and 15 actively supportive of measures ta achieve this without putting quotas in place We suggestad in last year's corporate
governance report that we were about to appoint a female to the Board and we were delighted to welcorme Kate Rock to the
Board The Board recognizes that diversity 1s mportant to the role for a successful Board and focuses on atiracting the nght
talent and skills rrespective of gender or ethnicity and censiders all appotntments on ment The Board noted the publication of
Lord Davies’ Review into Women on Boards in February 2011 and the propesals published by the European Commission in
November 2012 (the latter ncludes an objective that 40% of non-executive directors should be women by 2020) We belisve that
dwversity should be considered broadly and should not just focus on gender We wiil continue to select candidates based on ther
relevant skills, expenence and knowladge and in kesping with the business needs The current structure of the Board comprises
of two executive directors, a non-executive Chairman, and five non-sxecutive directors At the end of the year the diversity
composition was reprasented by 87 5% male and 12 5% female

The Group’s strategy

The Group ts still consalidating its postion after going through enormous change both ergamically and by acquisition in recent
years as part of the Group’s strategy In December 2014 and Aprl 2015 the Board and EMB along with other key employees
attended offsite strategy meetings The next strategy meeting 1s set for December 2015 and will continue to develop the long-
term strategy of the business Mare detall 1s given in our Strategic repert on pages 7 to 51

Ethics

All executives and employees are required to comply with the Group s Code of Conduct The Company's Anti-Corruption and
Bribery Policy 1s communicated to all employees tc ensure all employees worldwide are aware of the UK Bribery Act 2010 and
carry out their duties with honesty and integnty

| believe that the Group benefits from a strong Board and we will continue to loak for opportunities to further strengthen and
diversify Itis early days for me at the Company and | am continuing to meet instiiutiona!l shareholders and more of our key
emptoyees, we need to mamntain our focus on nsk management and continue to review and develop our strategy We will
continue to review our governance framework annually to ensure sharehclders are clear of how we will deliver our strategic
objectives

Py

Bert Nordberg
Chairman

29 June 2015
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Corporate governance compliance

Statement of compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

The Group has complied with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012, both the main prnciples and the \
supporting principles throughout the year and to the date of this repert We explain in the reports below how we applied the

provisions and prnnciples of the Financial Conduct Authority Listing Rules, the Disciosurs and Transparency Rules, and the UK

Corporate Governance Code 2012 Further explanation on how the main principles have been applied 1s set out below and In the

Audit Committee report and the Directors’ Remuneration Committee report

The role of the Board

The Board 15 accountable tc shareholders for the proper conduct of the busmness and ensuring its long-term success It has

ultimate respensibility for the actwities of the Group including its overall direction, strategy, nsk management, governance and

performance In order to meet that responsibility it ensures that the necessary financial and human resources are in place, and

that 1t 15 supported In its activities by its vanous Committees, EMB and senior managers The authority delegated by the Board |
to the Audtt, Remuneration and Nomination Committees to carry out certain tasks, are defined in each Commuittees Terms of

Reference Further information on the responsioiiies of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees are set out in therr

respective reports on pages 69 to 97

Matters specifically reservad for the Beard to make decisions on include, but are not imited to, the fallowing
* Group long-term strategy

* Group major business decisions,

* Greup-wide business and financial review including annual budget,

s major capital expenditure, acquistions, disposals and nvestments,

* review of the internal financial control and nsk management systems,

» consder recommendations of the sub-committees of the Board,

« the approval of interm and annual financial statements, and

* treasury management

The Board will delegate other cperational matters to the EMB for its review with other senior managers of the business to enable
them to make appropnate divisicnal decisions

The composition of the Board

Tha Board currently consists of eight members, the non-executive Chairman, the CEQ, the CFO and five non-executive directors

Division of responsibilities

The Group has a tracihional Board structure with a unitary Board comprising the non-executive Chairman, executive and non-
executive directors The Audit and Remuneration Committees are made up of independent non-executive directors and they,
together with the Nomination Committee, report to the Board The EMB reports to the CEO and the divisions and functions
report to the EMB

in accordanca with the Code there 1s a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEO which have been set
out n writing and agreed by the Board The written roles are avalable to view on the Group’s website

Directors' report




Role of Chairman

Bert Nordberg hecame the non-executive Chairman in March 2015 He s undertaking a review of the business and ths involves
meetng senior employees at the Company along with institutional shareholders The Charman s responsible for the leadership
of the Board and ensuring its effectiveness on all aspects of its role He sets the agenda for the Board and ensures that the
Board receives accurate, timely and clear mformation, giving suficient time 1o review all agenda rtems thoroughly including
strategic 1ssues He promotes a culture of openness, debate and facilitates constructive relations between executive and non-
executive diractars He 1s also responsible for ensunng that the views of shareholders are communicated to the Board as a
whele n order for bum to effectively discharge his duties he works closely with the Company Secretary He 1s Chairman of the
Nomination Comnuttee The Charman's other professional commitments are lisied on page 53 and the Board are satisfied that
they do not interfere with the performance of his duties for the Group

Role of Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer, Sir Hossein Yassaig, 1s responsible for proposing, developing and mplementing the Group s strategy
and commercial targets as agreed by the Board He 1s respensible for the day-to-day management of the business He carmes
out his duties in censultatien with the Chairman, the Board and EMB which in turn are responsible for the commercial and
operational activities of the Group He halds weekly meetings with the CFO and EMB to ensure the Group 1s actively managing
the overall strategy of the business He regularly holds meetings with the Group's customers, potential customers and partners
for executive discussions on current and future business He 1s also responsible with the EMB for mplemeanting the decistons of
the Board and us Committees

Role of the Senior Independent Director (SID)

David Anderson acts as a sounding board for the Charman and serves as an intermediary for the other directors when
necessary He is also the Charman of the Audit Comrmittee and a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees

He led the search for a replacement for the Chairman Further detail on this appointment is given in the Nemination Committee
Report on page 73 He also makes himself availlable to shareholders if they have concerns where contact through the normal
channels of Charrman, CEO or CFO has faled to find a resolution, or where such contact 1s nappropnate Dunng the year he met
with some of the larger inshtutional shareholders of the business

Role of the Company Secretary

The Company Secratary under the diection of the Chairman ensures good flow of information within the Board and 1its
Committees and to senior management He is also responsible for advising the Beard on all governance matters and 1s on hand
to offer advice and services should any director require it The Company Secretary attends all Board and Committee meetings
The Board as a whole decides on the appoiniment or removal of the Company Secretary

Role of non-executive directors

The non-exscutive directors have a wealth of expenence, business knowledge and are appointed to constructively challenge
senier management and provide input to meet agreed goals, objectves and to ensure the integrity of financial information The
role 15 described in more detall within the Financial Repcrting Council Code

During the year the Board considered the independence of each on the non-executive directors aganst the crtena specified

in the Code and tock particular care to assess the independence of lan Pearson lan was apponted as non-executive director
of the Company in 1998, and has therefore been connected with the Group for more than 9 years The Board acknowledged
that he does not meet the ndependence critenia specified by the Code but agreed that he continues to contribute significantty
through his ndivdual skills and considerable knowledge of both the Group and the indusiry The Board believes that he provides
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continuity and overall balance whilst continuing to demenstrate a strong independence of management in the manner in which
he discharges his responsibiiities as director Following a performance review the rest of the Board believes that he remains
independent in character and jJudgement and that he will continue to be effective and demonstrate commitment Accordingly, the
Board considers that lan Pearson 1s an independent non-executive director The Board agrees that the remaining non-executives
meet the independence cntena specified in the Code Furthermore, no nstitutional nvestor has raiged concerns over ther
ndependance

Induction and professional development

The existing induchion process has been formalized following a recommendation from the Board effectiveness evaluat:on in
2014 The induction procedure for all new appointments o the Board 1s designed to enhance the directors knowledge of the
industry in general and their understanding of the Group’s operations and perfermance, and importantly the Group culture

The nducticn programme consists of the following

* one-to-cne meetings with the Chawman, CEO and CFC and meetings wih the remaning Board members,
* meetings with EMB and senior management 1o discuss Group operations,

= meeting with shareholdars, where appropnate,

* attendance of strategy meeungs, and

* visitng regional and international offices

In accordance with the Code the Charrman regularly reviews and discusses the development needs with each director Each
director 1s fully aware that they shouid take responsibility for thair own individual development needs and take the necessary
steps to ensure they are wholly informed of regulatory and business developments

Activities of the Board

The Board holds regutar scheduled meetings throughout the year which are supplemented by unscheduled meetings which
are held when urgent busingss decisions are required, such as relating to acquistion activity The Board papers are circulated
electronically in advance of each meeting

At each meeting certan regular reports are presented which are

* CEO delivers a full business update with focus on the semiconductor market, a business surnmary for each dvision, the
Group’s relationships with current and potential partners, licensing updates, units shipped potential acquisitions and key
business 1Issues and actions,

+ CFO gives the year to date financial results, fatest financial projections, nvestor relations activity and market forecasts,
* The Board reviews the status of the Group's long-term strategy and

« Company Secretary provides updates covenng governance share pnice data, share schemes management, nsk management
reporting and shareholder analysis

In addition the Board meets penodically with sericr management from the Group's Technelogy and Pure divisions in order to
review the strategic direction of the business The man objectives of the strategy session are to assess and decide upon the kay
technologies, products and markets for the business to develop by assessing the potential returns aganst the nsks The result 1s
a common vision of the future aspirations of the business and an understanding of the function and goals that each dimision has
to achieve the strategy Dwvisional business plans are built around executing the strategic plan
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The CEG anda CFO attend weekly and monthly meetings of the EMB, where each member provides an up to date operational
report in which prograss against plan Is reviewed to ensure that this 15 1n ine with the Group's strategic and business targets
They will then provide feedback to the Board at the next scheduled meeting on any areas of significant nterest

Activities during the year

Dunng the year in addition to the above the Board was actively mvolved in monitorning

¢ progress as the business transiticns from a penod of heavy investment in strategic product ines {c a postion where the core
products are able te generate income

» the on-gong redevelopment of our headquarters in Kings Langley and other regional offices,
¢ areview of efficiency and operations In the Group resulting in a reduction of base cost, and

* nvestments in partners

Appointment to the Board

There 1s a formal, ngorous and trangparent procedure for the appointment of new directors to the Board More detail 1s given In
the Nomination Commuttee Report on pages 73 1o 74

Commitment

During the year, the dinectors committed sufficient time to the Group to discharge ther responsibilities effectively

Board evaluation

In early 2014 the Board undertock its first external Board evaluation on ds effectiveness carred out by Independent Aucdit Ltd and
have taken action to implement a number of considerations including

¢ the size, composition and mix of the Board,

¢ succession planning both within the executive team and the non-exacutive directors,
+ the number, scheduling, duration and lecation of Board meetings,

* ncreased visibility of progress agamnst the strategic objectives,

* more active involvement with members of the EMB who will present regularly to the Beoard to ensure the Board are fully aware
of the status of the operaticnal dwvisicns, and

s acontinuing programme of development sessions/teach-ins for the non-executive directors In order to provide them with a
more detalled appraciation of possible strategic and technclogical developments

There was no formal Board evaluation camed cut in 2014/15 although the Board continued to implement the recommendations
from the independent review In 2014 The new Chairman is undertaking a review of the board and its effectiveness and will lead
the Board evaluation process n 2015/16

The Board believes individual Board members are satisfied that the Board works weil and operates effectively in an environment
where there 1s constructive challenge from the non-executive directors They are also satisfied with the contribution made by thewr
collsagues and that Board Committees operate properly and efficiently
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Conflicts of interest

All directors have a duty under the Companies Act 2006 to avoid a sifuation in which they have, or can have a direct or indirect
interest that conflicts, or pessibly may conflict, with the interests of the Group The Group has put n place procedures for the
disclosure and review of any conflicts or potential conflicts of interest which the directors may have and for the authorization of
such conflict matters by the Board In deciding whether to authorize a conflict, or potential conflict, the directors have regard to
ther general duties under the Companies Act 2006 The authorization of any conflict matter, and the terms of authonzation, may
be reviewed at any time and are reviewed formally by the Group on an annual basis There have been no conflicts of interest
rarsed in the year

Board and Committee meeting attendance

Tenura Board Audit  Remunoration  Nomination

{vears) Committes Committes  Committes
Bert Nordberg' 1 11 n/a 1N n/a
Hossen Yassae 20 8/8 n/a 2° 4/4
Richard Smith 4 8/8 5" 2r 2"
Andrew Heath 3 7/8 53/5 5/5 4/4
Gilles Delfassy 3 7/8 5/5 5/5 4/4
David Anderson 4 8/8 5/5 5/5 474
Kate Rock? 1 5/6 n/a 171 2/2
lan Pearson 17 8/8 n/a na n/a

“Denotes attendance by a director, who 1s nct a member of the Committee, at a Commitiee meeting, as requested by the
Chairman of the Committee

! Bert Nordberg was appointed in March 2015 and was ehgible to attend one board meeting and one remuneration committee
meeting

2 Kate Rock was appointed In August 2014 and was eligible to attend six board meetings cne remunaration committee masting
and two nomination committee mestings
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Audit Committee report

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the report for the Audit Committee for 2014/15 The Audit Committes 1s appointed by the Board and
15 established to monttor the integnty of financial information and to provide assurance to the Board that the Group's internal
financial controls and nsk management systems are appropniate and regularly reviewed Its terms of reference are agreed
annually by the Beard and are set out on the website

The Audit Committee continues to focus on ensuning that the Group's systems and controls are operating effectively and are
evolving In line with the Group's growth

A fuller insight into the role, activities and composition of the Aucit Committee 1s provided below

DI A

Dawvid Anderson
Chairman of the Audit Committee

29 June 2015

Role of the Audit Committee

The man duties of the Audit Committee inctude but are not imitect to the following

* to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are farr, balanced and understandable,
* consider annually whether there 1s a need for an internal audit function,

» review the Group's Internal financial controls and nisk management systems,

¢ develop and implement the policy on the engagement of the external auditor,

* make recommendations to the Board in relation to the external auditors regarding approval of their remuneration, terms of
engagement, appontment, reappomntment or remeoval,

* review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process
= to report to the Board on how it has discharged its responsibibhies

+ monitor the Group's whistleblowing procedures to ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place for employees to be able
to raise in confidence matters of possible Improprety, with suitable subsequent follow-up action, and

* ensure directar's expenses are of a reasonable business nature and authcnzed appropnately

In the financiat year, the Audit Committes fulfilled s duties under its terms of reference and discharged its responsibilities
prmanly by

= reviewing the Group's draft half-yearly and full year results prior to Board approval,
+ reviewng the draft trading updates dunng the year,
* assessing the external auditors’ independence and cbjectivity

* reviewng the external auditors’ plan for the audit of the Group’s financial statements, which include key areas of scope of
work terms of engagement and fees

= reviewing the external auditors report on the results of ther year-end audt,

Directors’ report | 69




70

* reviewing the structure of the Group following the acquisthions of the past few years,

» reviewing the Group's arrangements for the security and patent protection of its intellectual property,
* reviewing the Group s system to :dentify and manage sk,

* reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal nsks over financial reporting, and

* reviewing and updating the Audit Committee's terms of reference

The full written terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be located on the Group s website www imgtec com

Committee composition

The composition of the Audit Committee was unchanged during the year and consists exclusively of ndependent non-executive
directors

The Audit Committee compnsed the following directors
+ Dawid Anderson (Chairman)

+ Gilles Delfassy

+ Andrew Heath

The Audit Committea met five tmes in 2014/18 The primary purpose of each of the meetings was to plan the annual audit
process to discuss the changes requirec in financial reporting, to review the half-year accounts and to review the full year
accounts Other mattars were dealt with as necessary

Attendance at mestings 18 shown on page 68

The external aucitors KPMG the Charrman of the Board the Chief Executive, the Chief Financial Officer and key members of the
Group finance team are also Invited to attend meetings

In accardance with UK Corporate Governance Code provision G 3 1 the Board should sansfy itself that at least one member of
the Audit Committee has recent and relevant financial experence The Board has considered this recuirement and, taking nto

account the financial background of the Charman of the Audit Committee, David Andersan, it 1s satisfied that this requirerment

has been met and that the Audit Committee has sufficient expenence to fulfil its cbhigations in an effective manner

Significant issues that the Audit Committee considered in
relation to the financial statements

The Audit Committae considered the key accounting judgsments underlying the preparation of the financial statements focusing
specifically on

Significant Issues

Issue Description Work performed by Audit Commitiee
Revenue recognition ncluding non Revenue recogrized 1s determined by pergantage of complation The Aucit Committee reviewed the internal procedures periomed by
cash revenue ach evement of milestones and schedule of nvaicing Some contracts managament 1o ensure ravenue 18 recognized appropnately and in
are signed in exchange far equity in the customer & business rather accordance wih apphcable standards
than cash |
I
Valuation ari ¢ lagshication of The Group continues to hold strategic nvestments reguired to be The Audit Lommititee hes considored e Classiieations g any nevd
nvesiments conaidered for correct accounting treatment as a trade investment and for impaurment at the year end based on current factors

impairment segularly
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Other Issues

Issue Description Work performed by Audit Committee
Valuation of goodwil Goodwll 15 matenal to the Group and require mparment reviews The Aucht Committee has reviewed the forscast and the assumplions
regulary uged n the impairent review when consicderng the need for
impaimeant
Valuation of mventary The Puie divsior holds significant stot k balanees at tha year end  Tha The Auctit Camimittae has satistied t-elt with the mteraal procedures
invantory neads (o be assessed for nsk of cbsolescence performed by management to ensure stock provisioning at the year end

15 appropriate and has reviewed stock rmovements since the year end ©
validate the level of provision held

Accountng tor share based Share based paymsnis i1s a complex and technical area which we The: Audnt Comnittee has reviewed the, indings of the spucialsts
payments engage specalists to assistn calculating the far values to atinbuts to engaged to perform the current year share based payment work
the awards granted

Recoverability of deblors The nature of the Group s business means that the Group continues to The Audil € oronit ce has 5 atished itsell wilk management s regular
heled signdic ant duotors at any point assessment of outstanding debtors and how they manage the
relaticnshin wath those outstanding debtors as required The Audit
Committes has also reviewed (he fistory of collection of overdue debts
to validate the pasition

Risk management and internal control

The Audit Comnnittea have conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's nsk management and internal control systems
as part of the annual nsk review The Audit Committee reviewed the process to identify the nsks and mitigating actions and
performed a detaled review of the findings The findings were then presented to the Board for further consideration

Internal audit

In addit:on under the Cade the Audit Committee 1s required to monitor and review the effectiveness of internat audit activities

The Group does nat have a separate nternal audit function and the Audit Committes reviewed whether this was still suitable in
the financial year Duning this review the Audit Committee determined that the Group was now of sufficient size and complexaty to
warrant an internal aucit functon As such steps are underway to create an internal audit function in the business

External audit process

At the start of the audt cycle, KPMG presented therr audrt strategy, identifying therr assessment of the key nisks for the purposes
of the audit and the proposed scope of therr work

KPMG reports to the Audit Comnuttee at both the half and full-year setting cut therr assessment of the Group's jJudgements and
estimates In respect of these nsks and the adequacy of the reporting The Audit Committee meets with KPMG 1n private at least
once a year

The Audit Committee 1s satisfied that the scope of the audit 1s appropriate, all significant accounting Judgements have been
challenged robustly and the audit has been effective

The Audit Committee 15 responsible for overseeing the Group’s relations with the external audtor Dunng the year the Audit
Committee approved the terms of engagement and remuneration to be paid to the external auditor and agreed the scope and
approach of the aucit
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Non-audit services and maintaining auditor independence

The Group currently has a policy in pface for the provision of non-audit services provided by the external auditor The policy
highhghts the importance of Independence and objectivity and states that non-audit servces can only be provided where these
are guaranteed In the financial year KPMG did not perform any non-audit work

To fulfil its responsibility regarding the independence of the external auditor, the Audit Committee considered the auditor’'s overall
work plan including the role of the semior statutory auditor and key audit staff and the overall extent of non-audit services In order
tc assess effectiveness the Audit Committee reviewed the arrangements to maintain auditor Independence and the auditor's
fulfiment of the agreed audit plan including that the proposed resources 1o execute the plan were consistent with the scope

of the audit engagement The Audit Committee has reviewed and 15 satisfied with the effectiveness and iIndependence of the
external audnor

Audit tendering and proposed reappointment of auditor

KPMG has been the Group's external auditor since 1984 Whilst the Group has not formally tendered the audit since then, the
Audit Committee undertakes an annual review of the independence objectvity and effectiveness of the audit firrm n considenng
whether to recommend the reappointment of the external auditors at the AGM

The Audit Committee has been monitoring the debate on external audit tendenng and has noted the changes to the UK
Corporate Governance Code introduced by the FRC in September 2012 and, in particular, the requirement contained in the
Guidance on Audit Committees to put the external audit centract cut to tender at least every ten years The new Code became
effective for the Group on 15 September 2013 The Audit Committee has also considered the subsequent proposals of both the
UK Compettion Commission and the European Commission, in particular the transitional arrangements which require KPMG to
stand down 1n 2020 The Audit Commitiee will continue ta monitor developments in this area

Aside from the Commussion rules above there are no contraciual obligations currently restncting the current or future choice of
external audt firm

Tudor Aw was appointed as Group Audit Partner in 2010, and under the requirement to rotate this position every 5 yaars, will
now rotate off the Group’s audit after completing the 30 April 2015 financial year audit engagement A new ndwvidual will be
proposed as Group Audit Partner

Having considered all these matters the Audit Committee concluded that it would recommend tc the Board that KPMG should
be reappointed as auditers at the forthceming AGM

Evaluation of the work of the Audit Committee

The work of the Audit Committee was reviewed as part of the Board evaluation by Independent Audit in 2014 Independent
Audit made various recommendations in particular addressing the level of executive attendance at meetings, the role of the
Company Secretary in supporting the Commitiee and the number of 1Issues which the Audit Committee needs to address These
recommendations have now been addressed and the Audit Committee belevas that the Commuttes works in a more effective
way as a result
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Nomination Committee report

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present my first report for the Nomination Committes | was delighted to join the Board in March 2015 as
Chairman after Geoff Shingles indicated nis intention to retire from the Board having served for over 19 years as Charman Geoff
was keen to ensure that an orderly succession took place and did not indicate a timescale only stepping down once a suttable
candidate was found The Nomination Committee led by the Senior Independent Directar, David Anderson, faciitated the search
for a suitable candidate to replace Geoff An independent consultancy EgonZehnder Consulting LLP, were appointed t¢ conduct
the search after a competitive tendar process EgonZehnder supported David Andersen and the Committee and after due
pracess | joined the Board in March 2015

At the 2014 AGM, David Hurst-Brown stepped down from his position as a non-executive director having served for over 14
years on the Board The Nomination Committee reviewed and evaluated the skills and expsnence of the board and cencluded
that upcn recommendation from members of the Board, Kate Rock had the nght balance of skills, knowledge and expenence to
complement the Board Kate was appointed as a non-executive director in August 2014

Roles and responsibilities of the Nomination Commitiee

The role of the Nemination Committee 1s to lead the preccess for new appointments to the Board, 1o ensure there 1s a formal
procedureg for the appontment and nduction of naw directors for the Group

Dunng the year, the Committee continued to develop its succession plans for executives and non-executive directors The
Commirtise initiated the recruitment process for the two appointments, mentioned above As part of this process we have taken
Inte acceount the respective tenures of office, analysing the skills which were either missing or could be missing In future and how
different personalties weuld fit the Board

The Nomination Committee has, dunng the year, reviewed and confirmed to the Board that it remains satisfied, that all of the
non-axaecutive chractors are independent in that they have no business or other relationship with the Group that might influence
ther independence or judgement

The main duties of the Committee include but are not imited to the foliowing
* Review the size, composition and structure of the Board and the Board committees,

* Review succession planning for the Board and senior levels within the Group and ensure an approprate balance of skills,
knowledge, experence and diversity,

* Oversee induction plans for directors,
» Evajuate the balance of skills, expenence, ndependence and knowledge of the Board, and

» Consider diversity 1ssues

Composition of the Committee
* Bert Nordberg — Chairman

» David Anderscn
* Gilles Delfassy
* Andrew Heath
* Hossen Yassaie

The Committee had four meetings dunng the year, the attendance of which 1s given on page 68
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The Committee continues to support the Group’s management and leadership development programme for the executives

and senior management It1s considered essential In support of the Group's strategy and continued development Hossein
Yassae 1s a Commiitee member in order to ensure that there 1s a balance between executive and non-executive directors on the
Committee

We are satsfied with the current composition of the Board and ensure we will continue to assess that the Board has the requisite
skills ang experience as cur markets develop

PN

Bert Nordberg
Chairman of the Nominaten Commuttee

29 June 2015
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Directors’ Remuneration Committee report

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Directors' Remuneration Committee report for 2015 This report outlines the
Directors' Remuneration Policy (the Policyl applied by the Board for the executives and non-executive Directors of the Company
The report 1s diwmded into two sections A policy report which sets out the approach te remuneration and a remuneration report
which detals what has been paid to the directors during 2014/15 When considering remuneration for our senior executives, the
Directors Remuneration Committee (the Committes) has used the policy framework approved by shareholders at the AGM in
September 2014

We continue to listen and take inio consideration sharehoiders’ and institutional views regarding our Policy This year we are
proposing to implement minor amendments to the Policy which in our opinion further aligns executive remuneration with the
interests of shareholders These include an adjustment to the annual bonus with the addition of a malus and clawback clause,
consistent with the Long-Term incentwe Plan (LTIP) with a ightening of the target parameters of the annual bonus, the nclusion
of executive directors In a newly introduced Share Incentive Ptan (SiP), and the ability for executive directors to receive cash

in lew of pension paymeants (more detail of these minor amendments are on pages 78 to 80) Any maor changes to the Polcy
would only be made after consultation and approval from shareholders The Policy s designed and produced to comply with the
prnciples of the UK Corporate Governance Code and amendments to the Companies Act 2006 regarding remuneration

The Committee will continue to monitor the market competitiveness of the remuneration policy in order to ensure we are able
to retan and attract the best talent During the year the Committee reviewed the overalf remuneration package of the executive
directors to ensure that each director 1s retained and motivated to promote and achieve the strategic chjectives of the Group

We have no changes to the LTIP scheme that was introduced in 2013 Both the annual bonus and the LTIP schemes will be
reviewed over the next 12 months against emerging best practice and to determine therr cngoing suitabity

Executive director salaries

In orcler 1o retan the cabbre of management necessary to deliver the Group s fong-term strategy, our pahcy 1s to ensure that

base pay for executive directors 1s competitive with the market and recognizes personal performance The Committee reviewed
the salanes of both executive directors during the last year The CEQ's salary was increased in ine with the average employas
increase in the UK of 4 03% Following a review of the CFO's performance and remuneration relative to the market, it was felt
appropriate by the Board to increase his salary by 11 32% (more detall 1s provided on page 86 of this report} This increase was a
result of the Committee bringing the CFO’s salary in line with the Remuneration Policy with the aim of paying market median base
salanies In future it 1s anticipated that the CFO's salary increase will be in ine with the average increase across the Group subject
to market conditions

The annual bonus plan measures both n-year busness performance targets and progress aganst personal and strategic
objectives An important principle of the annual bonus plan 1s that no bonus can be paid unless the Group has achieved a base
tevel of business performance The Group performance in 2014/15 was sufficient to tngger a bonus payout, the first in three
years The business achieved 82% of the Group budget for adiusted operating profit and 98% of budget for Group reverue

In addition this meant that the personal objective elerent of the bonus was also paid The CEQ will receive an annual bonus
amounting to 76% of actual basic salary with the CFO receiving 61% of actual basic salary {further details cf the annual bonus
are on page 92}

Annual bonus outcome ‘

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) outcome

The LTIP takes nto consideration the performance of both the Group and its share price, and 1s destgned to act as an ncentive
to motivate executives to achieve the long-term growth plans of the Group Under the LTIP the performance period 1s three years
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and executives are required to retain a percentage of shares after vesting in order to busld up a shareholding value worth more
than their annual satanes The LTIP will be tasted on the third anniversary of grant which will be September 2016 and October
2017, and s9 no payments will be made o the executives under the LTIP i» this inancial year

Share dilution

In 2006 shareholders granted approval for the Group to use 1 5% of its 1Issued share capital for employee share schemes per
annumie 15% in any 10 vear penod Under this authonty the Group has granted 40 million shares to employees and continues
to grant discretionary share awards to all employees twice per year Of the 40 million shares only 2 million of them have been
granted to executives and the remainder to employees

Dunng the past nine yzars the Group has grown considerably with the number of employees increasing from 300 to 1,700, with
over 250 employees based in the US In afl markets we face increased competiton for high calibre talent and this i1s particularly
acute in the US

Qur remuneration package at Imagination 1s atypical, in that we ¢o not currently pay cash bonuses to all employees but
believe that share awards to all employees aligns thetr interest with that of shareholders and the Group s continued success At
Imaginations we have built a cutture that encourages a broad-based employee ownership in the Group, and we believe that this
builds strong loyalty and alignment with both the Group’s fortunes and the interests of shareholders We wish to build on this
culture and as such increase the number of shares avallable for award tc employees and we are proposing an ncrease In the
number of shares we can allocate to employees for future awards under the Group's share plans It should be noted that share
awards to executive directors under the LTIP are manly purchased in the market so 1t 1s not anticipated that they would benefit
from this proposed Increase

We have consulted with our major shareholders on this 1Issue and we understand they are supportive of our proposal
Accordingly a resclution to amend current share plan rules to this effect 1s ncluded in the AGM notice

Activities of the Remuneration Committee during 2014/15

Dunng the last financial year, amongst other things, the Committee

* considered and agreed the potential cutcome for the cash bonus for 2013/14 financial year,

L

set 2014/15 annual bonus targets and performance targets for the LTIP 2015-2017, '
* considered a benchmarking report in support of the executive salary review

= reviewed executive directors’ base salary levels and approved increases as detaded in the report, :
» advised on salary adjustments and share awards to senior management reperting to the Executive Directors

* considered the progected out-turns for the 2014/15 annual borus,

* agreed the remuneration terms for the appointment of Bert Noraberg who was appointed as non-executive charman

s considered and agreed the remuneratton terms for Kate Rock who was appointed a non-executive director,

» reviewed appropnatengss of all current employee share schemes, In particular share dilution mits under all plans and the
introduction of a Share Incentive Plan (SIP),

¢ reviewed executive directors particspation in the all employee SIP instead of discontinued Save As You Earn (SAYE) scheme
and to propose to amend the Remuneration Policy accordingly at the AGM to allow the executive directors to participate,
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» considered the statutory reporting regulations in respect of execuiive remuneration policy and in drafting the remuneration
report,

¢ recommended the approval of the 2014/15 remuneration report to the Board, and
* reviewed its own terms of reference

We believe our current remuneration practices are set out In line with the reporting regulations and we welcome the structure and
transparency this brings Overall we believe that our remuneration pelicy ts aligned with delivering the Group’s strategy and long-
term value to sharehclders

As part of the 2014 board review, the effectiveness of the Commitiee was considered by the external reviewers, Independent
Audit 1was pleased to note its view that they commended the Commuttee on its process and structure to proceedings and in
trying to ensure that management are clear both on the responsibilities of the Committee and those of management i supporting
the Committee We are consicdlenng other suggestions that were put forward and we will follow through on these in 2015/16

t ook forward to the on-gong support of the Imagination shareholders on both the advisory vote for the executive remuneration
arrangements as they were cperated this past year, as well as the resolutions on the remuneration report the remuneration Polcy
and the nminor amendments to the Policy to enable executive directors to participate in the SIP which is the subject of approval at
the AGM In September 2015

Yours sincerely

o '

Andrew Heath
Chairman of the Remuneration Commuittee

29 June 2015
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Remuneration Policy

The Directors' Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in September 2014 and

apphes for three years from that date We will be making minor amendments to align executive remuneration with the interests of
shareholders (further detalls are given in the table below) and asking sharehclders for approval to the revised Remuneration Policy
at the AGM in September 2015 The policy applies to the exacutive directors at the date of this report and 1s intended to apply to

any new executive directors who may be appemnted during this three year penod

Remuneration Policy table

A summary of the Remuneration Policy 1s set out below

Operation

Alignment with strategy
and purpose

Maximum potential
value

Performance
framework

Base salary

Recognizes expenance responsibiity and
pertarmance Suppers recruitment and
etention to deliver tha Gioup's sialegy

Salaries are reviewed annually Salary
ncreases for execulive directors are set oul
on page 86

Increases are generally appked from Apnd
gach year

In its annual raview tha Committee
considers the folowang

Pay levels at comparses of a comparatve
size and technology secior by reference
to market caprtahzaton and ravenus) on a
geographical basis

External market condions

Market median salanes

Pay increases ior all employeas in thg
Group

Inthwidual pertormance skills axpertise
and potentaf

Corporats performance on social
emargnmental and corporale governance
maliers

-

Base salanes are sat at an appropnats leves!
for each role taking nta account the factars
iBugiraied n this table Genarally salanes
are no higher than market median although
higher salanes may be paid i necessary lo
racrunl externally or to retain key axecutves
In normal aircumstances base salary
ncréases wil be no more than the average
ncreases for employees across Ihe Group
Greater increasas may be approved if there
18 a substantal changa in a director s rofe or
1aspons bishies o7 1if the sdlary 18 wgnificantly
bedgww the current market rate n such
crtumsiances ncmases may ba phasad
avar a number of years and ke condilional
on perionmance

The overall perfermance of each executive
director is consderad by the Commitiee
when rewawng base salanes

NO ecovery provisions appey

Pensicn
To prowida pension coninbutions to enable Detined contebunon plan fath Company The Company will make a pensicn Nene
dirgctors to plan for retrement contrbutions sef as a percenlage of base coninbulion ol up 1o & maxmum of 7 5% of - Ng recovery provisons apply
salary) base salary which may require an equralent
There are no special arangements for executva contabution
axecuines New to the Poircy
Alternatively a cash equrvalent
allowance can be pard i heu of a
pension contnbulion
Other benetfits
To provade wompelitve, bone ks nineowith Other Lenetits arg provided as approprate Raasonable rmarket ¢ost of providing MNone

lo the location af tha execulve chrectior

ang includs car allowance or car and fuel
afiowance leng term sickness and disabulity
nsurance death n serace cenefil and
private health and travel insurance for the
exacutyves and family

markat practkca to analle the Group to
recruit and retain high calbre executive
directors

b ni fit

The Cormmittes reserves its discration 1o
prowde such stunlion-speaic banelite
s may be required 1n the niterests of the
Group s business  such as relocation

Ne recavery provisicns apply
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Alignment with strategy
and purpose

Annual bonus pian

Delivery of in-year financlal
performance and kay business
imparatives

Operation

Bonus 4 eamed s pad wholy

s cash after \he post year end
Prelrunary Announcemeant

Bonus paymenls ara nol pensionable
Indnvidual pertarmance measures are
[peusen on cpctnng that are speabc
1o aach executve drecior and relate
to clear strateqrc operational or
relationship imperativas

Maximum potential
value

The targal award leval 15 100% of
sadary for the CEO and 75% of salary
for tha CFO

For performance in excess of largef
& maumum bonus of target can be
pad

The bonus s seXf funding

No bonus 13 paid if the Group does
not achieve 85% o1 the adjusted
operating proht target

Performance
framework

Peiformancy s assessed by the Committes using mancial
arkd oA finanual measure

The targets ara

1 Group revenue budgst {25%)

* Adusted operatng prott (50%) and

3 indmadi:al pardcrmance (25%)

Tha measuras (1) & (2} have the following linear calibration

% of budget achisved

m -1 -

The Comumittes will apply judgernent in assessing ndnaduzal
performance based on quantitatve and qualilztve results

The Committea ratans discretion to adust boaus targets to
reflect mtervenny] events such as aGquis hons or disposals
Thase wil be distlosed 1ccerdingly

New to the Policy

The Comrmitise has the drscretion to apply the malus
provision on an mndividual or group basis and amend or
withciraw the bonus before payment. If the Company
can demonstrate that indrerduals have acted m an
wmproper mannar Malus and/or clawback provisions
may apply in exceptional cases such as matenal
mrsstatement of resuits, a material failure of nsk
management, ssrous reputational damage senous
ndnvrdual wrongdoing such as gross misconduct

% of target bonus payahle

Long-Term Incaentive Plan

To incentivize executive diroctors
to achieve parformance ohjectives
dirpctly inkad to the Group s long
term finangial and strategic goals
To align executive directors
interests with those of our
shareheldars through the
perfarmanca condiions and share
retentian obiigatian

LTIP awards may lake the form of
ni-cost options condilional share
awards, or restricted shares at

the discretion of the Commuttee
Additiongl shares may be accrued I
heu of dwdends and awarded on any
sharas wheh vast

Awards vest on the third anny ersary
ot grant SUDIECH YO he pararmance
conditions and provided the Director
reinana n ofice ath the Campany

The maxumum award ‘evel 15 250% of
salary for lha CEC and 175% of salary
for the CFO

in excephonal circumslancas the
maxamum opportundy i3 600% This
was put vi place i case thara s a
need 10 reCruit a highly expenenced
executva To date we hava not usad
e 600% ant hers are no p1ANS 10
increzse the opportunity levels for the
current exgcutve crectors

The vesting of share awards undar the LTIP will depend on
ihree performance condiions

1 Adusted sarrings per share (50%])

2 TSR growth relatve to the FTSE All World Technology
Index consituents (25%) and

3 TSR growth relaive lo the FTSE 350 index consttuants (25%)

The Commuttee retans discrelion to adjust LTIP targats to
reflutt nleaveng evants such as auGus ons 9t Usp.sds
These wi be disclosed accordingly

Malus The Commitee has discretien 1o reduce a share
oward including lo Zero prar tQ vesting whers there are
exceplicnal crcumstances which include a materal mis
slatement in the Company s pubhshed results mMisconduct
by the execuinve dirgclor thai 1s deemed to have inliated or
contnbuted to a matenal foss as a rasult of rackless neghgent
or witful achions  ¢r nappropnale values or behaviour

Clawback The Committes has discretion to clawback
shares and execulive direciors have an ohligaton under the
rules ¢f the LTIP to transier shares or pay over the proceeds
of a share sale n exceplional circumstances {as dascnbad
abova) If soid at ess than markeat value the obfgation s lo
pay market value a1 the data of disposal Clawback would be
lass any ncoma tax and nalional nsurance paicd o dus (o be
pad The Commuitee has discretion ta set .ha length of the
clawback period which would normaly be lwo years from
acquisiion of he shares
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Alignment with strategy
and purpose

Operation

Maximum potential value

Perfermance framework

Save As You Earn (SAYE)

' To encourage share ownership
across the broader amployee
population

‘ Naw to the Policy

i Share incentiva Plan (5P}
To encourage shore ownership
across thae broader employse

population

Exacutive dractors may paricpats on
1ha same terms as other amployees
Tha option pnce may be discounted
by up to 20%

Accurmulaled savngs may be used 1o
exgrase an ophion 10 acquie shares

Executive divectors may participate on
the same lerms as olher eimpicyees.

The maumum savings amount is
curmently £500 per month ovar a three
year pened This may ba mcreased

In accordance with changes le UK
legiglation as apphed 10 oll parnaipants
n he plan

Exasutive directors will ba subyect 1o
the same maxanums n place Jor alf
emplovess parbcipatng wi the SIP
Tha abova irmits may be increased

n accordance with changes (o UK
legisiation In dchtian the Company
at 13 QrsCrelion may choose 10 award
matchng shares m any rato of up
w21

No performance condhigns are permitled by UK legisiation
tor this typa aof plan

Na recovary provisions apply

No performance condiions are permiltad by UK legusiation
for ttus type of plan
No recovery provisons apoh

Legacy Long-Term Share Flans (Awards No Longer Madle)

Employee Share Plan (ESP)

wncluding Tax-Efficient Employee

Share Plan

(in respect of years up to and
Includhng 2013)

ESP resincied share awards vest on
the thid annversary of grant subyect
lo achievement ¢f the partarmanca
measure and provided tha Director
reangnis m ofiee with the Company

100% of salary

Vesting 15 based 100% on the perceniage growlh in tha pnce
of a share in the Company compared to the percentage
growth of the FTSE techMARK All Share Index (Index) over
the 3 year period commencing on tha dats of grant

Awards have the followng knear vasting schedula

Out-performance of index

% of shares vesting

Empioyee Shara Plan ([ESP}

[1in respect of one-off share award

For CEQ in 2009)

Ona off award n 2009 when the
Board consderad it nacessary for
retentan and motvalion purposes

2 25 mulhon shares awarded

Vestng 15 based on the annuat cumulative growth in he
Companys share price over the third founb and fifth year
from the data of grant Awards have the folowng inaar
vesting schadule

Cumuiative share pnce growth % of shares vesting

l <7 5% C%

The number of shares vasted Lo dals
December 2012 - 750 000
Deceinber 2013 - 278 Q00
December 201~ -0
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Selection of performance measures and the target
setting process

Annual bonus plan

Performance measures for the Annual Bonus Plan are set annually Each year the Committee considers the most appropnate
metrics to apply for the following financial year These metrics are currently Group revenue budget and adjustad operating profit
A performance mulhipher 15 then appled ralated to the achievement of the financial elements The annual bonus algo ncludes

a 25% element based con personal performance Each executive director 1s set a number of personal objectives in relation to
clear strategic, operatwonal, or relationship mperatives aligned to the Group's overall strategy The Committee s of the opinion
that the financial targets and personal objectives for the Annual Bonus Plan are commercially sensitive and as such it would be
detnmental to the Group (o disclose them in advance of or dunng the relevant performance penod Business targets are set

as predefined ranges around budget and individual targets are set taking account of strategic prionties under the contrel of the
executive

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Performance measures for the LTIP were selected after careful consideration and following consultation with larger shareholders
and advisory bodies The Commitiee believes that the use of both TSR and EPS measures provides the best measure of the
success of the execution af the Group's sirategy and encourages reinforces and rewards the delivery of sustainable sharsholder
value

The TSR element (which accounts for 50% of awards) considers the Group s performance against two relevant comparator
groups (sector and size-based) to reward sustanable shareholder value creation relative to alternative nvestment opportunities
for our shareholders Targets are in ine with typical market practice, requinng rankang at median to deliver threshold vesting
increasing on a straight-line basis to fult vesting for ranking waithin the upper quartile

The normalized EPS growth performance conditton (which accounts for 50% of awards) has been set following independent
analysis by the Group’s advisors and brokers Based on this analysis the compound annuat growth n EPS targets were set for
2014/15 as follows

* (0% pay out below 10% growth,

* 25% pay out at 10% growth,

= 100% pay out at 20% growth or greater, and

s Linear progression between 25% and 100% thresholds

The Committee intends to review the performance targets and best prachce guidelnes annually Changes will be made only if the
targets beceme inappropnate due to changing market conditions
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lllustration of the remuneration policy for 2015/16

The graph below illustrates the level of remuneration that could be achieved by the CEO and CFO through the operation of
our remuneration pohcy for 2015/2016 and the actual total remuneration paid in 2013/14 and 2014/15 The graphs show the
proportion of total remuneration made up of fixed pay (salary, pension and other benefits}, annual benus and the LTIP and the
pay outcomes for three performance scenanos

Chief Executive Officer

Scenaro Actual
£2 500 000 £2 500 000
£2 000 000 £2 000 000
£1 500 D00 1500000
€1 000 000 £1 000 000
2500 0GG £500 000
jus) £0 :i
Minimum Maximum 201314 2m4n5
nlLTIP £0 580 000 £1 160000 WLTIP 3] o
w Annual Bonus £0 273 760 £547 520 8 Annual Bonus ] {339 552
m Total Fixed Pay £519 472 £519 472 £519 472 # Actual Fixed Pay £478 183 £494 766
Chief Financial Officer
Scenaro Actual
€1 200 000 £1 200000
£1 000,000 1000 000
£300 000 43% £800 000
£600 000 £600 000
)
£400 000 29% £400 000
£200 000 . £200 000
28%
jws} jue)
Mimimum Targst Maximurm 2013414 2014415
sLIIP o £236 250 £472 500 wLTIP 0 £0
m Annual Bonus £0 £169 300 £318 600 w Annual Bonus €0 £148 907
m Total Fixed Pay 12303 250 £301 250 £301 250 W Actual Fixed Pay £243 897 €274 196

“ Ng LTIP was due to vest n 2014/15
The following assumptions have been used

Miimum  this represents fixed remuneration congisting of current annuakized satary pension and an estimate of other benefits based on the
2014715 disclosed valug

Target this represents fixed remuneration as delaled above plus 50°% Ut the maximum bonus opportuntty and vesting of H0% of the maximum
LTIP award

Maxirmum this repiesents fixed remuneration togather with the maximum annual bonus opportunity and vesting of 100% of LTIP award
In accerdance with the regulaiions, share price appreciation and dvdend accrual are not taken nto account SAYE awards are also excluged

As seen by the charts above, at larget levels of performance, around 62% of the CEO's total pay, and around 57% of the CFO s total pay, anses
from performance-related elements nsing to over 70% at 'stretch’ levels at which point total pay s capped The Committes s sahished that there
18 a strong incentive for the prudent management of nsk, and that there are no perverse ncentives created by the remuneration policy
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Development of the Group remuneration policy
Consideration of executive remuneration with the wider Group

When making remuneration decisians for the executive directors the Committee considers the wider economic environment and
cenditons within the Group In particular, the Committee considers pay and employment conditions across the wider workicrce
and carefully considers the broader employee salary increase budget when making reward decisions for executive directors

The Committee considers wider industry benchmarking matenal in the context of monitoring its overalt positicn on director and
employee pay

Consideration of shareholders views

The Committee welcomes an open and transparent dialogue with shareholders and seeks the views of significant shareholders
when any major changes are being made to remuneration arrangements The Commuttee will continue to engage with
shareholders going forward and wil! am to consult on any material changes to the application of the appreved remuneration
policy or proposed changes to the policy tseff

Recruitment remuneration arrangements

When determining the appropnate remuneration package for a new appointment, the Committee will take a number of factors
Into account These typically nclude the candidate’s expenence and calibre theair personal circumstances, external market
influences and arrangements for existing executive directors The on-going remuneration package offered to new directors wilk
only include those elerments listed within the policy table, which may include specific relocation benefits On-going vanable pay
awards will be subject 1o the Imits as set out In the policy table Full detaills of the recruitment package for any new execuive
directors will bg set cut in the next Annuai Report on Remuneration

In additron to the on-gong elements of the remuneration package the Committee reserves the nght to ‘buy-out’ awards being
forfeited elsewhers through accepting a role at Imagination The Committee will give consideration to any relevant factors when
determining the value of such awards, including the form of the award (eg , cash or shares}, the prepertion of the performance/
vesting penod outstanding and the potential value of the forfeited remureration, including performance conditions attached to
the awards, the lkelhood of those conditions being met and the timing of any potential payments | 1s the intention that such
buy-cut awards will be made through use of the exceptional LTIP mit However, the Committee may rely on the relevant Listing
Rule exemption f necessary for the purpose of making a buy-out award in the event that the Group hire an executive director and
need to match cr pay-off shares they held with therr previous company Where an executive director 15 appomnted from within the
organization, the Commiitee has the power to honour legacy arrangements in line with the cnginal ierms and conditions

In the event of the appointment of a new non-executive director remuneration arrangements will ba in ine with those detaled on
page 91

Service contracts

Qur policy 18 for notice penods for executive directors to ba six months duraticn and each of the executive directors service
contracts reflect this These agreements also contain restrictive covenants for periods of three to six months following termination
of employment relating to non-competition, non-salicitation of the Group's customers, no-dealing with custormners and non-
solcitation of the Group’s supplers and employees In addition, each service contract has an express oblgation of confidenuality
n respect of the Group's trade secrets and confidential intormation and provides for the Group to own any intellectual property
nghts created by the directors In the course of ther employment
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The dates of the service contracts of each person who served as an executive director during the financial year are as follows

Contract Date Notica pariod
Sir Hossen Yassae 31 March 1998 6 months notice by director or Company
Richarct Smith 3 May 2011 6 months notice by director or Company

The non-executive directors do not have service contracts and are not eligible to participate In bonus or share ncentive
arrangements Therr service does not qualify for pension purposes or other benefits, and no element of therr fees s performance
related No payments are due on loss of office

Service contracts for the executive directars and Chairman and appointment letters for the non-executive directors are avalable
te view at the office of the Company Secretary at the registered office address

It 1s the Group’s policy to allow executive directors to hold non-executive positions at other caompanes and to recetve
remuneration for therr services The Board believes that expenence of the operations of other companies and therr Boards and
Committees 1s valuable to the development of the executive directors

Termination of employment

The Committee maintains a discretionary approach 1o the treatment of leavers, on the basis that the facts and circumstances
of each case are unigue When considerng a departure event, there are a number of factors which the Committee takes into
account In determining appropnate treatment for outstanding incentive awards These include

* the position under the relevant plan documentaton

+ the indwidual circumstances of the departure,

* any mtigating factors that might be relevant,

+ the appropnate statutory and contractual postion,

* the performance of the Company/individual during the year to date,
* the nature of the handover process, and

» the requirements of the business for speed of change

In some cases, the treatment 1$ formally prescnbed under the rules of the relevant plan Where thers are ‘good-leaver’
crcumstances, awards which would otherwise lapse by default, will vest erither on the normal vesting date or on cessation of
employment These crcumstances include death, injury ll-health, disability, redundancy or sale of the Cempany or business

If the executive dies or leaves due to il health or Injury, awards which have less than 12 months of the performance penod
rermaining or LTIF awards which have less than 12 months of the deferred period 1o run, vest automatically on leaving In other
leaver circumnstances the Commuttee has discretion to determine when, and 10 what extent awards vest The Commitice
considers the leaver circumstances along a continuum, ranging from ‘bad leaver’ scenanos such as termination of employment
for gross misconduct or resignation, through to the ‘good leaver scenanos outhned above Accordingly the Commuttee may
apply (or dis-apply) such performance conditions or time pro-rating awards vesting in these crcumstances, as it consders
appropriate

Annual bonus

In a departure event, the Conmittee will typically consider whether any element of annuat borius should be pad for the financial
year Any bonus f paid will be limited to the period served dunng the financial year in which the departure occurs
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Long-Term Incentive Plans

The default position 1s that an unvested ESP or LTIP award lapses on cessation of employment, unless the Committee applies
discretion to preserve some or all of the awards This prowvides the Committee with the maximum flexiboilty to review the facts and
crcumstances of each case allowing differentiation between good and bad leavers and avaiding payment for failure

Compensation for loss of office and past director payments

No payments were made dunng 2014/15 to former executive directors by way of compensation for loss of office, or pay in lieu of
notice There are no payments to be disclosed in respect of past drectors \

Relative importance of pay spend
The following takle summarizes the major cash distnbutions during the year as set out In the notes 1o the financial statements on
page 119, compared to the total pay spend for the Group

2014/2015 2013/2014 % change
£'000 £'000
Total pay spend 95,817 87,518 949

Total employment costs for Group are £95,817.000

Dividends and share buybacks
The Company has not pad any dwvidends or perfoermed any share buybacks n either financial year
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Remuneration Committee report

Composition

Andrew Heath charrs the Remuneraticn Committee made up of Independent non-executive directors which met four tmes
during the year Both Bert Nordberg and Kate Rock joined the Committee in March and January 2015 respectively The
membership and mesting attendance s set cut below In addiion to the Committee members the Chies Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer may be nvited to attend meetings, except In Instances where therr own remuneration 1s discussed, or
other circumstances where therr attendance would not be appropriate

Committee members

Meetings
Eligible to attend Attended
Andrew Heath {Chauir) 4 4
David Anderson 4 4
Gilles Delfassy 4 4
Bert Nerdberg 1 1
Kate Rock 1 i

Given their diverse business experience, the independent non-executive directors who made up the Committee In 2014/15 offer
a fair and balanced view In relation to remunerat:on matters for the Group

Responsibility
The Committee determines the remuneration policy and rewards for the executive directors and, in his absence the Chairman

The Committee also raviews the remuneration packages of those at the next most senior leval of management and has regard to
levels of pay across the Group

Salanes and fees

Our policy 1s to set salares in lne with market median, when comparing similarly sized companies, and mdmdual performance
The Committee 15 of the view that the salary of the CEC 1s cansistent with this policy The CEC consequently receved a salary
increase of 4 03% m Apnl 2015, which murrored the average employee increase in the UK However, for the CFO, his basic salary
1S In the lower quartile comparad to the market and the Committee cecided that it 1s necessary to increase the CFO s salary in
ine with market median The Committee and the Board are pleased with Richard's performance dunng a time where the Group
has expanded considerably and that he 1s the nght person to ensura the Group are able to execute its strategy After taking these
factors into account the Committee has increased Richard's salary by 11 32% with effect from 1 Apnl 2015

External Committee advisers

The Committee has access to Independent professional adwice on remuneration matters Towers Watson were appointed by
the Commities n 2012 and Committee members continue to be satisfied that ther advice I1s objective and independent and
their fees are in line with market practice Access to ther global database and expertise 1s an important factor in considering
remuneration matters across the EMB and senior management team Work undertaken by Towers Watscn in 2014/15 included
advice on the salary benchmarking for executive directors, fees benchmarking for non-executive directors, fee benchrmarking
for the new non-executive charman and assistance In amendments (o the Remuneration Policy for which total fees of £54,000
were pad The Commitiee alse received advice from J P Mergan Cazenove whe provided independent verfication of the Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) calculatons for the LTIP
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Voting at the 2014 Annual General Meeting

The key activities of the Commuttee during the year are set out in the letter to shareholders on pages 75 to 77 of this report

As previously noted shareholder support at the 2014 AGM was high with 99 019% aof shareholders voting in favour of the
Remuneration Report The following table summanzes the details of votes cast in respect of Directors’ remuneration the binding
vote on the Directors' Remuneration Policy and the advisory vote on the Directors’ Remuneration Commitiee report at the 2014
Annual General Megting

Fesolution Votes for Votes against Proportion of share Votas which were

{and % of votes casty) {and % of votes cast) capital voting withheld
Remuneration policy 170,076 223 98 57% 2 466,605 144% 64 20% 324 190
Remuneration report 170,838,650 99 01% 1,706,227 0 99% 64 20% 321 141

Performance graphs

The perfermance graphs show the Group's one year and five year TSR tagether with the TSRs for the FTSE All-World technology
Index from 1 May 201013 shown below TSR ior the Company's shares was 2 66% over the financial year compared with
31 01 % ifor the FTSE All-World technology Index for the same penod

The Committee considers the FTSE All-World Technology Index to be an appropnate choice as the index contains companies
from the US, Asia and Europe and therefore reflects the global environment in which the Group cperates In addition the Index
includes many cocmpanies that are currently the Group's customers, as well as companies that use Imagination technology In
therr products
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Share price

The market value of Imaginaton Technologies Group ple shares on 30 Aprl 2015 was 196 5p The highest and lowest market
share price of the ordinary share in the year was 265 125p and 171 75p respectively
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Remuneration in 2014/15
CEOQ'’s pay for the last five financial years

The following table summarizes the total remuneration for the Chief Executive over the last five years

Year 2010/11 2011112 2012113 2013/14 2014115
CEO's total single figure £'000 2,053 6,400% 3,639 935° 835
CEQ's unexercised share awards £ 000 Q 0 3011 4598 0
Actual bonus as a percentage of maximum 0 66%3 60%" 0%* 65%"
opportunity

ESP/LTIP shares vesting as a percantage of 50% 100% 100% 37% 0%

the mitial award

In 2011 50% of the imwal award vested, the CEQ exercised 500,000 shares

2|n 2012 the CEO exercised 802 000 shares, using the sale proceeds of £3 5m from this transaction to pay income tax and
natonal nsurance The CEQ retained 227,000 shares

3 The total single figure in¢ludes ths value of 459,200 shares at the date of vesting These shares remain unexercised
1The total single figure Includes the value of 750,000 shares at the date of vesting These shares remain unexercised
5The total single figure mcludes the value of 278,000 shares at the date of vesting These shares rermain unexercised

8|n 201 1/12 the annual cash bonus of 60% represents the portion of the pool of £250,000 the maximum opportunity paid to the
CEOQ the remaining 40% was paid to the CFO and the pool was distributed in full The bonus related to the 2010/11 financial year

7In 2013 the annual cash bonus of 6% represents the portion of the pool of £250,000, the maximum opporiunity paid to the CEQ
the remaning 34% was pad to the CFO and the pool was distriouted n full The bonus related to the 2011/12 financial year

8in 2013/14 no bonus was paid
91 2014/15 the annual cash bonus of 5% represents a payment of £339,552 with the maximum opportunity beng £526,000

Increase In pay and benefits from 2014 te 2015 for the CEO compared to employees

CEQ Employees
Base Salary 4 03% 4 03%
Benefits and pension 0% 0%
Bonus 100% N/A
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Share dilution

In 2014715 the Group continued to manage dilution within the context of mantaining award levels within a 15% hmit over 10
years, the imit that has apphed since it was approved by the shareholders in 2006, this authority will expira in 2016 The Group

has 1ssued share awards In the past nine years totaling 13 8% and with lapsed shares returming, the diution 1$ currently 10 28%
of Issued share capital

As outhned in the Charman’s letter on pages 75 to 77 the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the approprateness of this
dilution level n 2015 and subyect to shareholder approval at the 2015 AGM we will propose to Increase the overall imit on dilution

to 10% over 5 years for future all employee share awards To satisfy executive share awards we will largely buy shares in the
market

Employee Share Plan (ESP)

The ESP 1s the primary Long-Term Incentive Plan that 1s offered to all employees For executives, the incentive plan is subject to
performance conditions

Date of grant Share price At start Granted Exercised Lapsed At end Vesting date Lapse date

an grant £{p) of year durmng year durning year  during year of year
Gaoff Shingles 03/10/2011 4253 131,250 - - - 131,250 03/10/2011 03/10/2016
Sir Hossein Yassae 22/12/2009 2275 2,250,000 - (1,222,000) 1028000 22/i2/2012 22/12/2019
Richard Smith 06/10/2011 4281 50 000° - (50 000} 0 08/10/2014

'The CEO's award of 2,250,000 shares granted on 22 December 2009 1s subject to performance conditions The award vested
In three equal tranches of 750,000 shares cormmencing on 22 December 2012 The first tranche of 750,000 shares vested

on 22 December 2012 and these shares were not exercised Of the second tranche 278 000 shares vested on 22 December
2013, in accordance with the perforrnance conditions, these sharaes have not been exercised The balance from the second
tranche of 472,000 shares was retested on the third anniversary and as a result of the performance condiions not being
achieved did not vest and wers lapsed The third tranche of 750,000 shares did not vest due to the performance conditions not
being achieved The performance conditions were related to the annual cumulative growth in the Group's share price over the
third, fourth and fitth year from the date ot grant If the annual cumulative growth of the Group's share price is less than 7 5%,
no part of the award will vest, if the annual cumulative growth of the Group's share price 1s more than 7 5% and less than 156%

the performance target will be satisfied pro-rata on a straight Ine basis and if the annual cumulative growth of the Group'’s share
price 15 15% or more, 100% will vest

2 The award of 50,000 shares to CFO did not vest due to the performance conditions not being achieved as noted below for the
TEESP

The price of a share in the Group for these purposes will be the average mid—market closing price as derived from the Official
List of the London Stock Exchange for each business day in the pencd of three months preceding the grant date and the third
anniversary of the grant date The value of the index will be the average value of the Index for each business day in the three
menths precading the grant date and the third anniversary of the grant date as appropriate

The highest and lowest share prices in the year are set out on page 87
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Tax Efficient Employee Share Scheme (TEESP)

Share awards with joint ownership between the executives and a beneficial nterest neld with the Company Employese Benefit
Trust were granted on 22 January 2013 The number of share awards and beneficial nterest 1s determined by the share price on
BXarcise

Date Share prnice At start Granted Exercised Lapsed At end Vesting Lapse

of grant on grant (p) of year during year  during year  during year of year date date

Sir Hogsen Yassae 22/01/2013 46130 40,656 - - - 40,656 22/01/2016 22/01/2022
Richard Smith 22/01/2013 46130 20,725 - - - 20,725 22/01/2016  22/01/2022

Vesting of the share awards 1s based 100% on the percentage growth i the pnce of a share in the Group compared to the
percentage growih of the FTSE techMARK All-Share Index {the ‘Index’) over the 3 year period commencing on the date of grant
The Company share price must exceed the Index by over 125% for the award to vest 50% of the award will vest if the Group
share price exceads 125% of the Index, between 125% and 150% the award will be vest on straight ine basis 100% of the
award will vest for the achievement of 150% of the Index The price of a share in the Company for these purposes will be the
average mid-market closing price as derved from the Official List of the London Stock £xchange for each business day in the
penad of three months preceding the grant date and the third annversary of the grant date The value of the Index will be the
average value of the Index for each business day in the three months preceding the grant date and the third anniversary of the
grant date as appropriate

Annual report on remuneration
Executive single figure table (audited)

The fallowing table summarizes the remuneration receved by the exacutive directors In respect of the financial years ended 30
Apri 2014 and 30 Apnl 2015

Total amount of Al pension-related All taxable Annual Incentiva Lang-term incentive Total
salary and fees benefits benefits paymenis payments single figure
£000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £'600
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 015 2014 2015 2014

Executive
Sir Hossein Yassaie 446 428 28 32 22 16 339 4592 0 ¢ 335 935
Richard Smith 245 222 18 15 12 12 149 0 o] 0 424 249
Tatal 691 550 46 a7 34 23 488 459 0 0 1,259 1,184

' This taxable benefit Includes £5.672 as an allowance paid In heu of pension contributions due to Hossen exceeding his annual
pension allowance

2This Incentive figure Includes the value of 278,000 shares at the date of vesting, these shares remain unexercised
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Chairman and non-executive fees

Non-axecutive

Geoff Shingles'
Bert Nordberg”
Andrew Heath
Gilles Delfassy
David Anderson
Dawvid Hurst-Brown?
lan Pearson

Kate Rock*

Total

Total amount of salary and fees

Al taxahble benefits

Tatal Singte Figure

2015 2014 2015 2014 205 2014
£78,750 £78,750 £13,000 £13,000 £91,750 £91 750
£14,833 - N/A N/A £14 833 -
£43,333 £43 000 N/A N/A £43,333 £43,000
£38,333 £38 000 N/A N/A £38,333 £38,000
£43 333 £43,000 N/A N/A £43,333 £43,000
£14,859 £38,000 N/A N/A 14,859 £38,000
£38.333 £38.000 N/A N/A £38 333 £38,000
£25,666 - N/A IN/A £25,666 -

£297,440 £278,750 £13,000 £13,000 £310,440 £291,750

' Geoff Shingles retired as Chawman ot the Board in March 2015

2 Bert Nordberg joined the board as Chairman in March 2015

3 David Hurst-Brown retired at the AGM i September 2014

* Kate Rock joined the board as a Non-Executive director In August 2014

The Charrman and non-executive directors did not recewe any other paymenis

Bert Nordberg was appointed as Chairman from March 2015 Bert will receive an annual salary of £130,000 per annum

The non-executive directors’ fees were increased from 1 Apnl 2015 It was reviewed and recommended that as the non-
executive directors had not received a fee INncrease since 2011, therr fee would increase from £38,000 to £42,000 The Charmen
of the committees will receive an additional annual fee of £5,000 for therr services

The following table compares salary increases given each year to the executives to those given to Imaginaton's employees The
changes are effective from 1 Apnil each year

Executive director

Hossein Yassawe
Richard Smith

Average employee

2013114

£'000

427

220

Increase

4 32%
10 00%

4 32%

2014/15

£ 000

445

243

Increase

4 03%
1132%

4 03%

With effect from
1 Apnl 2015
£ 000

463

270
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Pensions

The Group does not operate its own pension scheme but makes payments into a group personal pensicn plan with defined
contributions For executive directors the Group matches the executive contnbution (maximum 4 5%) and contributes an extra

1 2% and after two years of membership the 1 2% 1s increased by another 1 8% (10 a maxtimum of 7 5%j) 1f an executive reaches
their annuat or ife time pension allowance, the Group will consider whether to pay an aliowance in heu of pension contributions
as a taxable benefit

Benefits

For executive directors the Group provides the following benefits

Car Allowance Private Madical
Sir Hossein Yassae £15,000 £1,054
Richard Smith £11,000 £879

Annual Bonus Plan

Performance measures for the Annual Bonus Plan are set annually Each year the Committee considers the most appropriate
metrics 1o apply for the following financial year These metrics are currently a Group revenue budget and adjusted cperating
profit A performance multipher 1s then applied related to the achievernent of the nancial elements The annuat bonus also
includes a 25% element based on personal performance Each executive diractor 1s set a number of personal cbjectives in
relation to clear strategic, operational, or relationship imperatives aligned to the Group’s overall strategy  The Committee 1s of the
opinion that the numencal values of targets for the Annual Bonus Plan are commercially sensitive because they include budgeted
numbers within the range of outcomes and 1t would be detnmental to the Group to disclose them n advance of or dunng the
relevant performance perod

The Commuittee retains discretion to adjust bonus targets for any financial year to reflect intervening events including acgussitions
or disposats No such adjustments were made during the financial year

2014/15 annual bonus

As a result of exceeding the annual cperating profit target of over 85% in 2014/2015 and in accordance with the parameters
the executives are entitled to receive an annual bonus The targets that applied to the 2015 annual bonus and the achievement
against those targeis were

Performanc¢e measura and weighting Performance Range Bonus garned
{of budget) {% of target banus)

Performance conditions

Group Revenue Budget (25%) 98% achieved 94 4%
Adjusted Operating Profit {(AOP) (50%) 92% achieved 72 5%
Personal performance (25%)] CEO 65%  The Committee assessed performance of both the CEO
and CFQ 1n relation to therr 2014 objectives and determined
CFO 85%  achigvemant levels of 65% and 85% respectively

The 2014/15 performance measures weighted to a target bonus of 76% for the CEC and 81% for the CFO
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The personal performance element depends on the achievement of predetermined objectives which are reviewed and approved
by the Commitiee each year These include key sirategic, operational or relaticnship objectives relating to each executive s role
and responsibiites  Performance 15 reviewed and analysed in detail on an annual basis by the CEQ for CFC and by the Charman
for the CEQ The assessments are presented to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and for 2014/15 the indivdual
performance includes objectives relating to ther specific areas

2014/15 annual bonus payout

Target bonus % 2014/15 pay-out % of Actual Payment (E) % of Salary

of base salary target
Sir Hossemn Yassae 100% 76% 339,552 76%
Richard Smith 75% 81% 148,907 61%

‘The Dirgctors” Remuneration Commitiee report was approved on 29 June 2015 Subsequent to this date, the CEQ decided
to wave £89,552 of his annual perfermance bonus such that the amount paid will be £250,000 not £339,552 as stated
within this teport and recorded within the financial statements

Graph llustrating the bonuses paid over the last five years to current CEC and CFO are shown below

CEO Bonus payments CFO Bonus payments
£400 000 £160 000
£350 000 £140 000 N
£300 000 £120 000
£250 000 T100 000 —
£200 000 e £80 000 — J—
£ 150 000 — {E0 000 —
£100 000 £40 000
£50 000 €20 000
20 L £0
2010413 2011712 2012/13 2013414 2014415 2011112 2012/13 2013714 2014415
Seres1 £150 000 £165 000 ] o £:339 852 Senesi €85,000 0 0 £148 907
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Annual Bonus Plan for 2015/16

Parformance measure and weighting Performance Range Bonus earned
{cf budget] {% of target bonus)

Performance condlions

Group Revenue Budget (25%) B5% 25% pad
100% 100% pard
115% 125% pad

Adjusted Operating Profit (AOP} (50%) 85% 25% pad
100% 100% paidt
115% 125% paid

Personal performance (25%) No bonus will be paid if the Group does not achiave

859% of the Adusted Qperating Profit target

Target bonus achievement

CEQ 100% of salary
CFO 75% of salary

Payment
Annual assessment of performance conditions 100% of the bonus Paid in cash

Executive directors are eligible for an annual bonus, as described in the table above, based on adjusted cperating profit, Group
revenue budget and indmdual performance The annual bonus 1s paid in cash

Share Incentive Plans

For 2014/15 there were three key incentive schemes in operation across the workforce as a whole They are as follows
For executives

« LTIP

* SAYE

For all other employees

+ Employes Share Plan

« SIP

« SAYE

Option grants to executive directors ceased in 2006 The move away from options to restncted shares for all employees it 2006
has reduced potential dilution and has simphified remuneration arrangements

Shares eained are satisfied through the 1ssue of new shares while some shares have been purchased to sausfy share awards
made under the new LTIP for executives
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Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The LTIP 1s subject to performance condtions

Name Dateof grant  Share price At start Granted  Exercsed Lapsed At end Vesting Lapse
on grant (p) ofyear  duringyear duning year  duning year of year date date
Sr Hossein Yassae 23/09/2013 34900 305,444 8] 0 305,444  23/08/2016  23/09/2021
24/10/2014 20375 546,223 8] 0 546,223  24/10/2017  24/10/2022
Richard Smith 23/09/2013 34900 110,563 - 0 0 110563  23/09/2016  23/09/2021
24/10/2014 20375 208,496 0 0 208 496  24M10/2017  24/10/2022

Total 416 007 754,719 0 0 1,170,726

The above share awards are subject to the following performance conditions

Performance conditions

() The nermalized EPS growth performance conditons (which accounts for 50% of
awards), has been set following independent analysis by the Group s acvisors and

brokers The compound annual growth n EPS targets were set for 2014/15 as
follows

* 0% pay out below 10% growth

* 25% pay cut at 10% growth,

+ 100% pay out at 20% growth or greater, and

s Linear progression between 25% and 100% threshoids

i) TSR growth relative to the World Technelogy Incex constituents (25%) and the
FTSE 350 Index constituents {25%)

Maximum Value

CEQ 250% of salary CFQO 175% of salary
Payment
On vesting 50%

50%

25% pay out for medwan performance 100% pay-out for
achieving upper quarlile ar better

600% exceptional circumstances

Shares can be sold on third anniversary

Shares to be compulsarlly deferred until fourth (25%) and
fifth {25%6) anniversary of grant date

Actual award levels will be determined by the Committee on an annual basts taking Into account a range of factors in¢luding

performance and share price, however it 15 intended that annual awards
to the CEQ and CFO respectively The reason for thase percentage mit

10 the value of 250% and 175% of salary will be made
s Is largely due to the Group operating and competing

for high calibre executives and to act as an incentive to retain executives to achieve the long-term growth plans of the Group
In exceptional circumstances the Committee wants to be able to make share awards of 600% of basa salary Thig facility was
estabiished primarily to faciitate global recrutment of executives, and especially to attract key executives from the US
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Linkage of Long-Term Incentive Plan targets to business strategy

The new Long-Term Incentve Plan has a number of targets as described above, which are relevant to the long term strategy of
the Group

Cur intention 1s to review these targets on an annual basis, taking into account market conditions and any other relevant factors
to ensure that they remain appropnate in the context of the factors set out above The Committee will review their applicability

on an annual basis so that in the event that excepticnal circumstances anse, such as matenal corporate activity or substantal
changes in market condiiens, their impact can be considered aganst subsequent annual awards If changes are to be proposed
for any prospective LTIP award 1t would be the Committee’s ntention te confinm any such change te sharebolders in advance

Former share option schemes
The executives have no legacy share options

Shareholding requirements

Under the LTIP executives are required to build up and retain shares to a specified percentage of salary, 250% for the CEO and
175% for the CFQ Unti these targets have been reached, the executives must retain at least half of any shares acquired under
the new LTIP (but not taking inte account, for these purposes, any shares sold to meet any tax labilites ansing 1In connection with
the new LTIP)

Directors’ interests

The beneficial iInterest of the directors in the ordinary shares of Imagination Technologies Group ple (in addition to nterest n share
options and awards) are shown below

Geoff Shingles' 236 089 104,084 Q 0 131,250 0 0 755
Bert Nordherg 35000 35,000 ] o 9} 0 0 Q
Hassein Yassae 2,739 110 816,245 851,667 40,656 1,028,000 0 o] 2,542
Richard Smith 348 439 6,113 319,059 20,725 0 Q c 2,542
Andrew Heath 20677 20,677 Q 0 o 0 o 0
David Anderson 8,175 8,175 0 0 0 0 o] 0
Gilles Delfassy 0 0 0 &} 8] 0 0 0
lan Pearson 42 g22 42 622 0 0 0 Q o] 0
Kate Rock 10000 10 00C 0 o 0 0 o] 0

There have been no further changes in the above interests between 30 Apnl 2015 and 29 June 2015

Geoff Shingles retred from the Board on 20 March 2015
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In addition to the interests disclosed above the executive directors have interest in dvidend shares that could be awarded under
the LTIP, the amount of which will be confrmed once the performance conditions are satisfied

There 1s no requirement in the Articles of Association for directors to hold shares in the Group

The Directors’ Remuneration Committee report was approved by a duly authonzed Committee of the Board and signed on 1ts
tehalf by

o )

Andrew Heath
Remuneration Committee Chairman

29 June 2015
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Imagination Technologies Group plc only

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1 Our opinion on the financial statements 1s unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Imagination Technologes Group pke for the year ended 30 April 2015 set out on
pages 102 to 149 In cur opinicn

+ the financal statements give a true and far view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's affars as at 30 April
2015 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

= the Group financral statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union

¢ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the |IAS Reguiation

2 Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

In arrving at our audit cpirion above on the financial statements the nsks of materal musstatement that had the greatest eflect on
our audit were as follows

* Percentage of completion revenue recognition for icense contracts (£39,035,000)
Refer to page 70 {Audit Committee Statement), page 108 {Accounting Palcy) and page 114 (financial disclosure)

The nsk The perceniage of completion method based on costs to compiete I1s used to recogmze revenue for license contracts
modified to meet specific customer requirements This method of recognizing revenue nvolves a number of Judgements, the
main one being an assessment of the extent of progress towards completion of the contract The complexty of the estimation
process and the costs to complete assumptions (such as budgeted hours t¢ complete) apphed in the Group's revenue
recognition palicies require significant judgement and could have a matenal impact on the revenue reported in the financial
statements

Qur response Our audit procedures included testing the group’s controls over the approval of icense contracts and monitonng
progress of hcense completion ang development We assessed the application of accounting policies to a selection of contracts
to ensure these were appropnate and have been apphed consistently across the Group We obtained a selection of license
contracts based on the magnitude of the indwidual contract and/or revenue recognized in the year Through discussions with
the chief operating officer, we challenged the cost to complete assumptions in particular, the status of contracted licenses,
assumptions used in the forecasts (such as budgeted hours to complete), development wark in the period, determining the
financial and technology status of contracis selected and ensunng that this corresponded with the percentage of completion
calculations We also considered the historcal accuracy of the Group’s percentage of completion estimates and venfied
completion of contracts through evidencing delivery of completed contracts We have obtained evidence of milestone
achievements Wea considered whether these support the estimates made We also assessed the Group's disclosures about the
significant judgements and estimates made N respect of the revenug generated from license contracts

« Valuation of trade investments (£19,947,000)
Refer to page 70 {Audit Committee report), page 111 {accountng policy) and page 114 (financial disclosures)

The nsk Trade investments are carned at fair value Where investments are not publicly traded this nvolves valuation techriques
using uncbservable inputs, which can have a significant effect on the asset s vaiuation The matenal investments within this
category are Atomos and Ineda The key nput for the majority of these 1s the price paid by investors in recent funding rounds for
a share of the company
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Our response In this area our audit procedures included obtaining the information upon which the valuations were basad and
challenging the sutability of this Information as the basis for valuation, for exampie, obtaning the final documentation avalable in
regards to the funding rounds, the number and type of other Investors to ascartan whether this 1s an indicator of a market price

We also considerad alternate valuations through the use of other information available such as forecast financial performance

to obtan an estimation of the value of the company based on a discounted cash flow model We aiso compared the forecasts
to hustorical financial performance of the company to assess the reliability of these forecasts We also performed a further
comparsen of the balance sheet of the companies to obtan an estimation of the value of the company n terms of its net assets
We compared these alternate valuations to the camying value of the investments to determine whether there were any indicators
of imparment

We also assessed the group s disclosures about the sensitivity of the outcoma of the valuations to changes in key assumgtions

3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

The matenalty for the financial staternents as a whole was set at £1,200,000 This has been determined with reference to
a benchmark of Group revenue, as it provides a more stable measure year on year than group loss before tax Materality
represents O 7% of Group revenue

We agreed with the Audit Committee to report to #t all conected and uncorrected misstataments we dentified through our
audit with a value In excess of £60,000 We also agreed to report any audit misstatement below that threshold that we believe
warranted reporting on qualtative grounds

Full scope auaits for group reporting purposes were performed at the UK and US reporting components These group
procedures covered 39% of total Group revenue, 82% of the total profits and losses that made up Group loss befora tax and
S97% of total Group assets

The audits undertaken for graup reparting purpeses were performed by the group team to a materalty level of at £1,200,000 for
the UK audit and £600 CCO for the US audit

4 Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 is unmodified
In our opinion

¢ the part of the Directors” Remuneration Committes report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2008,

the information given i the Strategic report and Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared s consistent with the financial staterments, and

the informatior grven in the Corporate Governance Statement set out on page 71 with respect to internal control and nsk
management systems i relation to inancial reporting processes and about share capital structures 1s consistent with the
financial statements !

5 We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required to
report by exception

Under ISAs (UK and Ireland} we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired dunng our audit, we have
identified other information n the annual report that contans a material Inconsistency with erther that knowledge or the financial
statements, a matenal misstatement of fact, or that 1s otherwise misleading

in particular, we are required to report to you if

+ we have dentfied matenal nconsistencies between the knowledge we acguired dunng our audit and the directors’ statement
that they consider that the annual report and financial statements taken as a whole 1s far, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group s performance, business medel and strategy or '
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+ The 'Significant 1ssues that the Committee considered in relation to the financial statermnenis’ section of the Audit Committee
report dees not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit Commuttee

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report 10 you If, 1n our opinion

* adequate accounting recerds have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
receved from branches not visited by us, or

* the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Committee report to be audited are not
In agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» certan disclosuies of drectors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit or
« a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by the company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

* the directors’ statement set out on page 51, In relation to going concern, and

* the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 64 relating to the company s compliance with the ten provisions of
the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities

Scope and responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement set out on page 59, the directors are responsible for the
preparation ot the financial statements ang for baing satisfied that they give a true and farr view A description of the scope of an
audit of financial statements 1s provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members as a body and s subject to iImpaortant explanations and disclaimers
regarding our responsibiliies published on cur website at www kpmg com/uk/auditscopeukeco2014a, which are ncorporated
into this report as if set out in full and should be read to provide an understanding of the purpcse of this report, the work we have
undertaken and the basis of cur opinions

Tudor Aw

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

=14 5GL

29 June 2018
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Consolidated income statement

Notles

Revenue 1,2
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Research and development expensas 2
Sales and administrative expenses 2

Total operating expenses

Operating loss 3

Financial income
Financial expenses

Net financing expense
Loss before tax
Taxaton {charge)/credit 5

{Loss)/profit for the financial year aftributable to equity
holders of the parent

(Loss)/earmings per share Basic 5]
Dituted

Dunng this year and the previcus peried all results anse from contnuing operations

The notes to the accounts form an ntegral part of these fnancial statements

Financial report

Year to ‘Year io

30 Aprnik 2015 30 Apnl 2014
£ 000 €060
177,021 170,835
{17,716} (20 461)
159,305 150,374
(123,859) {114,835)
{43,950) (35,603)
{167,809) (150,438)
(8,504) {64)
137 168
{3,587) (418)
(3,450} (250)
{11,954) (314)
{1,070) 1,089
{13,024) 775
4 9p Q3p

(4 9p 03p




Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

(Loss)/profit for the financial year attnbutable to equity holders of
the parent

Other comprehensive income

Items that are or maybe reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation of the balance sheets of foreign
operations

Exchange differences on translation of part of the net investmeni in foreign
operaticns

Change in farr valug of assets classified as avalable for sale
Tax on items that ate or may be reclassified subseguently to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive (expense}/income for the financial year,
net of income tax

Total comprehensive {expense)/income for the financial year
attributable to equity holders of the parent

Year to Year o

30 Apnl 2015 3¢ Apnl 2014

Noles £'000 £1000
(13,024) 775

(3,201) 4,242

2,781 {2,206)

(576) 897

g - _
(596) 3033

(14,020) 3,808

Financial report

103



104

Consolidated statement of financial position

Non-current assets

Other intangible assets
Goodwil

Property plant and equipment
investments

Deferred tax

Corporation tax

Other debtors

Current assets
Inventories

Trade and other recevables
Accrued income
Corporation tax

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current abilhities

Trade and other payables

Interest beanng loans and borrowings
Corporation tax payable

Non-current habilities

Other payables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax hability

Caorporation tax

Total habiities

Net assets

Equity

Share capital

Share premum
Other capital raserve
Merger reserve
Revaluaton reserve
Transtation reserve
Retaned earnings

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

These financial stataments were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

Pl

Bert Nordberg
Director
Registered Number 2920061

Financial report
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14

At 30 Apri Ar 30 Apnl
2015 2014

£ 000 £ 000
490,385 58 560
59,834 58 834
69,001 63,616
18,947 21,081
4,865 4,928
932 811
2,302 8486
206,266 209,676
7,901 9,054
37,010 31,461
44,840 22 415
600 1,555
2,651 19,248
93,002 83,733
299,268 293 409
{40,558) (37.514)
{8,251) (8.561)
{525) (240
(49,334) (46 315)
{4,132) (6,010)
{21,650) (15,606)
{14,988) (17 062)
{3.690) (3,325)
{44,460) (42,093)
(93,794) (88,408)
205,474 205,001
27,162 26,769
101,976 99 648
1,423 1423
2,402 2,402
1,007 1,583
995 1,415
70,509 71 761
205,474 205 001




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Share Share Other cap:itai Maearger Revaluatron Translation Retained
capital prermium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £ 000
At 1 May 2013 26,571 99,236 1,423 2402 586 {621y 61,795 191,392
Profit for the year - - - - - - 775 775

Cther comprehensive incame for the year

Exchange differences on translation of the baiance
sheets of foreign operations - - - - - 4,242 - 4,242
Exchange differences on translation of part of the

net investment in foreign operatians - - - - - {2,206) - {2,208)
Change in fair value of assets classified as

avalable for sale - - - - Qg7 - - 997
Total other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 997 2,036 - 3.033
Transactions with owners

Share based remuneration - - - - - - 13,179 13179
Tax credit in respect of share-based incentives - - - - - - 2713) 2,713
Purchase of shares for LTIP - - - - - - {1,106) {1,1086)
Issue of shares at nil cost 189 - - - - - (169) -
Issue of new shares 29 412 - - - - - 441
At 30 April 2014 26,769 99 648 1,423 2,402 1,583 1,415 71,761 205,001
At 1 May 2014 26,769 99,648 1,423 2,402 1,583 1,415 71,761 205,001
Loss for the year - - - - - - {13,024) ({13,024)
Other comprehensive Income for the year

Exchange differences on translation of the balance

sheets of foreign operations - - - - - {3,201) - {3,201)
Exchange differences on translation of part of the

net Investment in foreign operations - - - - - 2,781 - 2,781
Change in far value of assets classified as

avallable for sale - - - - (576) - - {576)
Tetal other comprebensive ncome for the year - - - - {576) {420) - {996)
Transactions with owners

Shara based remunaration - - - - - - 11,963 11,963
Tax credit in respect of share-based incentives - - - - - - 430 430
Purchase of shares for LTIP -~ - - - - - {394) (394)
{ssue of shares for SIP 73 - - - - - {73) -
Issue of shares at nil cost 154 - - - - - {154) -
Issue of new shares 166 2,328 - - - - - 2,494
At 30 April 2015 27,162 101,976 1,423 2,402 1,007 995 70,509 205,474
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss)/profit after tax
Tax charge/{credit)

Loss before tax

Ad|ustments for

Deprecistion and amortization
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Net financing charge/(incomey
Share-based remuneration
Reiease from contract obiigation
Impairment of investments

Cantingent acquisition consideration release

Exchange difference

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Change in working capital net of effects frorm acquisiion of subsidianes

Decrease/increasa) in inventores
{(Increase)/decrease In recevables
Increase/{decrease) in payables

Cash (utiized)/generated by operations

Interest pauc
Taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments made in the year
Acauisiion of ntangible assets

Acguisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of subsiianes
Interest receved

Net cash used in Investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the 1ssue of share capital
Craw down of loan

Purchase of own shares for LTIP
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash from financing activities

MNet decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of exchange rate fluctuation

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Financial report
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Year to Year 10

30 Aprit 2015 30 Apnl 2012
£'000 £ ooc
(13,024) 775
1,070 (1.089)
{11,954) 314)
17,313 14 392
36 180
3,450 250
11,963 13179
812) -
5,093 2,237
(381) (1,648
{43) 394)
24,685 27882
453 1542}
{33,637) 8,409
4,450 {1,887}
(4,049) 33862
477) 580)
(1,240} (58,442}
(5,766) (25,180}
{1,530) {2643}
{1,516} {1,717}
{12,137) (20 326)
- {2 484)

137 41
{15,046} (27 129)
325 441
5,000 -
{394} {1,108)
(1,598) {4,635)
3,333 (5 300)
(17,479) (57 589)
882 265
19,248 76572
2,651 19,248




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Accounting policies
General

Imagination Technologes Group plc 1s a company incorporated in the UK The Group financial statements consohdate those of
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group)

Significant accounting policies

Statement of comphance

The Group financial stataments have been prepared and approved by the directors In accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adepted by the EU (Adopted IFRSs) The Group has elected to prepare its parent company financial
statements in accerdance with UK GAAP, these are presented on pages 144 to 148

Basis of preparation

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consoldated financial
statements

The following additional aceounting standards, amendments, and interpretations have been adopted in the penod

* IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Enthies
* Investment Entities — Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27

* Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Amendments to 1AS 32

* Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets — Amendments to 1AS 36

* Continuing hedge accounting after dervative novations — Amendments to 1AS 39

The adoption of these standards, amendments and nterpretations have not had a material effect on the financial staternents

Judgerments made by the directors in the applicaten of these accounting policies that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant nsk of matenal adjustment in the next year are discussed below under ‘Significant
accounting judgements and estimates’

Measurement convention
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for Investments which have been stated at far value n
accordance with IAS 39

Going concern

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foresesable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
Annual Report and financial statements

The Group has adequate financial resources together with long term contracts with a number of custorners and suppliers across
a range of consumer market segments and geographic areas As a consequence, the directors believe that the Group 1s well
placed 1o manage its business risks successfully in the current economic envirenment

Further information regarding the Group's business activities together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and posit:on 1s set out in the Chief Executive’s review on pages 32 to 41

Further information regarding the financial position of the Group, its cash flows, iquidity posmian and borrowing facilities are
described in notes 12, 14 and 19
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In addition, note 19 to the financial statemants includes the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital,
its financial nsk management objectives, details of its finangial nstruments and hedging activities, and its exposures to credit risk
and lquidity nsk

Basis of consolidation - subsidiaries

Subsichanes are those entities controlled by the Group Control exists when an investor 1s exposed or has nghts to vanable
returns from its nvolvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through 1ts power over the investee

In assessing control, potenttal voting rights that presently ale exercisable or convertible are taken into account The financial
statements of subsidiaries are ncluded in the consclidated financial staterments from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases

Business combinations

The Group has appled IFRS 3 Business Combinations {revised 2008) in accounting for business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisiion method at the acquisition date which 1s the date on which control
Is transferred 10 the Group Control 1s the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtan benefit
from its activities In assessing contre!, the Group takes into consideration potental voting nghts that currently are exercisable,

as well as other factors ncluding board representation The financial statements of subsidianes are included in the consoldated
financial statements from the date that control passes

The Group measures goodwlll as the far value of the consideration paid or payable less the net 1ar value of the dentifiable
assets, habiities assumed and contingent habilties acquired, all measured as of the acquisticn date

The consideration transferred does not include ameunts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships  Such amounis
are generally recognized in the iIncome statement Costs related 1o the acquisition other than those associated with the issue of
equity secunties, that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurrad

Any contingent consideration payable 1s recognized at farr value at the acquisition date If the contingant consideration 1s
classified as equity, 1t 1s not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity Ctherwise, subsequent changes to the tan
valug of the contingent consideration are recognized n the ncome statement

Revenue

Revenue comprnises of, the value of consideration receved for sales of licenses to the Group's technology royalties ansing frem
the resulting sale of licensees’ products embedded with the Group s technology, development income support, maintenance,
tratning  and the sale of goods

The Group follows the principles of IAS 18 Revenue recognition Revenue asscciated with the sales of goods 1s recognized when
all of the following conditicns are satisfied

+ The Group has transferred the significant nisks and rewards of ownership to the buyer,

¢ The Group retains neither continung managenal involvement to the degree usually assoctated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold,

* The amount of revenue can be measured rehably,

« Itis probable that the economic benefits agsociated with the transaction will flow into the Group, and

+ The costs incurred and or 1o be incurred can be measured reliably

Revenue associated with the provision of services 1s recognized when all of the following conditions are satisfied
e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably

* [t probable that the economic benefits agsociated with the transaction will flow into the Group
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¢ The stage of completion of the transaction as at the end of the reporting penod can be measured reliably, and
* The costs incurred, or to be incurred for the transaction can be measured reliably

Therefore revenue from standard hcenses 1$ recognized on delivery to the customer, which 1s when 1t I1s considered the above
conditions are met Revenue on license agresments for preducts which are either not finished or which need to be modified
toc meet specific custormer raguiraments 18 recognized on a percentage-ol-completion basis over the penod from starting
development of the preduct to delivery The percentage-of-completion 1s measured by monitoning progress compared with
the total estimated project reguirement Progress is measured by an assessment of perfermance against key development
milestones

Revenue asscciated with nghts in kcense agreements to unspecified current and future products 1s recognized under a
subscnption accounting basis, on a straight-kne basis over the term of the arrangement

Revenue on development work 1s recognized on a percentage-of-completion basis over the penod from the start of the
development (o delivery Development work 1s normally invaiced as milestones are achieved

Where invoicing milestones on license or development arrangements are such that the propertion of work performed 1s greater
than the proportion of the total contract value which has been invoiced, the Group evaluates whether it has obtaned, through nts
performance i¢ date, the nght to the un-nvoiced consideration and therefore whether revenue should be recognized In particular
it considers whether there I1s sufficient certainty that the iInvoice milestones will be achieved in the expected tmeframe, that the
custormer considers that the Group's contractual obligations have been, or will be fulfiled and that only those costs budgeted to
be incurred will be incurred Where the Group considers that there 1s insufficient ewidence that it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transactien will flow into the Group, taking into account these critena, revenue Is not recognized until
thera is sufficient evidence that it 1s probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will fiow into the Group

Where an agreement involves several components the total fee 1s allocated to indmtdual components based on the fair value of
the components The fair value 1 assessed by reference te prices regularly charged for the components when sold separately,
or If this cannot be used then other factors may be considerad, such as ihe excess of smiar agreements over the charges of
separately identifiable components If the far value of a component 1s not determinable, then the total fee s deferred untit the
far value 1s dsterminable, or the compenent has been delivered to the customer Where, in effect two or more compoenents of
an agreement are inked and fair values cannot be allocated to the ndmidual components the revenue recognition cntena are
applied to the compoenents as if they were a single component

Revenue for maintenance 1s recognized on a straight-lne basis over the penod for which mantenance 1s contractually agreed
with the licensee

The excess of icense fees, development inceme and maintenance invaiced aver revenue recognized is recorded as deferred
income

Royalty revenues are earned on the sale by licensees of products centaining the Group s technology Revenues are recogmzed
as they are earned to the extent that the Group has sufficient evidence of sales of products contaning the Group’s technology by
licensees Notification 1s generally receved in the quarter following the shioment of the customer's products

Revenues from the sale of goods are recognized upon delivery

Revenue 18 accounted for net of VAT discounts and returns Returns are recognized at the pont at which the Group has
adequate knowledge that products are likely to be returned by a customer

The above revenue recognitron policy 15 applied consistently rrespective of whether or nat the consideration received 1s 10 the
form of cash or non-cash {for example equity)

As disclosed above, In accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting policies, changes In accounting estimates and errors, the Group
makes significant estimates N applying its revenue recogivtion polcies Estimates are made in particular, in regards to the

Financial report

109



110

percentage-of-completicn accounting method which requires that the extent of progress towards completion of contracts

may be anticipated with reasonable certanty The use of this method is based on the assumption that, at the outset of license
agreements, thera s an nsignificant nsk that customer acceptance will not be chtaned The Group also makes assessments
based on prior expenience, of the extent to which future milestone receipts represent a probable future economic benefit to the
Group The complexity of the eshimation process and 1ssues related to the assumptions, nsks and uncertainties inherent with the
applcation of the revenue recognition policies affect the amounts reported in the financial statements If different assumptions
werg used, 1115 possible that diferent amounts would be reported In the financial staternents

Research and development costs

Costs of basic and appled research and all development costs, are written off in the penod in which they are incurred by the Group

Employee benefits

The Group contnibutes to a defined contribution pension plan Payments are charged to the ncome statement in the period to
which they relate

Share-based payment transactions

The share opticn programmes and the share incentive arrangements allow employees to acquire shares of the Company The

farr value of share Incentives 1S recognized as an expense with a carresponding increasea in equity The fair value 1s measured at
grant date and spread over the period dunng which the employee becomes unconditionally entitled to the share incentives The
far value of the share incentives granted 1s measured using the Black-Scholes or Monte Carlo Simulation models The amount
recognized as an expense 15 adjusted to reflect the actual number of share incentives that vest except where forfeture 1s due only
to market-based performance conditions not meeting the threshold for vesting

Transactions of the Company-sponsored Employee Benefit Trust are incfuded m the Group's consclidated financial statements In
particular, the Trust's purchase of shares in the Company 1s debited directly in equity to retaned earnings

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognized in the income statement except to
the extent that it relates to tems recagnized directly In equity, In which case it 15 recognized in equity

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previcus years

Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet liabiity method on any temporary differences between the carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purpeses The amount of deferred 1ax provided 1s based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and latalities using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date Temporary differences on geodwill are not provided for as are not deductible for tax purposes

A deferrad tax asset 15 recognized only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avalable aganst which
the asset can be uthzed Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it 18 no longer possitle that the related tax benefit will
be realized

Foreign exchange

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at the rates of exchange
ruling at the dates of the transactions Monetary assets and liabiities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the
functional currency at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange gains and losses are taken to the income
staterment

On consoldation, results of foreign subsidiary undertakings are translated at the average rates of exchange for the year The
assets and labilties are translated at rates ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange differences ansing from retranslation have
been recognized directly in the statement of other comprehensive iIncoma The presentational currency 1s GBP
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Segment reporting

An operating segment 15 a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, Including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group s other components Al
operating segments operating results are reviewed regularly by the Beard of directors to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial nformation 1s avallabie

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition and amortized on a straight line basis over their estmated useful economic
Ives The residual values cf intangible assets are assumed to be nil Useful economic ives are reviewed on an annual basis
When the Group makes an acquisition, management review the business and assets acquired to determing wheather any
intangible assets should be recognized separately from goodwill Farr vatue of the intangible assets 1s assessed assuming a
hypothetical market The Group utilizes the income based approach when reliable future cash flows are availlable Alternatively,
the cost approach or market approach are utiized

The amortization rates applied are

Beveloped technology 5to 10 years
Customer relaticnships 10 years

Trade names 15 yaars

In process R&D 5 years once complete
Software, patents & trademarks 2 1o 5 years

Trade nvestments

Trade nvestments are classified as avallable for sale and are stated on the balance sheet at the far value at the balance shest
date with any gain or loss being recognized directly in the statement of comprehensive income  Impairment losses and gains or
losses on initial recegnition are recognized N the ncome statement When these investments are derecognized, the curmulative
gain or loss previously recognized directly in equity 1s recognized in the Income statement Where there has been more than one
nvestrment made in the same company, each tranche 1s assessed In isolation to calculate the movements in fair value

impairment analysis 1s performed with reference to the initial cost or fair value of each sharehoiding

The fair value of unquoted Nvestiments 1s made by reference to recent funding rounds or, In the absence of the former, to a
discounted cash-flow forecast

The Group 15 exposed to equity secunties price 1isk on available for sale financial assets As there can beg no guarantee that
there wili be a future market for secunties or that the value of such investments will nse, the directors evaluate each investment
opportunity on its merts before commiting the Group’s funds The directors review hoidings In such companies on a regular
basis to determine whether continuad Investment 1s N the best Interests of the Group Funds for such ventures are limited in
order that the tinanciai effect of any potential decline of the value of investrments will not be substantal in the context of the
Group's financial results

Further details of these investments and the valuation basis are detaled n note 9 and note 19

Goodwill

Purchased goodwill {representing the excess of the far value of the consideration paid or payable over the net farr value of the
identifiable assets llabiities and contingent kabiities acquired) ansing on consohdation in respect of acquisitions 1s capitalized
Goodwill 1s aflocated to cash generating units expected to benefit from the acguistion and 1s not amortized but tasted

annually for mpairment Any imparment 1§ recognized immediately in the income statement and may not be subsequently
reversed Impairment testing 1s based on assets grouped at the lowest possible leve! at which goodwill 1s menitored for internal
management purposas
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On disposal of a subsidiary or business, the attrbutable goodwill 1s included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal
Goodwill I1s stated on the balance sheet at cost less any accumulated imparrment losses

Business combinat:ons that took place prior to 1 April 2004 have not been re-stated and goodwill represents the amount
recognized under the Group's previous accounting framewark

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciaticn and imparment iosses
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated to write down therr cost using the straight ine methed o therr estimated residuzl

values over the pericd of their estimated useful economic lives Peradic reviews are made of estimated remaining useful
economic lives and residual values, and the depreciation rates applied are

Freehetd land No depreciation
Freehold bulldings 50 years
Leasehold improvemenis Equally over the penod of the lease
Plant and equiprnent 3to 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Impairment

a) Non-financial assets

Goodwil has an indefirite useful ife, 1s net subject to amortization and 1s tested annually for impairment Assets that are subject
to amortization or deprecation are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carring amount may not be recoverable If any such condition exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s
estimated in order 10 determine the extent, if any, of the impairment loss Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
Independent from other assets, estimates are made of the cash flows of the cash ganerating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount 15 the higher of farr value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value N use estmated future cash
flows are discounted to ther present value using a discount rate agpropriate to the specific asset or cash generating unit

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit 1s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying value
of the asset or cash generating unit 1s reduced to its recoverable amount impairment losses are recognized immediately in the
income statement

In respect of assets other than gocdwill, an imparment loss 1s reversed if thers has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount Animparment loss I1s reversed only to the extent that the asset s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, If no impairment loss had
been recognized Imparrment losses in respect of goodwill are not reversed

b} Financial assets

A financial asset 1 considered to be imparred if objective ewidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset

Animparrment logs i respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost 1s calcutated as the difference between its carrying
amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate An imparment
loss in respect of an avalable-for-sale financial asset s calculated by reference to its current far value

Indvidually significant financial assets are tested for mparrment on an ndividual basis The remaining financial assets are
assessed cellectively n groups that share similar credit risk charactenstics

Alt impairment Josses are recognized In the iIncome statement Any cumulative gain or loss in respect of an available-for-sale
financial asset recognized previously in equity 1s transferred to the income statement
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An imparment loss 1s reversed if the reversal can be related chjectively to an event occurnng after the mparment loss was
recoegnized For fimancial assets measured at amortized cost and avalable-for-sale financial assets that are debt secuntes, the
reversal 1s recognized in profit or loss For avallable-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities, the reversal I1s recognized
directly in equity

Denvative financial instruments

Currency exchange contracts are utihzed to manage the exchange nsk on actual fransachons related to accounts recewvable

denorminated in a currency other than the functional currency of the business These currency exchange contracts do not subject

the Group to nsk from exchange rate movements because the gains and losses on such contracts offset losses and gans ‘
respectively, on the transactions being hedged The currency exchange contracts and related accounts recevable are recorded

at fair value at each period end The fair value of forward exchange contracts s determined using quoted forward exchange rates ‘
at the balance sheet date The fair value of foreign currency options 1s based upen valuations performed by management and the I
respective banks holding the currency instruments All recognized gains and losses resulting from the settlement of the contracts

are recorded within general and administrative expenses In the income statement The Group does not enter Into currency

exchange contracts for the purpose of hedging antcipated transacttons

Inventories

Inventory 1s valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value The cost of inventory 1s calculated using the FIFO method
Finished goods include direct costs and attributable overheads based on the normal level of actmty

Cash and equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnses cash balances and call deposits with an onginal matunty of less than or equal to three
maonths Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integrat part of the Group s cash management are included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the Consobidated statement of cash flows

Loans and receivables

Loans and recervables are intially measured at fair value plus any directly attnbutabfe transaction costs Subsequeant to inmal
recognition, loans and recevables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any imparrment
losses

Long term borrowing

Long term borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attnibutable transaction costs Subsequent 1o rwhial recagrition
long term borrowings are stated at amoriized cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in
the income statement over the penod of the barrowings on an effective interest basis

Leases

lL.eases are clagsified as finance leasas whean the terms of the leasa transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to
the Group Leases in which a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retaned by the lessor are classified as
operating leases For property leases the land and building elements are treated separately to deterrmine the appropriate lease
classification Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives receved from the lessor} are charged to the income
statement on a straight-Ine basis over the penod of the lease

Asssts funded through finance leases are capitalized ether as property, plant and eguipment, or intangible assets, as
approprate, and are depreciated/amortized over therr estimated useful (ives or the lease term whichever 18 shorter The amount
capitalized 1s the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the mimimum lease payments during the lease term
at the nception of the lease The resulting lease obligatiens are ncludec in habiiies net of finance charges Finance costs on
finance leases are charged directly to the iIncome statement on an effective interest rate basis
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In applying the Group's accounting polictes descnbed above management has made the following judgements and estimatas
that have a significant impact on the amounts recognized In the financial statements

Revenue recognition

The Group has made estimates on the percentage-to-completicn for licensing and development work which affect the amount
of revenue recegnized in the period These estimates involve the Group assessing the estimated resource and time required to
complete development projects Please refer to the final paragraph of the Revenue accounting policy disclosed above

Investments

The Group has stated trade investments at farr value Please refer to “Trade investments” above for management’s applcation of
accounting for irade nvestments

Share based payments

The farr value of the share incentives 1s measured at grant date and spread over the pencod during which the employee becomes
unconditionally entitled to the incentives The fair value of the share incentives 1s measured using the Black-Scholes or Monte
Carlo Simulation madels which take into account the terms and cenditions upon which the award was macde In determining the
appropriate expense, the Group has made estimates on the likelihocd that internal performance targets will be achieved and on
the number of employees thai will e employed on vesting Details of share-based payments and the assumptions applied are
disclosed n note 22

Taxation

A deterred tax asset (note 5} 1s recognized only to the extent that it 1s probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
utiize the temporary difference The Group has made estimates on the lkelihood that future taxable profit will utilize these tax
losses

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwili 1s impaired at a minimum on an annual basis This requires an estimation of the value
In use of the cash generating units to which the goodwill relates Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash generating unit that hoids the goodwill at a determined discount rate
and an appropriate growth rate to calcuiate the present value of those cash flows Detasls of assumptions used are set out In
note 7

Busmess combinations

The Group measures contingent consideration at far value at the acquisition date and assesses any changes in far value on
an annual basis This requires the Group to make an estimate of the future payables in respect of the contingent consideration
Detaills of the assessment performed In the current year are set out 1n notes 13 and 15

Recoverahihty of debtors

The Group regularly reviews any outstanding debstors and monitors the aging profile to determine whether any further action 1s
required by management There 1s an element of jJudgement 0 deterrmining whather debts will eventually be pad, but where there
15 significant uncertanty the debt is specifically prowvided for in full

Valuation of inventory

Inventory comprises raw components, work in progress and finished goods The Group monitors the ievel of inventory across the
business and specifically slow moving finished goods Management makes estimates to ensure adequate provisicns are in place
to ensure the value of Inventory recorded on the Statement of Financial Position is not over stated In accordance with IAS 2
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Adopted IFRS not yet applied

The following accounting standards amendments and interpretations had been issued but they are not yet effective for the
Group and have not been early adopted Therr adoption 1s not expected to have a material effect on the financial statements

s Annual Improvernents {o IFRSs - 2010-2012 Cycle (|ASB effective date 1 July 2014)
s Annual Improvemnents to IFRSs - 2011-2013 Cycle {IASB effectve date 1 July 2014),

= Clarfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization — Amendments to 1AS 16 and |AS 38 (ASB effactive date
1 January 2016},

¢ Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements ~ Amendments to IAS 27 (IASB effective date 1 January 2016},
¢ Annual Impravements to IFRSs - 2012-2014 Cycle {|ASB effective date 1 January 2016) and
* Disclosure tniiative — Amendments to IAS 1{IASB effective date 1 January 2016)

The annual financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adepted by the EU

2 Segment reporting

The Group determines and presents operating segments based on the information that 1s provided internally to the Board of
Directors, which s the Group s chief operating decision maker The Group 1s organized into two operating divisions which offer
different senices to different industnes and are managed separately the Technology business and the Pure business The

costs of the carporaie head office and other costs which are not controlled by the operating dvisions are allocated to these
divisions These divisions are the operating segments that are reported to the chief operating decision maker and are the Group's
reportable segments There 1s no inter-segment trading and no significant seasonality In the Group's operations aithough there 1s
an increase n trading n the penod leading up to Chnstmas

Principal actvities are as follows

Technalogy business - the development of graphics, video, vision, processor communications and connectiity technologies for
licensing to semiconducter companies for incorporation into silicon devices

Pure business - the develepment and marketing of consumer products to showcase the technologres of the Technelogy
business and to develop new and emerging markets for such technologies

Information regarding the operations of each reportable segment 1s included below Performance 1s measured based on adjusted
operating profit as shown in the table at the end of this note Operating costs within the Technology business are not attribulable
te specific income streams and have not been allocated to specific ncome streams
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Revenue
Technology business
Licensing
Royalties
Other

Total
Pure busingss

Total revenue
Operating (loss)/profit
Technology business

Pure business

Segment operating loss
Net financing sxpense

Loss before tax
Taxation {charge)/credit

(Loss)/profit for the financial year

Total assets
Technoiogy business
Pure business

Total segment assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Deferred tax

Unallocated assets

Total assets
Total habihties
Technology business

Pure business

Total segment iabilities
Unallocated habilities

Taotal habilities
Other segment items

Capital expenditure Technology business
Pure business

Cepreciation and amortization Technology business
Pure business
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2015 2014
£000 £000
39,035 38 324
118,925 100,033
685 241
158,645 147,598
18,376 23,237
177,021 170,835
{1,787) 8532
{6,717) (8 5986)
{8,504) (64}
{3,450) {250)
{11,954) {314}
{1,070) 1089
{13,024) 775
2015 2014
£'000 £600
263,870 251,888
16,466 18,311
280,336 268,199
2,651 19,248
4,865 4,928
11,416 1034
299,268 293,408
81,363 82,352
5,250 6,056
86,613 88 408
7,181 -
93,794 88,408
12,051 18,591
1,518 5,724
13,569 24,315
7,361 14018
833 374
8,194 14 392




Revenue 1s reported by geographical area of sates as follows

2015 2014
£ 000 £000

USA 106,778 94,218
Asia 33,598 40,359
United Kingdom 16,196 17 230
Rest of Europe 13,510 11,289
Rest of the world 4,571 4,611
Rest of North Amenca 2,368 3128
177,021 170 835

The basis for aftributing extermal customers to ndwvidual countnes s the customer s country of domicile

Revenue from individual customers that represent more than 10% of the Group s total revenue for the period have values of
approximately £59,690,000 and £21,419,000 Both customers country of domicile 1s USA and both these revenues are
included in the Technology dwision

All revenue onginated materally from the United Kingdom
The operating profit, net assets and capital expenditure of the Group matenally relate to the United Kingdom

Adjusted profit

Adjusted profit 1s used by managemernit to measure the performance of the business year on year by excluding ncn-recurning
items (tems which typically do not occur every year), items relating to acquisiions and investments, non-cash based share
incentive charges, and amortization of intangible assets acquired from acquisitions

Year to 30 Apnl 2015 Year 10 30 Apri 2014 {restated A}
Notes Tachnology Pure Total Technology Pure Total
£'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £000
Raported operating (loss)/proht {1,787) (6,717) (8,504) 8532 (8,596) (64)
Share-based incentive costs ~ 4 11,298 665 11,963 12,401 778 13,179
Amortization of intangibles from acquisitions * 7 9,119 - 9,119 B 607 - 8,607
pt m e e e e e e e © e e o e o
Net gain an investments” 9 - - - 348 - (3;}
Imparment of Investiments ™ 8 5,003 - 5,093 2,585 - 2 585
Acquisition related costs” 1,426 - 1,426 1275 - 1275
Refease of contract obligations™ 812) - (812} - - -
Contingent acquisition consideration releasa* (361) - {361} (1.648) - {1,648}
Group restructunng costs™ 680 10 690 - 397 393*}
Prowsmn for onerous contracts * 2,503 - 2,503 - - 7
Adjusted operating profit/{loss) 27,159 (6,042) 21,117 31404 {7,421) 23,983
Net financing expense {3,450) (250}
Adjusted profit before tax 17,667 23733

*Share-based incentive costs have been apportioned £8,972,000 (2014 £9,884,000) to research and development expenses
and €2 991 000 (2014 £3,295,000} to sales and administrative expenses on the face of the consolidated ncome statement

All of the amortization of intangibles from acquisiions cost s ncluded in research and development expenses on the face of the
consolidated income statement

“*These adjusting items totaling £8.532 000 (2014 £2,261.000} are included in sales and administrative expenses on the face of
the consolidated ncome statement
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Acquisition related costs relate largely to the histonc acqguisiions of Posedge and Kisel and include elements of deferred
acquisition consideration which are required to be accounted for as compensation

Release of contract obligations relates to a development agreement with GreenPlug Inc The development fees were pad to
Imagination Technologies Ltd In advance Imagination Technologies Ltd has now been released from all obligations under this
agresment and thersfors the deferred revenus has been recognized as a credit to the income statement

The contingent acquisition consideration release relates to contingent consideration that has not crystallized relating to the
acquisitions of Kisel Micreelectronics AB (£272,000) and Nethra Imaging Inc (£89,000}

Group restructunng costs relate to one-off restructunng across the Group

Onerous contracts relate to vanous commercial and preperty related contracts An cnerous contract 1s one where the
unavoidabte costs of meeting the cbligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it

A In 2014, an £85,000 credit to the Income statement has been reclassified to net financing expense from operating expenses
As aresult, the prior ysar comparatives have been amended from a £21,000 reported operating profit to a £64,000 operating
loss, and from a £335,000 net financing expense to a £250,000 net financing expense

3 Expenses

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Operating loss s stated after ¢charging/(crediting)
Depreciation and amcrtization of tangible and intangible assets 17,313 14,392
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 36 180
Fereign exchange gain 43 394
Operating lease rentals
Property 4,019 3,268
Other 9,310 8924
Auditor's remuneration
Audit of these financial statements 25 25
Amount receved by auditor and therr associates In respect of
Audit of inancial staterments of subsidiaries of the Group 128 123
Audit-related assurance senices 12 12
Other assurance services - -
Cther services — tax filng services - -
165 160

Amounts pard to the Group’s auditor in respect of services to the Group, other than the audit of the Group s financial statements
have not been disciosed as the information 1s required instead to be disclosed on a consolidated basis
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4 Employees

The average number of persons employed by the Group (inciuding directors) was 2015 201
Research and development 1,361 1,229
Production 25 43
Administration 150 139
Sales and marketing 116 118
1,652 1529

2015 2014

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were £'000 £ 000
Wages and salanes 75,311 86,951
Social secunty costs 5,211 4,771
Cther pension costs 3,332 2,615
Share-based payments 11,963 13,179
95,817 87,516

Detalls of the share-based payments are set out in note 22 Complete information on the shars incentives and shares held by
directors 18 set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Committee report on pages 75 to 97

5 Taxation

2015 2014
£ 000 £ 000
Analysis of tax charge in the year
Current tax charge
UK corporation tax 142 81
Foraign tax 2,650 &1
Total current tax charge 2,792 592
Deferred tax
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences {1,052) (2,878
Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax balances (877 (524
Changes in recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets - 621
Adjustments in raspect of prior penods 207 1,008
Total deferred tax (credity/charge (1,722) {1,681}
Total tncome tax charge/{credit) 1,070 {1,089
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The total tax charge for the year of £1,070,000 (2014 £1,089,000 tax credit) 1s higher (2014

corporation tax in the UK of 20 82% (2014 22 83%) The difference is explained below

Loss belore taxation
Notional tax charge at UK standard rate of 20 92% (2014 22 83%)

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes
Ullization of previously unrecognized tax assets

Tax assets not recognized

Effect of tax rate change

Adjustments n respect of priar periods

Withholding tax

Different tax rates on overseas earnings

Changes in recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets

Total income tax charge/(credst)

Tax on iterns charged to equity

Deferred tax charge
Cumrent tax charge/{credit)

higher) than the standard rate of

2015 2014
£'000 £o00
(11,954) (314)
(2,501} (72)
2,282 2,748
{1,285) (10711)
2,421 2,703
876) (524)
236 (1 265)
1,247 2,531
(a54) 2,881
- 622
1,070 {1,089)
289 2,794
142 (81)

The principal element of the deferred tax charge recorded aganst equity relates to the reversal of previously recognized deferred
tax assets which were credited to equity The reversal of the asset occurs as a result of the fall in potental future tax deductions

due to the reduction in the Company’s share price during the year

Current tax assets

At 30 Apnl 2015, there are current tax assets receivable in more than one year of £932,000 (2014 £811,0C0} and recewable in

less than one year of £600,000 (2014 £1,555,000) The assets relate to prepayments of tax by overseas subsidiares

Current tax habilities

At 30 April 2015 there is a current tax hability due in less than one year of £525,000 relating to some of the Group s subsidianes

(2014 £240,000)

At 30 Apnl 2015 there 1s a current tax liability due in more than one year of £3 630 000 (2014 £3,325 000} The balance in both

years largely relates to a provision in the US

Deferred tax

The movement on ihe deferred tax account is as follows

Tax losses

Share-based payments (note 22)
Other tming differences

Capital aflowances

Gamr on foreign exchange contract
Acquisihen of mtangible assets
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As at Recogmized in Recogrizad As at

30 Apnl 2014 ncome statement n equity 30 Apnl 2015
£'000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
4216 1,084 - 5,300
2,270 869 289 3,428

79 48 - 127

(3 834) {3 202) - {7,033)
{145) 181 - 36
(14,723) 2,742 - (11,981)
{12,134} 1,722 289 (10,123)




2015 2014
£000 £ 000

Deferred taxation has been presented on the balance sheet as follows

Ceferred tax asset 4,865 4,928

Deferred tax hability {14,988} (17 062)

At end of the period {10,123} {12 134)

Management consider the utihzation of the £4,865,000 (2014 £4,928,000) deferred tax asset to be probable based cn
assessment of forecasts of future taxable profits

The deferred tax asset remained at a similar lavel to last year Accelerated R&D capital allowances clamed dunng the year and a
net utihzation of tax l0sses reduced tha asset This movement was offset by an increase in the asset created by re-calculating the
asset using the prevaiing UK corporation tax rate at 30 April 2015 ot 20 0%, compared with a lower patent box Influgnced rate
at 30 Apnl 2014 This rate change adjusiment was done because ¢f the uncertainty surrounding the date whenr the Company will
opt In to the patent box regime

The deferred tax dability recduced during the year to £14,988,000 (2014 £17,062,000) This movement was a result of the
arnortization of intangible assets relating to previous acgquisitions

Naone of the recegnized tax assets or labilities expire

Deferred tax assets and labilities are only offset where they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and there
18 a legally enforceable nght to offset

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

The group has Federal US tax iosses of $43,845,000 (2014 $30 017,000), tax credits of $6,212,000 (2014 $3,860,000) and other
temporary differences of $23 383 000 (2014 $8,890 000) The Federal tax losses and tax credits expire prograssively from 2020

In addition the group has State US tax losses of $52,309,000 (2014 $49 365,000), tax crecits of $7,947 000 (2014 $4 887,000}
and other temporary differences of $48,384,000 (2014 $12,481 000) The State tax losses expire progressively from 2015

State tax credits and all remamning temporary differences do not expire

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized due to the uncertainty of the avalability of the above tax losses to be utlized
against future taxabie profits arsing in the US A section 382 study to determine a more certan position 1s due to be undertaken
during the next financial year

If the Group were able to recognize all unrecognized deferred tax assets, an asset of £25 056,000 ($38,538,000) (2014
£13,023,000 ($21 903,000)) reported at the applicable tax rates, would be recognized

AL 30 April 2015, there was no recognized deferred tax habulity (2014 $NIl for taxes that would be payable en the unremittad
earmings of certain of the Group's subsidianes The Group has determined that undistribbuted profits of its subsidianes will not be
distributed in the foreseesable future

Factors affecting future tax charge

The Finance Act 2013 reduced the rate of Corporation Tax frcm 1 Apnl 2014 to 21% and a further reduction of 1% to 20% from
1 Apnl 2015 In addition, the Finance Act 2012 introduced the UK patent box regime which provides for an effective tax rate of
10% on certain UK profits from 1 Apri 2013 {phased in over 5 years) These changes have been substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date and conseguently are reflected in these financial statements The Group has not made an election in to the
UK Patent Box regime as at 30 Apnl 2015, nor do the Directors consider it wilt be beneficial to do so in the short terrm As such
the Directors consider that the temporary differences will reverse at the main rate of UK Corporation Tax of 20% and deferred tax
has therefore been provided at this rate
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6 Earnings per share

(LossV/profit attributable to equity holders of the parent

Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue
Less Weighted average number of shares held by Emplayee Benefit Trust
Effect of dilutive shares Employee incentve schames

Weighted average number of shares petentially in tssue

{Loss)/earnings per share Basic
Diluted

Diluted earnings per share 15 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue to assume
conversicn of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares Detalls of the schemas considered in arnving at the potentially dilutive

2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
{13,024 775
2015 2014
Shares Shares
000 Qoo
269,522 266,246
(1,984) (1 902)
12,790 11,553
280,328 275,897
2015 201

(4 9)p Q3p
(4 9)p 03p

ordinary shares are set out In note 22 It should be noted that potentially dilutive shares are not considered when a basic loss per

share has been calculated A loss can not be diluted

Adjusted earnings per share

Adjusted proft before tax {see note 2)
Adjusted taxation charge

Adjusted profit attnbutable to equity holders of the parent

Weighted average number of shares in 13sue
Less Weighted average number cf shares held by Employee Benefit Trust
Effect of dilutive shares Employee incentive schemes

Weighted average number of shares potentially in 1ssue

Adjusted earnings per share Basic
Diluted

2015 2014
£000 2000
17,667 23733
{838} (2,431)
16,829 21,302
2015 2014
Shares Sharss
‘000 Qo0
269,522 266,246
{1,984) (1 202
12,790 11,553
280,328 275,897
2045 2014

6 3p 8 1p

& 0p 77p

Adjusted earnings per share 1s calculated using adjusted profit attnbutable to equity holders of the parent which 1s derived from

the adjusted profit berore tax described in note 2
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7 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Cost

At 1 May 2013

Additions

Acquisition of subsichanes

At 30 Aprit 2014

At 1 May 2014
Additions
Acquisition of subsidaries

At 30 April 2015

Amortization
At 1 May 2013
Charge for the year

At 30 Apnl 2014

At 1 May 2014
Charge for the year

At 30 Apnl 2015

MNet book value at 30 Apnl 2014
Net book value at 30 Apnl 2015

Intangible assets

Software, patents

Goodwill from acguesstions” and trademarks Total
£'000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
58,498 64,460 13,931 136,889
- - 1948 1,948
4,853 6,946 5 11,804
63,351 71,406 15,884 150,641
63,351 71,406 15,884 150,641
- - 1,408 1,408
63,351 71,406 17,292 152,049
3,517 7 766 11,010 22,293
- 8,807 1,347 9954
3517 18373 12,357 32,247
3,517 16,373 12,357 32,247
- 9,119 1,464 10,583
3,517 25,492 13,821 42,830
59.834 55,033 3527 118,394
59,834 45,914 3,471 109,219

"Intangible assets from acquisitions are those assets recognized when far value accounting for the acquisitions of Hellosoft Inc,
Caustic Graphics Inc, MIPS Technologies Inc (since renamed Imagination Technologies LLC) Posedge Inc (now liguidated into
Imaginaticn Technologies LLC) and Kisel Microelectronics AB (since renamed Imagination Technologies AB) They are analysed

below
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Developed Customer
technology relationships Trade names In process R&D Total
£'000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 00O

Cost
At 1 May 2013 54 944 7,183 1,597 7686 64,460
Acgurisition of subsicdianes 5209 1,737 - - 6 946
At 30 Aprif 2014 60 153 8,820 1,597 766 71,408
Al 1 May 2014 60,153 8,890 1,697 766 71,406
Transfar betweaen asset classes 766 - - (766) -
At 30 Apnl 2015 60,919 8,890 1,597 - 71,406
Amortization
AL 1 May 2013 7.561 178 27 - 7,766
Charge for the year 7,551 950 108 - 8,607
At 30 Apnl 2014 15112 1128 133 - 16 373
At 1 May 2014 15,112 1,128 133 - 16,373
Charge for the year 7.950 1,063 106 - 9,119
At 30 Apnl 2015 23,062 2,19 239 - 25,492
Net book vatue at 30 Apnl 2014 45 D41 7.762 1,464 768 55033
Net book value at 30 April 2015 37,857 6,699 1,358 - 45,914

Goodwill was acquired through acquisitions and reiates to the Technology business which 1s considered to be a single cash-
generating unit Duning the penod the Group tested its balance of goodwill for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 impairment
of Assets The test was based on a calculation of the recoverable amount based on value in use, using projected cash flows for
the Technology business

The key assumptions in the value in use calculations were

Period over which the directors have projected cash flows — a three year forecast pernod 1s used which is based on management
forecasts of future profits with an assumed terminal growth rate after 2017 of 2 5% per annum {2014 2 5%) The terminal
growth rate 15 assessed taking intc account general econcmic conditions

Forecast revenue growth — the revenue projections are consistent with those used by the Group for financial planning purposes

Forecast operating margins — the operating margin projections are consistent with those used by the Greup for financial planning
PUrposes

Discount rate - fulure cash flows are discounted at a rate of 8 7% which represents a pre-tax rate that reflects the Group s
weighted average cost of capital adjusted for the nisks specific to the Technology business (2014 7 1%)

The directors have considered the sensitivity of the assumptions used and do nct belleve that any reasonably foreseeable
changes to key assumptions would result in an impairment of goodwill, such 1s the margin by which the estimated far vaiue
exceeds the carrying value of the goodwill
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8 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At May 2013

Reclassimcation between asset classas
Adlditions

Accuisition of subsidiaries

Disposals

AL 30 Apnl 2014

At 1 May 2014
Additions
Disposals

At 30 April 2015

Depreciation

At 1 May 2013

Reclassfication between asset classes
Charge for the vear

Disposals

At 30 Apnd 2014

At | May 2014
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 30 Apnl 2015

Net bock valus at 30 Aprl 2014
Net book value at 30 Aprl 2015

The net book value of freehald land and buldings comprises

Land
Buldings

Freehold land Leasehold Plant and
and bulldings improvements equipment Totat
£'000 £000 £'000 £ 000
35,845 3553 22,854 62,352
(114 369 (255) -
12,443 504 9,068 22,315
- - 45 46
- 1) {1.286) (1,347
48274 4,665 30,427 83,366
48,274 4,665 30,427 83,366
5,907 1,183 5071 12,181
- (60) (1,662) {1,722)
54,181 5,788 33,836 93,805
a62 1961 13556 16 479
(17) 14 3 -
569 467 3402 4438
_ - {1,167} (1,167}
1,514 2,442 15,794 19 750
1,514 2,442 15,794 19,750
725 1,008 4,995 6,728
- (60} {1,614) (1,674)
2,239 3,390 19,175 24,804
48,760 2,223 14,633 63,616
51,942 2,398 14,661 69,001
2015 2014
£°000 £000
9,349 9,349
42,593 37 411
51,942 46,760

At 30 April 2015, the unamertized cost of builldings under construction accounted for within freehold land and buldings was

£6,059,000 (2014 £9 807 000)

Contained within Plant and Equipment 1s CAD eguipment with a net book value of £1,968 000 which 1s deemed to have bsen

acgurred under a finance lease
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9 Investments

2015 2014
£000 £ 000
Tradse iInvestiments classifisd as avalable for sale 19,947 21081

Movement in the carring value of each of the Group's equity holdings during the penod 1s analysed below

Fair value movement
during pariod

Increased Movement of Statement of

Carrying value holding in holding 1n Incoams comprehensive Carnynng value

at 1 May 2014 nvestments nv ts tat t incoma at 30 Aprl 2015

£'000 €000 £ 00D £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Tournaz 8,268 - - (766) @313 7,189
Orca 1055 - - {1044 (1 -
Blu-Wireless 309 - - - - 308
UBC fnow 7digital Group plc) 1 841 530 5,162 (3,114 {1,157) 3260
7chgital 4,162 1,000 5,162) (169) 159 -~
lneda 4,597 - - - 430 5,027
Onkyo 373 - - - 16 389
NetSpeed 476 - - - 44 520
Atomos - 3,005 - - 248 3,251
Total 21,081 4,535 - {5,003) (576) 18,947

Toumaz - At the balance sheet date, the Group's Investment in Toumaz was valued at £7,189,000 by reference to the gucted
share pnce of Toumaz at the reporting date £768,000 of the reduction in the investment value was recognized through the
consolidated income statement in accordance with I1AS 39, given that onginal tranche of shares had been impaired historically
with the remaining £313,000 decrease in value on tranches tweg and three of shares acguired being recognized through the
consohdated statement of comprehensive income This 1s because the movement in share price with reference to the cost of
tranches two and three was deemed to not be a permanent iImpairrment

Orca - At the balance sheet date there was an increase in the value of the investment due to foreign exchange movement of
£89,000, which resulted in a carrying value of £1,154 000 However, on the same date, due to uncertainty surrounding Crca's
funding position, managemant objectively concluded there were indicators of impairment present, resulting in a full provision
being recognized for the carrying value of £1,154 000 {n dong so the cumulative credit balance of £110,000 in the consaolidated
statement of comprehensive Income relating to this iInvestment has been recycled through the consolidated ncome statement
resulting N a net charge tc the consolidated income statement of £1,044 000

Blu-Wireless — At the balance sheet date there has been no change in the carrying vaiue of the nvestment

UBC and 7digital - The Group made further cash investments by the way of lcans in UBC and 7digital for £530,000 and
£1,000,000 respectively On 9 June 2014 UBC Media Group Plc anncunced the acquisition of 7digital Group, Inc and the
resultant new company changed tts name to 7digital Group plc The existing holding of sharas and loans in beth UBC and
7digital were converted and subscribed for new shares respectively The ‘new’ investment in 7digital Group plc was valued at
£7,925,000 on 9 June 2014 ¢reating a gan on the initial recognition of the shares of £392 000 which was recognized In the
consolidated income statement At the balance sheet date, the Group s investment in 7digital was valued at £3,262,000 by
reference to the quoted share price of 7digrtal at the reporting date £988,000 of the £4,663,000 reducticn n nvestment value
has been recognized as a change in far value of avalable for sale investments in the consalidated statement ¢f comprehensive
income, with the £3,675,000 recognized as a loss in the consolidated income statement
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Ineda — At the balance sheet date there was an increase in the value of the Investment due to foreign exchange movement of
£430,000, which resulted in a carrying value of £5,027,000 The £430,000 increase has been recognized as a change in far

vailue of avalable for sale iInvestments in the consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome

Onkyo — At the balance sheet date a gain of £16,000 has been created as a result of the movement in Onkyo s share price and
foreign exchange and this has been recognized as a change in far value of availlable for sale investments in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive Income The carrying value of the investment in Onkyo at the balance sheet date 1s £388,000

NetSpeed - At the balance sheet date a gain of £44 000 has been created due to foreign exchange movements and this has
been recognized as a change in far value of avallable for sale investments in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

ncome The carrying value of the nvestment at the balance sheet date 1s £520 000

Atomos — In FY14 there was a licensing agreement signed with Atomes for which settlement coutd erther be cash or equity At 30

Apnl 2014 the balance outstanding of $5m was recorded within trade debtors, however, this was ultmately settled by the receipt
of equity shares At the balance sheet date a gain of £246,000 has been created due te foraign exchange movements and this
has been recognized as a change in far value of avalable for sale investments in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income The carrying value of the investment at the halance shest date 1s £3,251 000

All gainsg and imparment charges relating to trade investments classified as available for sale relate to the Technology business

All Gains and losses for the period recognized in the consolidated income staterment are included within the ‘gain on investments
and ‘impairment of Investments rows within the consolidated income statement All gains or losses for the penod recognized in
other comprehensive Income are included within the ‘change in far value of assets classified as available for sale’ row within the

statement of comprehensive Nncome

Please see note 19 for further information surrounding fair value valuation principles The directors have considered the sensitiity
of the unobservable nputs used and do not believe that any reasonably foreseeable changes to these inputs would result a

matenal change to far value of the investments

10 Inventories

Raw matenals and components
Fimshed goods

2015 2014
£'000 £ o000
712 1,190
7,189 7.864
7,901 9,064

Provisions of £1 852,000 (2014 £1 843 000) recognized n cost of sales were made aganst nventores Duning the penced,
£1,322,000 (2014 £824,000) of the provisicn aganst nventories was utihzed for the write-down and wnie off of inventories As
at 30 April 2015 the provision for obsclescence of nventories was £2 115,000 (2014 £1 485,000)

Raw matertals, consumatles and changes in finished goods and work in progress recognized as cost of sales in the pered

amounted to £16,960,000 (2014 £19,861,000)
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11 Trade and other receivables

2015 2014
£ 000 £ 000

Trade recewables 21,142 19,926
Accrued incoma 44,840 22,415
Prepaymenits 5,416 4778
Other receivables 2,928 3,897
RAD tax credt recevable 7,524 2,860
81,850 53,876

Provision for impairment of trade recevables as at 30 April 2015 was £189,000 (2014 £178,000) wath the movement recognized
In the Income statement durnng the penod

12 Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014

£ 000 £000

Cash at bank - short term depcsits - 1,541

Cash al bank — current account 2,651 17,707

Cash and cash equivalents as per consohdated statement of financial position 2,651 19,248

Gash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of cash flows 2,651 19,248
13 Trade and other payables

2045 20,

£'000 £c00

Trade payables 8,428 7.100

Other taxes and social security 1,972 1,973

QOther payables 2,011 2,303

Accruals 15,318 14,082

Deferred income 10,072 9,874

Deferred and contingent consideration 2,757 2,182

40,558 37.514

There 1s £13%6 000 and £408,000 contained within trade payables and other payables respectively relating to habilies owed
under a finance lease that 1s due within 12 manths The corresponding asset has been dentified and disclosed in note 8

The deferred and contingent consideration 1s 10 respect of the acguisitions of HelloScft, Inc (£45,000) and Posedge, Inc
(€2 712,000 and represants an assessment of probable future consideration, converted using the perod end exchange rate, due
within 12 menths based on contractual payment dates
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14 Interest bearing loans and borrowings

2015 2014
£ 000 £000
Current habihies
Revolving credit facility 5,000 -
Bank ioan 3,251 8,561
Non-current habilities
Bank loan 21,650 15 696
29,901 24 257
Borrowings to be repaid withun one year 8,251 8 561
Borrowings to be repad between one and five years 21,8650 15 696
Borrowings to be repaid over five years - -
29,901 24 257

In February 2013, the Group drew down a $48,000,000 term loan which was used to part fund the acquisition of MIPS
Technologes, In¢ In June 2014 the Group completed a re-negotiation of the {erms of the loan As at 30 Apnl 2015, the
remaining loan balance of $38,300 000 1s repayable in six six monthly nstalments of $2,500,000 between June 2014 and
December 2017, with a final bullet payment of $23,300,000 due in June 2018 The loan 1s subject to vanable quarterly nterest

payments at a rate of 1 3% above 3 month LIBOR on the outstanding balance

As at 30 Apnl 2015 the Group had drawn down £5 000,000 of its revolving cradit facility to meet short term cash needs The

£5,000,000 was repaid on 13 May 2015

The Group's bank loan, revolving credit facility and overdraft faciity are secured by a debenture dated March 2013 which gives
HSRBG Bank ple a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Group and its principal subsicary Imagination Technclegies
Limited The bark also has a legal charge over freehold land and buildings owned by the Group, wiich have a net book value of

£51,942,000

15 Other payables

Other non-current payables

2015 2014
£'000 £000

Other payables 1,903 2,620
Defarred ncome 833 837
Deferred and contingent consideration 1,396 2,553
4,132 6,010

Contained withins cther payables 1s £1,089,000 due after 12 menths relating 1o habilties owed under a finance fease The

corresponcing asset has been identfied and disclosed in note 8

The deferred and contingent consideration of £1,396,000 1s In respect of the acquisition of Posedge (2014 Posedge
£2,553 000) and regpresents an assessment of probable future consideration, cenverted using the perod end exchange rate, due

after 12 months based on contractual payment dates
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16 Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital

Authonzed Allotted, called-up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10p each No £'000 No £ 000
At 1 May 2014 300,000 000 30,000 267,688,067 26,769
Issued dunng penod - - 3,935051 393
At 30 Apnl 2015 300,000,000 30,000 271,623,108 27,162

The nghts attached to ordinary shares are as set out in the Directors’ report on page 56

Share capital and share premium

The movement on the share capital and share premium reserve in the pencd anses from the issue of 3,935,051 ordinary shares
as follows

» [ssue of 1,164,577 shares to settle deferred acquisitton consicleration hability of £2,168,000 This increased share capital by
£116,000 and share premium by £2,052,000,

* 733,972 shares were 1ssued dunng the year relating to the ‘free share’ element of the Dec 2014 ESP These shares will be held
in trust untd at least December 2017 — the earlest date they are avalable to employees, and

= 2036 502 fully pad shares were 1ssued pursuant to the terms of vanous Employee Share Option Schemes The consideration
for the shares was £479 000 Of this consideration, £325,000 was settled In cash and £154,000 relating to shares 1ssued at rul
cost under the terms of specific employee share schemes, was debrted to reserves

Other capital reserve

The balance on the other capital reserve reflects the value of warrants 1ssued in respect of the acguisition of Ensigma Limited in

March 2000

Merger reserve
Tha merger reserve arose In the Group recenstruction N 1994 prior to 1ts flotation

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve compnses the cumulative net change in the farr value of the trade nvestments classified as availlable for
sale until the investments are derecognized

Translation reserve

The translation reserve reflects the exchange differances from retranslation of the opening net investments In overseas
subsidianes 1o closing rate
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17 Operating leases

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows

Land and builldings Qther
2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £ 000 £000 £'000
Within one year 3,793 3,624 9,320 6 531
In two to five years 8,261 8,884 4,203 11,050
Adter five yaars 2,137 3,399 - -
14,191 15,907 13,623 17,581

Cther operating leases include the rental of software and vehicles

18 Capital commitments

At 30 Apnl 2015, the Group had contractual captal commitments of £11 059,000 (2014 £18 437,000) This is due t¢ obligations
entered into durng the year to commence waork on a new bulding The work 1s due te be completed in the year ended 30 April
2016

19 Financial instruments
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following nsks from its use of financial Instruments
* Market nsk

e Credit nisk

s Liquidity nsk

This note presents informaton about the Group’s exposure to each of the above nsks the Group's objectives, policies and
processes for measurng and managing nsk

The Board of Directors has overall respensibility for the estabhshment and oversight of the Group’s nsk management framework

Categories of financial instruments

Cetails of the significant accounting pohcies and methods adopted, including the cniteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized in respect of each class of nancial assets, financial
liability and equity nstrument are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements

2015 2014
Notas £'000 £ 000
Financial assets

Loans and recenvables
Trade and other receivables 11 31,594 26,683
Cash and cash equivalents 12 2,661 16,248
Available for sale investrments @ 19,947 21,081
Total financial assets 54,192 67 012
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2015 2014
Motes £ 000 £ 000

Financial habhtigs

Bomrowings 14 29,901 24 257

Trade and other payables 13 15,168 13,558

Non-current payables 15 4,132 6,010

Total financial kabihes 49,201 43,825

Market risk

Market nsk Is the nsk that changes in the market prices, such as foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, will affect
the Group's Income or the value of its holdings of financial nstruments The objective of markst risk management 1s to manage
and control market nisk exposures within acceptable parameters whilst eptimizing the return on nsk

a) Foreign currency nsk

Tha Group transacts license and development agreements with customers and purchases of products for Pure primanly in US
Dollars and, therefore, the Group's sarnings are exposed to fluctuatons In foreign exchange rates The Group reviews 1ts roreign
exchange exposure on a regular basis and, if there 1s a matenal exposure 1o exchange rate fluctuations and the Board considers
it appropnate, the Group will reduce the nisk by currency hedging on net recevable/payable balances Forward exchange
contracts are entered into with the objective of matching therr matunty with currency receipt Dunng the pencd the total value

of currency contracts entered into amounted to $59,500 000 or £36 702,000 (2014 £51,011,000) As at 30 April 2015 the
outstanding currency contracts amounted to £21,508,000 (2014 £8,952,000) The far value of these outstanding currency
contracts was £182 00Q loss (2014 £1,034,000 gan) The movement in far value of £1,216 000 has been recognized within
finance income 1 the period

The analysis of financial assets and labilities by foreign currency 1s as tollows irrespective of the functional currency of the
transacting entity

30 April 2015 30 April 2014

£ 3 € Other Total g $ € Other Total

Trade recevables 1,299 19,136 464 243 21,142 1,341 18,053 417 115 19 926
Other recevables 9,625 377 6 444 10,452 5,023 - 10 824 6,757
Cash and cash equvalents {4,521) 3,632 691 2,049 2,651 449 15,610 B12 2377 19,248
Avalable for sale assets 10,760 8,798 - 389 19,947 10,418 10,290 - 373 21,081
Trade payables {5,044) {2,987) (91) (306) (8,428) 4,094) (2,658) (201} (147) {7,100)
QOther pavables {2,523) (3,863) (64) {290} (6,740) {3.023) (3 182) 1) (242) {8,458)
Borrowings (5,000) (24,901) - - {29,901) - {24,257) - - (24.257)
MNeon current payables - (4,132) - - {4,132) - 6,010 - - B010)
4,596 (4,040} 1,006 3,429 4,991 11,014 7,848 1,027 3300 23187

The significant foreign exchange risks for the Group are USD recevables of £16,776,000 held by imagination Technologies
Limted and Imagination Technologies AB and the USD loan of £24,901,000 held by Imagination Technologies plc The majority
of the other assets and labilities are held within foreign subsidianes in the respective local currencies

The Group has a number of overseas business operations and operates In a number of foraign currencies which give nse to
transactional and translational foreign exchange nsk The most important ferewgn currengy to the Group 1s the US Dollar

Financial report




Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Tha Group transacts a large proportion of its revenues and ¢osts in US Doilars Taking all ncome and expenditure in US Dollars
nto account, management have appraised that for the financial year to 30 April 2015, each additional one cent Increase or
decrease in the US Dollar exchange rate aganst Sterling would have decreased or increased revenues by circa £1,002,000
{2014 £929,000) and profit by circa £524,000 (2014 £527,000)

b) Interest rate nsk

The Group’s earnings may be affected by changes in interest rates available on bank deposits The Group ams to maxmize
returns from funds held on deposit and uses market deposits with mayor cleanng banks accordingly With the current level of
bank deposits the impact of a change in Interest rates 1s not considered materal

In respect of ncome-sarning financial assets and nterest bearing financial labilities, the following table indicates their average
effective interest rate at the reporting date and the penods In which they mature or If earlier, reprice

2015 2014
Effective < 1 year >1 year Total Efiective < 1year = 1 year Total
interest rate £'000 £ 000 £'000 nterast rate £ 000 £ 000 €000
Cash and cash equivalents
Sterling {4,521) - {4,521) 149 - 449
US Dollar 3,532 - 3,631 15,610 - 15,810
Euro 691 - 691 g12 - 812
Japanese Yen 151 - 151 a5 - 415
Indian Rupee 1,222 - 1,222 810 - 810
Chinese Yuan 773 - 773 250 - 250
Polsh Zloty 76 - 76 70 - 70
New Zealand Oollar 56 - 56 88 - 88
Australian Dollar {45) - (45) 520 - 520
Swedish Krona 423 - 423 30 - 30
Karean Won 50 - 50 11 - 11
New Tamwan Dollar 214 - 215 187 - 167
Israell Shekel 29 - 29 16 - 16
2,651 - 2,651 19,248 - 19 248
Floating rate 0 0% 2,651 - 2,651 00% 17,707 - 17 707
Fixed rate - - - G3% 1,541 - 1,541
2,651 - 2,661 19 248 - 19,248
Bank Loan
RCF draw down 18% {5,000) - {5,000) 17% 8,561} (15,696) (24,257)
Secured bank lpan - USD* 18% (3,251) {21,650) {24,901)
{8,251) (21,650) {29,901) {8,561} {15,696) (24 257}

At floating rate See note 14 for detalls
Floating rate cash earns interest based on LIBID squivalents
Short term recevables and payables are not interest bearnng with the exception of the short term element of the long term loan

The lean floats at 1 3% above guarterly LIBOR and the unexpired term is 3 years and 2 months
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

In the financial year to 30 April 2015, if interast rates had been 100 basis points higher and all other vanables were held constant,
the Group’s profit would have been decreased by crca £10,000 (2014 decreased by circa £145,000) Smilarly, if imterest rates
had been 100 basis ponts fower and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's profit would have been iIncreasad by
circa £70,000 (2014 ncreased by circa £36,000}

Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s the nisk of inancial loss to the Group If a customer or counterparty io a financial insttument fails to meet s
contractual cbiigations, and anses prncipally from the Group s receivables from customers and investment of Iiquid funds

The Group mits its exposure Lo credit nsk by only Investing in iguid securities and only with counter parties that have a hugh
credit rating

Capital risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing
the return to stakeholders as well as sustamng the future development of the business In order to maintain or acjust the capital
structure, the Group may conaider the totai amount of dividends paid to sharsholders, return capital to shareholders, 1ssued new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt The Group's overall strategy remans unchanged from the previous financial year

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 14 cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to the parent The latter comprises share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed
In note 16 and the consolidated statement of changes in equity The CFO regularly monitors the capitat nsk on behalf of the
Board

Trade receivables

The exposure to credit risk 1s mitigated by seling to a diverse range of customers The Group has implemented policies that
require appropnate credrt checks on potential customers prior to sales taking place At the balance sheet date there were no
significant concentrations of credit nsk either by customer or by geography The maximum exposure to credit nsk 15 represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset In the balanca sheeat

Gross Impairment Gross Impairrment

2015 2015 2014 201

Agemy of trade recewvables £ 000 £000 £ o0o £000
Not past due 10,810 - 9,297 -
Past due 0-90 days 4,527 - 8,747 -
Past due greater than 90 days 5,994 {189} 2,055 (173)
21,331 (189) 20099 (173)

Trade recewables that are less than three months overdue are generally not considered impaired Recevables more than three
months overdue are considered on a ine by kne basis and a provision 1s made where recovery 1s considered doubtiul

No other financial assets are past dug
Liquidity risk

Liquichty risk 15 the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial abligations as they fall due To minimize this risk
the Greup only invests funds in iguid secunties As a contingency, the Group mantains a £3 mithon overdraft and £20 million
revolving credrt facility

The following table 13 drawn up based on undiscounted contractual matunties including both interest and prncipal cash flows
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Apnl 2015

Bank loan

RCF draw down

Trade and cther payables
Non current payables

Apnl 2014

Bank loan
Trade and other payables

Fair values of financial instruments

Carrying Contractual Less than More than
amount cash fiows 1 yaar 1-2 yoars 2.5 years 5 years
£ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
24,901 24,901 3,251 3,251 18,399 -
5,000 5,000 5,000
15,168 15,168 15,168 - - -
4,132 4,132 833 2,632 667 -
45,201 49,201 24,252 5,883 19,066 -
Carnying Contractual Less than More than
amaount cash lows 1 year 1 2years 2 Syears 5years
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 € 600 € 000
24,257 24,384 8 669 8,561 7,134 -
13,558 13,558 11,376 - 2,182 -
37,815 37,922 20,045 8,561 9,316 -

Fair value s defined as the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction between

two infarmed and wiling parties and 1s calculated by reference to market rates discounted 1o current value

Financial assets

Trade and other recewables
Cash and cash equivalents
Avalable for sale investments

Financial habilities
Long term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Non current payables

Notes

11
12

14
13
15

2015

Carrying amount

and fair value
£'000

31,594
2,651
19,947

(29,901)
{15,168)
(4,132)

Assumptions used in estimating the farr values of financial nstruments reflected in the table above

Cash and cash equivalents

The far value approximates to book value due to the short term maturity of these instruments

Availlable for sale investments

Far value hierarchy

2014

Carrying amount
and tar value
000

26,683
19,248
21081

(24 257)
{i3 558)
(6 010)

The Group measures the far value of avallable for sale investments using the following hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurement

Level 1 Quoted market price (Uunadjusted) in an active market for an identical financial instrument

Level 2 Valuation techiigues based on obsenvable nputs, such as market prices for similar financial nstruments

Level 3 Valuation techrigues using unohservable mputs which can have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation
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The Group has applied the above hierarchy to its investments as follows

Toumaz - the valuation 1s Based on the quoted share price for Toumaz Heldings on AIM This investment 1s categonzed as Level 1
Orca — the valuation 1s based on the purchase prce of the investment This nvestment 1s categonzed as Level 3

7digital - the valuation 15 based on the quoted share price for 7digital Greup plc on AIM This investment 1s categonzed as Level 1
ineda — the valuation 1s based on the latest purchase price per funding round This investment 1s categorzed as Level 3
Blu-Wireless - the valuation 1s based on the purchase pnce of the investment This investment 1s categonzed as Level 3

Onkyo — the valuation is based on the quoted share price for Onkyo Corporation on Tokyo stack exchange This investment 1s
categonzed as Level 1

NetSpeed - the valuation 15 based on the purchase pnice of the investment which was acquired dunng the year This investment
15 categonzed as Level 3

Atomos - the valuation 1s based on the purchase pnce of the Investment This investment 1s categonzed as Level 3

The following table analyses investments, measured at far value at the reporting date, by the level in the fawr value hierarchy into
which the far value measurement 1s categonzed

2015 2014

£ 000 £ 000

Levet 3 10,840 10,483
Level 2 - -
Level 3 9,107 10 598
19,947 21081

The foliowing table shows a reconciliation from opening balances to the closing balances for far value measurements in Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy

£'000
At 30 Apnl 2014 10,598
Investiment in the year 4,005
Total gans and losses
In ncome statement {1,213
In other comprehensive Inceme 879
Disposals (5,162

At 30 Apnil 2015 9,107

Although the Group believes that its estimates of far value are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or assumptions
could lead to different measurements of fair value

The valuatian of Blu Wireless, Orca NetSpeed Ineda and Atomos and Ineda ts based on the purchase pnce of the investment at the
most recent funding rounds and any changes i the intervening penod to 30 Apnl 2015 are not matenally different to these valuations

Long term borrowings

The far value approximates to book value as this instrument 1s at a vanable interest rate
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20 Contingent liabilities

An Internal Revenue Senace (IRS) audit of the MIPS Technologies Inc (now Imagination Technologies LLC) tax returns for the
tax periods ending 30 June 2012, 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2013 commenced in February 2015 The audit 1s focusing
on the 30 June 2013 tax penod which inciuded a one off capital gain of $350 millon generated n February 2013, when MIPS
completed a sale of its patents immediately prior to the acquisition of MIPS by Imagination

Imagination Technologies LLC has provided all information requested to date by the IRS The audit is still n its early stages and
the IRS has not 1ssued a formal Notice of Proposed Adustments This being the case, Imagination Technelogies LLLC has not
made any adjustment to its tax prowision as at 30 Apnl 2015, as a result of the audst taking place

The Group had no contingent liabiliies at 30 Apnl 2014

21 Related parties
Identity of related parties

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel comprise the directors In addition to their salaries the Group also provides non-cash benefits to
drrectors and contributes to post-employment benefit schemes on therr behalf Directors also participate in the Group's share
incentive programmes The share based payments are valued at ther far value at the date of grant Full details of directors
compensation, Including post-employment benefits 1s given in the Directors’ Remuneration Committee report on pages 75 to 97

The key management perscnnel compensations are as follows

2015 2014

£'000 £ 000

Emoluments 1,213 959
Pension contributions 46 a8
Share-based payments 848 754
2,107 1,761

Details of key management's interests in the Company's shares and share options are set out in the Directors Remuneration
Committee report on pages 75 to 97

Dunng 2015 and 2014, no member of the Board of Directors had a personal interest in any business transactions of the Group

Financial report

137



138

22 Employee benefits

Pension

The Company participates in a group persenal pension plan with defined contnbutions The asssts of the schemes are held
separately in independently administered funds There were no cutstanding contributions at the balance shest date

Share-based payments

Share options

The following opticns have been granted under the imagination Technologies Key Employee Share Option Schemes Savings
Related Share Option Scheme and Leng Term Incentive Plan and remain outstanding as at 30 Apnl 2015

Year of Issue

2005
2006
2011
2012
2013

Sub-total of cptions with exercise price

Year of Issue

2008
2009
2009
2009
2009
2010
2010
2010
2011
2011
2012
2012
2013
2013
2013
2014
2014
2014

Sub-total of nil cost options

Date from

16,665,904

*Options granted under the Long Term Incentive Plan
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Qutstanding Exercisa whaich first Expiry
at 30 Apnil 2015 price exercisable date
228 845 67 5p 2008 2015
145 000 55p 2009 2016
175,452 366 Zp 2014 2015
120,418 381 2p 2015 20186
573 372 228p 2016 2017
1,242,887
Date fram
Outstanding Exercizse which frrst Expiry
at 30 April 2015 price exercisable date
788,308 Op 2011 2016
216,265 Op 2012 2017
1,418,743 Op 2012 2007
750,000 op 2012 2017
278,000 Op 2013 2018
550 467 Op 2013 2018
52,681 Op 2012 2017
106,842 Op 2013 2018
988,054 Op 2014 2019
907,747 Op 2014 2019
1 380,116 Op 2015 2020
351,135 Op 2015 2020
1,519,810 Op 2018 2021
418,007 Op 2016 2021
1 784,473 Op 2016 2021
1889 703 Op 2017 2022
754,719 Op 2017 2022
1,280,917 op 2017 2022
15,423,017




The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows

Weighted average Number Weighted avaraga Number

axercise pnce of options exarcise prce of options

Year of I3sue 2ms 2015 204 2014

Quistanding at the beginning of the penod 200p 2,242,572 216p 2112,378

Exercised during the penod 65p {498,361) 63p 117,812}

Granted dunng the penod - - 227p 721 480

Lapsed dunng the penod 301p {501,324) 349p {473,474}
Outstanding at the end of the penod 213p 1,242,887 200p 2 242 572

Exercisable at the end of the penod 160p 549,097 120p 1,131,753

The average share price durning the pencd was 214 13p (2014 250 00p)

The options outstanding ai the year end have an exercise price in the range of Cp to 381 2p and a weighted average contractual

Iife of 1 O year

"*Excludes 15,423,017 nil cost options Movements of which are shown with share awards below

Employee Share Plan

The following awards have been granted under the Imagination Technologies Employee Share Plan and remain outstanding at 30

Apnl 2015

Yeer of Issue

2010
2011
2011
2012
2012
2012
2012
2012
2013
2013
2013
2014
2014
2014

Date from

Qutstanding whuch first Expiry
at 30 Apnil 2015 exgrcisable date
20000 2013 2015
B8 649 2014 2015
2357 2014 205
121 004 2015 2015
2933 2014 2015
20853 2015 2016
112 184 2015 2016
1,103,733 2015 2018
61 381 2016 2016
458 0B9 2016 2018
436,497 20186 2017
470518 2017 2017
495 199 207 2018
716,389 2017 none
4,029,786
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The movements in nil cost share options and share awards are as follows

Year of Issue

Outstanding at the beginrung of the penod
Exercised durning the penad

Granted dunng the perod

Lapsed during the penod

Qutstanding at the end of the period

Exercisable at the end of the period

Number of share
awards and options

Number of share
awards and opticns

2015 2014
17,667,449 14,582 953
{1,827,766) (1,772,878)

6,040,724 5,328,720
(2,427,604) {471,346)
19,452,803 17,667 449

6,080,076 7,081,238

As at 30 April 2015, 2,122,071 (2014 1,998,240) shares are held by the Company's Employee Benefit Trust, and 733,972

shares (2014 nil shares) relating to the Company’s Share incentive Plan (SIP) are held by the Company’s registrars

The Company has share option schemes and an employes share plan scheme detaifs of which are contanad in the Directors’

raport on page 56

In accordance with IFRS 2, the fair value of senaces received in return for share cptions and employee share plan awards granted
to employees 1s measured by reference to the far value of share options and employee share plan awards granted The estimate
of the farr value of the services 1s measured based on the Black-Schaoles or Monte Carlo Simulation models financial models

used to calculate the far value of opticns and awards under the employee share plan
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The assumptions used In the calculation of the fair value of options are set out below

Date of share option grant Dec 2009 Oct 2011 Jun 2012 Nov 2012 Dec 2012 Jun 2013 Jun 2013
Share price at grant date {pence) 228 457 8 466 6 467 © 409 2 287 4 287 4
Exercise price (pence) - - - 3812 - - -
Expected volatity 59% 62 4% 51 2% 51 0% 50 7% 51 5% 51 6%
Risk free interast rate 22% C51% 0 38% 035% C 39% 062% 062%
Time 10 matunty (vears) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Fair value per option {pence) 1450 2439 3336 2330 3008 283 287 4
Date of share option grant Sep 2013 Sep 2013 Sep 2013 Oct 2013 Dec 2013 Dec 2013 Jun 2014
Share price at grant date {pence) 3512 351 2 3512 2935 1623 162 3 224 3
Exercize price {pence) - - - 2280 - - -
Expected volatiity 52 8% 50 €% 57 3% 53 1% 54 9% 54 9% 55 8%
Risk free interest rate 0 B6% 133% 1 67% 078% 085% 085% 147%
Time to matunty {years) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Farr value per optian {pencel 2620 2611 3512 130 6 1623 798 2248
Date of share option grant Jun 2014 Qct 2014 Oct 2004 Oct 2014 Dec 2014 Deac 2014 Dec 2014
Share price at grant date {pence) 2248 204 8 2048 204 8 2300 2300 2300
Exercisa price (pence) - - - - - - -
Expected volatiity 55 8% 54 6% 5 5% 51% 53 4% 53 4% na
Risk free interest rate 1 47% 111% 1 00% 1 00% 073% 073% n/a
Time 0 matunty (years) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Far value per ophon {pence) 1291 204 8 1435 1421 2300 143 2 2300

The assumptions used in the calculation of the fair vaiue of the employee share plan awards are set out below

Date of ESP grant Oct 2011 Jun 2012 Oct 2012 Oct 2012 Dac 2012 Jan 2013 Jun 2013
Share pnce at grant date (pence) 457 8 466 6 456 6 456 6 409 2 464 5 287 4
Expected volatiity 62 4% 51 2% 54 0% 51 1% 50 7% 31 1% 51 5%
Rigk free interest rate 051% 0 38% 026% 032% 0 39% 045% 062%
Time to matunty (years) 3 3 2 3 3 3 3
Far value per option (pence) 2439 3336 3213 3435 3008 284 0 287 4
Date of ESP grant Dec 2013 Jun 2014 Dec 2014
Share price at grant date (pence} 162 3 224 8 2300
Expected volatility 54 9% 55 8% 53 4%
Risk free interest rate 0 85% 147% Q73%
Time to maturity {years) 3 3 3
Farr value per option {pence) 162 3 2248 2300

The expected volatility 1s based on the historic volatility, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatiity due to publicly
avallable information
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Share-based payments for the year

Share-based payments for the current and prior year are

Year of Award

2009/10
2010/11
201112
201213
2013/14
2014/15

The future estimated expense for share award schemes outstanding at 30th Apnlt 201515

Year of Award

To be incurred within one year
To be incurred after cne year

2015 2014

£ 000 £000
141 393

- 35086
1,520 2,594
5,290 4,567
3,159 2119
1,853 -
11,963 13,17¢
2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
8,529 10 508
5,843 8,558
14,372 17,066

A deferred tax asset of £3,428,000 (2014 £2 270,000) has been recognized relating share-based payments (note 5) |t anses

from the potential future tax benefit on the exercise of ncentives
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23 Group subsidiaries

Details of the Group s subsidiary undertakings, which are invalved in the hicensing of the design of multmedia technology and the

sale of multimedia products are as follows

MName of subsidiary undertaking

Imagination Technologies Limited
PowerVR Technologies Limied®
Metagence Technologies Limited-
Ensigma Technologies Limited”
VideoLogic Systems Limited”

Cross Preducts Limited

Pure Digital Limited”

Imagination Technologies GmbH
Imagination Technologes, Inc
Imagination Technologies KK
Imagination Technologes India Private Limited
Pure Australasia Pty Limited

Bnstol Interactive Limited”

Caustic Graphies, Inc

HelloSoft In¢

Imagination Technologies AB
Imagination Technologies Hyderabad Private Limited
Imagmnaton Technologies NZ Limited
Imagination Technologies LLC

MIPS Technologies International Limited
MIPS Technologies {Shanghai) Co Ltd
MIPS Technologes B V

Hallosoft Limited

All of the above companies are included In the Group financial statemenis  “non-trading *"indirect holding

Country of ncorporation
and of aperatien

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
Germany
us
Japan
India
Austraha
UK

us

us
Sweden
Incha

NZ

us
Cayman Islands
China
Netherlands
UK

Type of shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crditnary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
QOrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Percentage of 1ssuad
share capital held

100%
+00%
“100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
"100%
* 100%
100%
100%
" 100%
“100%
"100%
100%
100%
“100%
100%
“100%
“100%
*100%
“100%
*"100%
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Imagination Technologies Group plc parent %
company balance sheet

As at 30 Aprnl As at 30 Apnl
2015 2014
Notes £'000 £000
Fixed asseis
Investment 1n subsidizry undertakings 3 134,300 122 798
Current assets
Debtors 4 70,13 64 709
Cash 343 60
70,474 54,769
Current labiities
Credtors amounts falling dug within one year 5 (3,535) {9,352
Net current assets 66,939 55 377
Total assets less current habilities 201,239 178,175
Non-current liabihities
Creditors amounts falling due after one year 5 (21,203} (15,732)
Net assets 179,336 162,443
Capital and reserves
Share capital 8 27,162 26,769
Share premium 9 101,984 99,648
Other capital reserve 9 1,423 1423
Share-based payment reserve 9 59,901 48,216
Retained earnings 9 {11,224) (13613)
Equity shareholders’ funds 10 179,336 162 443

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

Py

Bert Nordberg '
Director
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1 Accounting policies

The parent company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about its Group

The following accounting polcies have been applied consistently in dealing with tams which are considered matenal in relation to
the financial statements

Thare are no new accounting policies which would have a significant impact in the current year

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared In accordance with applicable UK Accounting Standards and under the historical
accounting rules The following pnncipal accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the pencd and preceding
yaar in dealing with tems which are considered matenal in relation to the Company’s financial statements The financial
statemants are prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Company will continue in operational exsstence for
the foreseeable future

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2008 the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss
account The Company made a profit for the year of £3,019,000 (2014 loss £7,504,000)

Under Financial Reporting Standard 1 the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statemant on the
grounds that it 15 included N the consolidated accounts which 1t has prepared

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 8 and has therefore not disclosed transactions or
balances with its subsidianes

Foreign currencies

Transactions n foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of transaction Mcnetary assets and
llabiities denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated using the contracted rate or rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date and the gains or losses on translaton are ncluded 1n the profit and loss account

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less any provisions for impairment

Details of the Company's subsiciary undertakings are included in note 23 of the Group financial staterments

Share based payment

The fair value of options granted is recognized as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in equity The fair value 1s
measured at grant date and spread over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options
The farr value of the options granted 15 measured using an option pricing model, taking into account the terms and condiions
upon which the aptions were grantad The amount recognized as an expense 18 adjusted to reflect the actual number of shara
options that vast except where forfeiture 1s only due to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting

As the Company grants cptions over its own shares o the employees of its subsidianes, in accordance with FRS 20, t
recognizes an increase In the cost of investment in its subsidianes eguivalent to the equity-settled share-based payment charge
recognized in its subsidiary s financial statements with the corresponding credit being recognized directly in equity

Transactions of the Company's Employee Benefit Trust are included in the Gioup's financial statements In particular the Trust's
purchases and sales of shares in the Company are debited and credited directly to equity

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit or loss for the penod and takes nto account taxation deferred because of timing
differences between the treatment of certain tems for taxation and accounting purposes
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Deferred tax 1s recognized in respect of all iming differences between the treatment of certan iterms for taxation and accounting

purposes which have ansen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19

Related parties

The Company has a related party refattonship with its subsidianes (see note 23) and with 1ts Board of Directors (see the Directors
Remuneration Committee report on pages 75 to 97) Detals of the remuneration of key management personnel are disclosed in

note 21

2 Employees

The Company does not employ any staff

Below 1s information required to comply as required, with Schedule 5 (Sl 2008/410)

Aggregate amount of remuneration paid 10 directors in respect of qualifying services
Aggregate amount of gains made by directors on exercise of share options
Pension contributions

At end of period

2015 204
£'000 £ 000
1,510 1418
- 1418

46 a7
1,558 1,483

“The Company does not operate a defined benefit pension scheme There were two directors who contributed to the Company

defined contribution scheme in the financial year

Full detalls of directors’ remuneration are set out In the Directors’ Remuneration Committee report on pages 75 to 97 The

non-executive directors are remunerated by the Group

3 Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Cost and net book value

Al beginning of penod

Addition — Further investment in subsickary undertaking

{Disposali/addition — Revaluation of deferred consideration due cn acquisttion of subsidiary
Disposat — Consolidation of US operations

Reversal of deferred consideration

Acldition - Share-based payment to employees of subsidiary

At end of pericd

4 Debtors

Cther debtors
Arnounts owed by subsidiary undertakings

Financial report

2015 2014

£ 000 £ 000
122,798 117,298
- 2,800

- (18)

- {9,788)

(272) {748}
11,774 13,164
134,300 122 798
2015 2014
000 £ 000

33 4
70,098 64,668
70,131 64 709




IR
£37 899,000 (2014 £32 467 000) of the amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings ars due after more than one year

5 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2015 2014

£7000 £000

Bank loan 3,251 8,561
Accruals and deferred income - 192
Deferred and contingent consideration 284 639
3,535 9,392

In February 2013, the Group drew down a $48,000,000 term loan which was used to part fund the acquisition of MIPS
Technclogies Inc Cn 17 June 2014, the Group completed a re-negotiation of the terms of the above loan Under the revised
terms the remaining loan balance s repayable in seven six monthly Instaiments of $2,500,000 between December 2014 and
December 2017 with a final bullet payment of $23,300,000 due in June 2018 The loan I1s now subject to lower vanable quarterly
interest payments at a rate of 1 3% above 3 month LIBOR on the outstanding balance

At the balance sheet date the Group'’s bank loan equated to £24,901,000 (2014 £24 257.000) of which £3,251,000 1s due within
oneyear (2014 £8,561,000) and £21,650,000 (2014 £15 896,000) 13 due after one year but less than five years

The loan 1s secured by a debenture dated March 2013 which gives HSBC Bank ple a fixed and floating charge over the assets of
the Company and its pnncipal subsidkary Imagination Technologies Limited The bank also has a legal charge over freehold land
and buildings owned by the Group, which have a net book value of £51,942,000

6 Operating leases
At 30 Apnl 2015, the Company had no operating lease commitments (2014 £ail)

7 Capital commitments

At 30 Aprl 2015 the Company had no capital commitments {2014 Crul}

8 Called-up share capital

Detaills of the Company's called-up share capital are shown In note 16 of the Group financial statements
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9 Reserves

Share based

Share Other capital Warrant paymant Retained

premium reserve reserve rgserve earnings

£ 000 £'000 £'000 £'900 £'000

At 1 May 2013 99,236 1423 - 34,848 {4,834}
Lass for the financial year - - - - {7,504)
Issue of new shares 412 - - - -
Shares issued at nit cost - - - - {169}
Acquisition of own shares for LTIP - - - - (1 106)
Share-based remuneration - - - 13,368 -
At 30 April 2014 99,648 1423 - 48,216 (13,613)
At 1 May 2014 99,648 1,423 - 48,216 (13,613)
Profit for the financial year - - - - 3,019
Issue of new shares 2,336 - - - -
Shares issued at nil cost - - - - (236)
Acquisition of own shares for LTIP - - - - {394)
Share-based remuneration - - - 11,775 -
At 30 April 2015 101,984 1,423 - 59,991 (11,224)

10 Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

2015 2014

£'000 £0oo
Equnty shareholders funds at the start of the period 162,443 157,244
Profit/{loss) for the financial year 3,019 {7.504)
Share-based remuneration 11,775 13,368
Issue of new shares 2,099 {665}
Equity shareholders’ funds at the end of the penod 179,336 162,443

148 1 Financial repert




Consolidated five year record

2015 20,4 2013 2012 2011
£'000 £ 000 £000 £000 £ 000
Income statement

Revenue 177,021 170,835 151,467 127,459 98 045
Cost of sales {17,716) [20,481) (20,816) 21 014) {20 791}
Gross profit 159,305 150 374 130,651 106 485 77 254
Research and development expenses {123,859 (114,835) (83 956) (59,633) (44 696}
Sales and administration expenses (43,850) (35,603) (35.410) {18,485) (16,298}
Total operating expenses {167,809) (150 438) {(119,366) (78 118} (B0 994}
Qperating (loss)/profit (8,504) {64) 11285 28 367 16 260
Net financing {expensel/income {3,450) {250) 875 177 100
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (11,954) (314) 12,160 28,544 16,360
Taxation (charge)/credit (1,070) 1,089 (5,884) (8083 2,918
{Loss)/profit for the financial year {13,024) 775 6,276 20,461 19,278
Earnings per share  Basic {4 9p 03p 24p 8 0p 77p
Diluted {4 9)p 03p 23p 7 5p 74p

Statement of financial position
Non-current assets 206,266 202 676 189 626 99 971 91,396
Current assets 93,002 83,733 148,102 112747 83153
Total assets 299,268 293,409 338,728 212718 174,549
Current habilities (49,334) {46,315) {96,407} f26,874) {17,686}
Non-current abikties {44,460) (42,093) (50 83%) (8,457) (13,793)
Total habilities {93,794) (88,408) (147 336} (35,321 (31 479)
Net assets 205,474 205,001 191,392 177,387 143,070
Share capital 27,162 26 769 26 571 26 425 25815
Capital reserves 107,803 106 471 103,026 102,935 101,078
Retained sarnings 70,509 71761 81795 48,027 (18,177)
Total equity 205,474 205,001 191 392 177 387 143,070

These tables are for representative purposes only Full details can be found In the Group's Annual Reports
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